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1CBC
1.00

2012

CSRC China Securities Regulatory Commission
CBIRC China Banking and Insurance

Regulatory Commission
HKEX Hong Kong Exchanges and

Clearing Limited

1.00
Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
1AS International Accounting Standards
IFRS
International Financial Reporting Standards

MOF
NFRA National Financial Regulatory

Administration
PBC The People®s Bank of China
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IFRS
( )
12 31 12 31
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
786,126 806,458 842,352 860,880 800,075
417,308 416,944 420,324 422,030 390,822
366,946 365,116 362,110 350,216 317,685
365,863 363,993 361,132 348,338 315,906
1,083 1,123 978 1,878 1,779

48,821,746 44,697,079 39,610,146 35,171,383 33,345,058

356,407 356,407 356,407 356,407 356,407
3,969,841 3,756,887 3,496,109 3,257,755 2,893,502
10.23 9.55 8.82 8.15 7.48
( )(1)
0.98 0.98 0.97 0.95 0.86
( )(2)
579,194 1,417,002 1,404,657 360,882 1,557,616
(1,471,468) (891,852) (910,621) (674,556)  (1,135,097)
415,683 285,444 (64,789) (11,553) (46,949)
2,290,404 2,755,732 1,926,851 1,436,757 1,791,122
() 415,159 419,252 427,587 434,089 439,787
( )(3) 0.78 0.87 0.97 1.02 1.00
9.88 10.66 11.45 12.15 11.95
4
( )()
( )(5) 19.39 19.10 19.26 18.02 16.88
() 8.17 8.45 8.88 9.31 8.73
@
(2) CSRC
(2010 )
®
(4) CSRC
(2010 )
(5) 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
(6) 2023 1 1 IFRS 17 - IFRS 2022
PBC
Interim Measures for the Administration of the Gold Leasing Business
2023 2022
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2024 12 31
(
@ 828,209 34.79
)
— 31.14
2024 2023 2024
12 31 12 31 12 31
100 100 44,188 54,738
Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China
(Asia) Limited
1CBC
100 100 5,963 5,963
ICBC International
Holdings Limited
1CBC
)
89.33 89.33 589 12,064
Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China
(Macau) Limited
ICBC )
98.61 98.61 3,706,100 361
PT. Bank ICBC
Indonesia
100 100 833 833

Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China
(Malaysia) Berhad
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2024 2023 2024
12 31 12 31 12 31
97.98 97.98 20,107 23,711
Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China
(Thai) Public Company
Limited
( ICBC )
100 100 8,933 8,933
Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China
(Almaty) Joint Stock
Company
( ) 100 100 234 234
Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China
(New Zealand) Limited
1CBC
100 100 437 437
Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China
(Europe) S.A.
100 100 200 200
ICBC (London) PLC
60 60 1,083 839
ICBC Standard Bank
PLC
100 100 10,810 10,810
Bank ICBC (joint stock
company)
92.84 92.84 12,770 425
ICBC Turkey Bank
Anonim Sirketi
100 100 200 200
ICBC Austria Bank
GmbH
80 80 369 306

Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China
(USA) NA
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2024 2023 2024
12 31 12 31 12 31
100 100 50 50.25
Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China
Financial Services LLC
80 80 208 218.66
Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China
(Canada) ICBC
100 100 1,597 1,597
Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China
Mexico S.A.
100 100 202 202
Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China
(Brasil) S.A.
100 100 373,751 904
Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China
(Argentina) S.A.
100 100 120 120
ICBC Peru Bank
80 80 200 433
*
ICBC Credit Suisse
Asset Management Co.,
Ltd.
* 100 100 18,000 11,000
ICBC Financial Leasing
Co., Ltd.
1CBC
60 60 12,505 7,980
*
ICBC-AXA Assurance
Co., Ltd.
1CBC
100 100 27,000 27,000

*

ICBC Financial Asset
Investment Co., Ltd.
1CBC
)
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2024 2023 2024
12 31 12 31 12 31
* 100 100 16,000 16,000
ICBC Wealth Management
Co., Ltd.
* 60 60 200 120
Zhejiang Pinghu ICBC
Rural Bank Co., Ltd.
* 100 100 100 100
Chongging Bishan 1CBC
Rural Bank Co., Ltd.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
Standard Bank Group Limited
324,963,464
19.59
2024 3,269,378
292,656 50,184
25 26
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2024
15,653
14.7
6.5 1.8
13.3 67.3
center

415,159

9.7
0.9
15.3

SWORD Sharpening Program

Learning

(29)

ICBC Pool Wisdom

41.0
8.6
2.4
4.1

1CBC
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ESG
ESG
ESG CSR
ESG ESG
ESG
ESG
ESG I1CBC
ESG ESG
ESG
2024
Advanced Unit in Green Bank Evaluation
The Asset Best Bank for Sustainable Finance, China Best Carbon Neutrality Green

Bond of the Year
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Beautiful China
on the Road CCTV-1 ICBC Green Bank+

IT

Business Research & Development Center

National Energy Efficiency Promotion Week
Dual Carbon ESG
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7,907
16.4 2,040
1,320 1.2
Food Security and Embrace a Bountiful Harvest Year

Breeding e Loan Vegetable Basket Development Loan

Grain Planting Loan
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2024
4.4

ICBC Support

Cotton Grower Loan

Planting e Loan

ICBC Agricultural
Matchmaking Major Towns Tour Agricultural Specialty Brands China-
Africa Industrial Chain Cooperation 48

Digital Suppliers Prosperity

Going into the Countryside

1CBC App ICBC e
1
87.4
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1CBC
Hundred Villages Doubling
12 CCTV
Spring
Initiative Jingiu Action
Candlelight Program 22 Sailing Project 21
Eyes Care Action Angel Project

Childlike Innocence Harbor

Greater Consumer Protection

ICBC Sharing Station+
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March 15th Consumer Rights Day Publicizing Financial Knowledge to Walk Ten Thousand
Miles Financial Literacy Month
For Concern and Love Care for Warm Autumn
ICBC
Embracing New Missions: Consumer Protection in Counties Going into the
Countryside
2024 2.26 93.07
2024 The Year for Consolidating Complaint Management in Personal Finance
95588

68/483



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)

ooooooo
2024 266,800 ®
50.77
2023 2024
12378 Forwarded via One Call Button
NFRA
Card Breaking Action
ESG
ESG Three-in-One
ESG
SSE HKEX HKEXnews
2024 2024

Sustainability Report of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
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Three Gates and Seven-color Pools
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Smart Loan Connect
Credit Prism
ICBC e Prevention
The Asian Banker Best Credit Risk Technology Implementation in Asia-
Pacific
2024
4,276,082 50,880,338
50(a) (1)
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
) ()
27,418,600 96.64 25,250,275 96.79
574,171 2.02 482,705 1.85
379,458 1.34 353,502 1.36
85,881 0.31 98,527 0.38
103,049 0.36 116,527 0.45
190,528 0.67 138,448 0.53

28,372,229 100.00 26,086,482 100.00
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2024 2,168,325
27,418,600 96.64
91,466 574,171 2.02 0.17
25,956 379,458 1.34
0.02
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
) ) () ()
17,482,223 61.6 276,631 1.58 16,145,204 61.9 292,745 1.81
3,819,683 13.5 90,949 2.38 3,681,064 14.1 91,426 2.48
13,662,540 48.1 185,682 1.36 12,464,140 47.8 201,319 1.62
1,932,286 6.8 - - 1,287,657 4.9 - -
8,957,720 31.6 102,827 1.15 8,653,621 33.2 60,757 0.70
6,083,180 21.5 44,317 0.73 6,288,468 24.1 27,827 0.44
421,195 1.5 10,057 2.39 328,286 1.3 4,390 1.34
1,677,981 5.9 21,280 1.27 1,347,136 5.2 11,639 0.86
775,364 2.7 27,173 3.50 689,731 2.6 16,901 2.45
28,372,229 100.0 379,458 1.34 26,086,482 100.0 353,502 1.36
2024 16,114 276,631
1.58 0.23 42,070

102,827 1.15 0.45

751483
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( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
) ) () ()
3,859,790 23.8 14,286 0.37 3,583,967 24.1 17,530 0.49
2,454,489 15.1 45,932 1.87 2,351,044 15.8 55,359 2.35
2,417,060 14.9 36,844 1.52 2,295,720 15.5 43,958 1.91
1,839,421 11.4 16,725 0.91 1,722,981 11.6 20,493 1.19
1,756,221 10.8 7,479 0.43 1,594,025 10.7 12,537 0.79
880,986 5.4 43,964 4.99 762,226 .1 40,957 5.37
768,713 4.7 37,403 4.87 679,049 4.6 29,886 4.40
483,623 3.0 14,417 2.98 432,570 .9 14,078 3.25
400,666 2.5 8,453 2.11 383,799 2.6 8,882 2.31
328,337 2.0 1,723 0.52 295,219 2.0 2,619 0.89
1,015,627 6.4 16,615 1.64 761,866 5.1 16,474 2.16
16,204,933 100.0 243,841 1.50 14,862,466 100.0 262,773 1.77
275,823 7.7
162,196
10.2
121,340
5.3
118,760
15.6
116,440 6.8
103,445 4.4
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( )
2024 12 31 2003 12 31
) () ) ()
874,284 3.1 38,358 4.39 754,746 2.9 29,793 3.95
6,182,636  21.8 47,345 0.77 5,616,187  21.5 36,930 0.66
4,348,121  15.3 66,187 1.52 4,055,692  15.5 57,869 1.43
4,677,575  16.5 56,810 1.21 4,285,481  16.4 63,835 1.49
4,416,400  15.6 49,717 1.13 4,064,415  15.6 43,192 1.06
5,233,652  18.4 68,406 1.31 4,766,575  18.3 68,298 1.43
1,158,000 4.1 17,480 1.51 1,082,666 4.2 22,301 2.06
1,481,552 5.2 35,155 2.37 1,460,720 5.6 31,284 2.14
28,372,229  100.0 379,458 1.34 26,086,482  100.0 353,502 1.36
( )
FVTOCI
2024 1 1 342,730 156,240 257,031 756,001 361 . 29 390
20,221  (16,982)  (3.239) . i . .
(11,518) 15,804  (4,286) ) ) 4 .
(5,101) (24,282) 29,383 . i - .
6,808 21,323 94,312 122,443 1) 46 ©) 36
. . (85.127) (85,127) i ) .
. . 13,856 13,856 i ; ;
943 4,399 2,557 7,899 3) 1 1 )
2024 12 31 354,083 156,502 304,487 815,072 353 51 21 425
23

771483
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2024 815,497
815,072 FVTOCI
425
214.91 0.94 2.87
0.03
)
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
) )
10,787,880 38.0 10,444,304 40.1
3,797,121 13.4 2,979,342 11.4
2,708,808 9.5 2,715,345 10.4
11,078,420 39.1 9,947,491 38.1
28,372,229 100.0 26,086,482 100.0
)
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
) ()
122,360 0.43 107,236 0.42
120,579 0.42 101,889 0.39
124,646 0.44 87,118 0.33
39,154 0.14 34,181 0.13
406,739 1.43 330,424 1.27
76,315 406,739
61,191 284,379

Rules on Risk Classification of Financial

56,363

Banks

23,378

78/483
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( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1.09 1.05 1.12
17.44 18.61 21.03
59.86 61.74 36.62
53.45 77.49 42.55
CBIRC 2022
2024 10
4.4 21.6 10 1,076,123
3.8
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
() 4.4 4.5 3.8
10 () 21.6 23.5 16.0
2024 10
( )

221,765 0.8
184,888 0.7
184,000 0.7
86,828 0.3
82,342 0.3
66,600 0.2
64,845 0.2
64,100 0.2
61,664 0.2
59,091 0.2
1,076,123 3.8
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VaR 50(c) (1)
VaR
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2024
( ( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

703,934 96,438 453,471 63,797
(510, 365) (69,919) (310, 686) (43,709)

193,569 26,519 142,785 20,088

50(c)(ii)
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2024
2024
( )
100 100
(26,560) (102,939) 26,560 121,349
1,109 (8,228) (1,109) 9,259
129 @172) (129) 177
1,101 (3.274) (1,101) 3,497
(24,221) (114,613) 24,221 134,282
50(d)
2024 1,127,184
2,226,763
1,340,308 1,622,716
( )
2024 12 31 (6,245,678) 8,472,441 (3,405,999) 5,028,715
2023 12 31 (5,622,895) 8,976,842 (4,169,555) 4,451,963

50(d)

83/483



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)
oOoOooodn

IT

2024

84/483



EDINETOOOO

O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)
oOoOooodn

2024 58.4 110.0
80.5
2024 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31
>=25.0 58.4 54.5 42.3
>=25.0 110.0 88.8 106.1
80.5 76.7 76.7
2024
1.50 128.16
2024 2.05
140.25 30
2024
2024
( )

2024 12 31 (45 207,017) 75,047 (1,376,512)(2,257,940) 964,184 18,346,104 3,443,400 3,987,266

2023 1231 (14,661,992) 517,820 (1,065,013)(1,961,803) 299,076 17,033,573 3,614,927 3,776,588

50 b
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2024

AML

AML

AML

AML
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2024
2024 1,830 0.5 366,946
0.78 9.88 2.5
786,126 2.7 637,405 1.8
148,721 1.4 242,155
29.43 16.0 126,663 3.5
54,881
( )
2024 2023 () ()
637,405 655,013 (17,608) Q.7
148,721 151,445 (2,724) (1.8)
786,126 806,458 (20,332) 2.5)
242,155 238,698 3,457 1.4
125,739 148,808 (23,069) (15.5)
924 2,008 (1,084) (54.0)
417,308 416,944 364 0.1
4,519 5,022 (503) (10.0)
421,827 421,966 (139) (0.0)
54,881 56,850 1,969 (3.5)
366,946 365,116 1,830 0.5
365,863 363,993 1,870 0.5
1,083 1,123 (40) (3.6)
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2024 17,608 2.7 637,405
81.1 22,909 1.6 1,427,948
€Y
40,517 5.4 790,543 LPR
NIM 1.23 1.42 18
19
( )
2024 2023

) )
27,599,928 937,938 3.40 25,006,605 951,845 3.81
11,723,126 365,208 3.12 10,266,019 338,267 3.30
&) 3,161,419 54,174 1.71 3,230,841 53,815 1.67
@ 2,496,488 70,628 2.83 2,172,554 61,112 2.81
44,980,961 1,427,948 3.17 40,676,019 1,405,039 3.45

2,757,010 2,510,696

(853,348) (776,831)

46,884,623 42,409,884
32,745,057 564,039 1.72 31,141,446 589,688 1.89
® 5,937,956 156,622 2.64 4,058,487 103,529 2.55
2,070,321 69,882 3.38 1,508,148 56,809 3.77
40,753,334 790,543 1.94 36,708,081 750,026 2.04

2,168,164 2,065,143

42,921,498 38,773,224

637,405 655,013
1.23 1.41
1.42 1.61
)
)
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( )
2024 2023
« )
)
88,620 (102,527) (13,907)
45,420 (18,479) 26,941
(933) 1,292 359
9,081 435 9,516
142,188 (119,279) 22,909
27,291 (52,940) (25,649)
49,440 3,653 53,093
18,955 (5.882) 13,073
95,686 (55,169) 40,517
46,502 (64,110) (17,608)
13,907 1.5 937,938
41
10.4
( )
2024 2023
) )
6,553,251 178,067 2.72 5,655,318 175,442 3.10
21,046,677 759,871 3.61 19,351,287 776,403 4.01
27,599,928 937,938 3.40 25,006,605 951,845 3.81
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( )
2024 2023
) ()
16,213,330 528,356 3.26 14,300,597 510,998 3.57
1,516,543 18,516 1.22 1,179,865 17,341 1.47
8,597,971 314,074 3.65 8,225,400 348,029 4.23
1,272,084 76,992 6.05 1,300,743 75,477 5.80
27,599,928 937,938 3.40 25,006,605 951,845 3.81
26,941 8.0 365,208
14.2 18
359 0.7 54,174
9,516 15.6 70,628
25,649 4.3 564,039

17
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( )
2024 2023
) ()
7,836,374 181,905 2.32 7,503,647 199,149 2.65
6,762,187 60,071 0.89 7,228,582 73,564 1.02
14,598,561 241,976 1.66 14,732,229 272,713 1.85
10,994,438 261,960 2.38 9,535,044 254,834 2.67
6,004,057 10,333 0.17 5,807,411 15,135 0.26
16,998,495 272,293 1.60 15,342,455 269,969 1.76
1,148,001 49,770 4.34 1,066,762 47,006 4.41
32,745,057 564,039 1.72 31,141,446 589,688 1.89
53,093 51.3 156,622
13,073 23.0 69,882
NCD
2024 2,724 1.8 148,721
18.9 9,960 8.3 109,397

7,236 22.6 39,324
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( )
2024 2023 () ()
42,755 45,418 (2,663) (5.9)
19,724 20,060 (336) @.n
17,880 22,582 (4,702) (20.8)
17,853 17,906 (53) 0.3)
10,850 11,770 (920) (7.8)
8,045 7,994 51 0.6
4,185 7,296 (3,111) (42.6)
2,019 1,950 69 3.5
2,866 2,915 (49) a.n
126,177 137,891 (11,714) (8.5)
16,780 18,534 (1,754) (9.5)
109, 397 119,357 (9,960) (8.3)
9,960 8.3 109,397
( )
2024 2023 () ()
19,440 14,928 4,512 30.2
22,961 21,560 1,401 6.5
3,077) (4,400) 1,323
39,324 32,088 7,236 22.6
7,236 22.6 39,324
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( )

2024 2023 () ()

144,554 141,405 3,149 2.2
27,274 28,534 (1,260) (4.4)

10,765 10,662 103 1.0

5,157 4,429 728 16.4

54,405 53,668 737 1.4

242,155 238,698 3,457 1.4

23,069 15.5 125,739
20,943 14.6 122,479
1,084 54.0 924
14 30
1,969 3.5 54,881
25 13.01
( )
2024 2023

() ()

786,126 100.0 806,458 100.0

382,329 48.6 381,914 47.3

310,138 39.5 317,856 39.4

89,675 11.4 101,420 12.6

3,984 0.5 5,268 0.7

421,827 100.0 421,966 100.0

244,892 58.1 186,946 44.3

98,710 23.4 150,474 35.7

75,270 17.8 77,165 18.3

2,955 0.7 7,381 1.7

49
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( )
2024 2023

() ()

786,126 100.0 806,458 100.0

23,610 3.0 24,896 3.1

151,491 19.3 155,716 19.3

105,074 13.4 115,266 14.3

163,709 20.8 161,992 20.1

111,541 14.2 117,206 14.5

124,922 15.9 132,478 16.4

29,793 3.8 30,429 3.8

76,019 9.6 68,533 8.5
.......................................................... G

421,827 100.0 421,966 100.0

32,139 7.6 (16,378) (3.9)

80,715 19.1 95,935 22.7

43,876 10.4 60,159 14.3

102,730 24.4 104,324 24.7

49,374 11.7 57,560 13.6

55,680 13.2 70,825 16.8

11,054 2.6 11,207 2.7

46,259 11.0 38,334 9.1

49
2024
1
GBC+

NCD
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2024 4,124,667 9.2 48,821,746
2,285,747 8.8
28,372,229 2,303,908 19.4 14,153,576
719,382 17.8 3,322,911
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

) ()

28,372,229 - 26,086,482 -

56,624 - 56,452 _

815,072 - 756,001 -

® 27,613,781 56.6 25,386,933 56.8

14,153,576 29.0 11,849,668 26.5

3,322,911 6.8 4,042,293 9.0

1,219,876 2.5 1,116,717 2.5

1,210,217 2.5 1,224,257 2.7

1,301,385 2.6 1,077,211 2.5

48,821,746 100.0 44,697,079 100.0

) 23
2024 2,285,747 8.8 28,372,229

2,304,056 9.4 26,695,581
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31

) ()
17,482,223 61.6 16,145,204 61.9
3,819,683 13.5 3,681,064 14.1
13,662,540 48.1 12,464,140 47.8
1,932,286 6.8 1,287,657 4.9
8,957,720 31.6 8,653,621 33.2
6,083,180 21.5 6,288,468 24.1
421,195 1.5 328,286 1.3
1,677,981 5.9 1,347,136 5.2
775,364 2.7 689,731 2.6
28,372,229 100.0 26,086,482 100.0

1,337,019

8.3 138,619 1,198,400
304,099 3.5

92,909 28.3% 330,845

24.6%
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2024
2024
2,303,908 19.4 14,153,576 2,287,195
20.1 13,644,922

( )

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
() )
13,644,922 96.4 11,357,727 95.9
196,993 1.4 187,835 1.6
178,941 1.3 183,391 1.5
132,720 0.9 120,715 1.0
14,153,576 100.0 11,849,668 100.0
( )

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
) ()
10,422,907 76.4 8,759,237 77.1
1,097,125 8.0 811,946 7.1
1,398,606 10.3 1,065,147 9.4
726,284 5.3 721,397 6.4
13,644,922 100.0 11,357,727 100.0

1,663,670 19.0
285,179 35.1 333,459
31.3 4,887 0.7

( )

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
) ()
O 83 0.0 117 0.0
750,923 5.5 690,280 6.0
12 2,337,828 17.1 1,495,238 13.2
4,992,268 36.6 4,219,958 37.2
5,563,820 40.8 4,952,134 43.6
13,644,922 100.0 11,357,727 100.0
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( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
) )
12,703,351 93.1 10,497,153 92.4
619,013 4.5 554,737 4.9
322,558 2.4 305,837 2.7
13,644,922 100.0 11,357,727 100.0
2,206,198 21.0
64,276 11.6 16,721 5.5

( )

2024 12 31 2003 12 31
) )
1,010,439 7.1 811,957 6.9
3,201,152 23.3 2,230,862 18.8
9,851,985 69.6 8,806,849 74.3
14,153,576 100.0 11,849,668 100.0

2024 . 2,405,422
1,097,125 1,308,297

45.6 54.4
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10

( )

€))
2024 30,527 1.85 2029 24 -
2015 22,439 4.21 2025 13 -
2024 21,480 1.80 2027 23 -
2020 19,571 3.23 2030 23 -
2024 19,550 1.80 2027 -
2022 19,521 2.77 2032 10 24 -
2020 18,804 2.96 2030 17 -
2022 18,287 2.90 2032 19 -
2019 17,482 3.45 2029 20 -
2024 17,260 1.66 2026 -

2024
3,913,989 9.6 44,834,480
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

) )

34,836,973 7.7 33,521,174 81.9

4,590,965 10.2 3,369,858 8.2

1,523,555 3.4 1,018,106 2.5

2,028,722 4.5 1,369,777 3.3

1,854,265 4.2 1,641,576 4.1

44,834,480 100.0 40,920,491 100.0

102/483



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)
oOoOooodn

2024 1,315,799
3.9 34,836,973 702,523
4.3 1,975,942 11.9
1,101,811 5.7 171,608 1.3
1,308,594 4.1 33,146,429
7,205 0.4 1,690,544
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
() )
8,349,110 24.0 8,843,237 26.4
7,158,295 20.5 7,366,691 22.0
15,507,405 44.5 16,209,928 48.4
12,077,665 34.7 10,481,727 31.3
6,463,845 18.5 6,083,841 18.1
18,541,510 53.2 16,565,568 49.4
) 228,721 0.7 210,185 0.6
559,337 1.6 535,493 1.6
34,836,973 100.0 33,521,174 100.0
)
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
) ()
31,864 0.1 32,408 0.1
6,661,782 19.1 7,120,750 21.2
4,472,710 12.8 4,618,362 13.8
9,496,212 27.3 8,811,355 26.3
5,159,595 14.8 4,855,178 14.5
5,430,660 15.6 5,219,348 15.6
1,953,728 5.6 1,768,620 5.3
1,630,422 4.7 1,095,153 3.2
34,836,973 100.0 33,521,174 100.0
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1,221,107 36.2 4,590,965
505,449 49.6 1,523,555
658,945 48.1 2,028,722
NCD
2024 210,678 5.6 3,987,266
212,954 5.7 3,969,841
21
47
CBPL
2024 1,337,019 8.3
17,482,223 702,523 4.3 15,507,405
Global Finance Best Corporate Bank in China Euromoney Best
Corporate Bank in China The Asset Project Finance House of the Year Global

Finance Best Domestic Bank for Belt and Road
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22
160
Chunmiao Action Qiushi Action
SRDI
1CBC 2024
3
ICBC Loan for Upgrade
and Renewal
2024 4.4
2.1
1,300
+
Secure Energy Supplies
2024 NFRA
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Trade & Investment Forum Austria Connect China

Global Tour, Global Win

1,289,900 13,348,600

665,563 29.9
616,600

Quick Lending for Operation Online Revolving Loan
SRDI

Quick Lending for Operation

Manufacturing e Loan

Online Revolving Loan e-Quick Loan

106/483
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China-Africa

2024
11.6
2024
2,893,315
2,083,400
3.30

Digital Supply Chain

Digital Supply Chain

Inclusion for Everyone
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One

Customer + N Products
ICBC

Business Matchmaker

Double Excellence
ICBC e Social Security
4,087
ICBC Cloud Healthcare Intelligent Housing
Intelligent Education Digital Countryside

ICBC

10
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ICBC 12

Expresses, Four Integrated and Three Clouds

12,000

Creditor Mate

Cloud Performance Management ICBC E Enterprise Payment
ICBC Pooling Standard + Integrated
2024 15,059,000
12,747 2,043,000
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Five

API

Bank Account Management

ICBC e BillPay



MEA
China Financial Advisers for Overseas M&A Deals

Best Bank for M&A in China

ABS REIT

1.92

ESG 153

651,595
22
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M A Plus

China Financial Advisers for Deals

2024

166,926

39

584

Global Finance

ESG

2,675
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SRDI Discounting Technology Innovation Discounting
Health and Elderly Care Bills Rural Revitalization Discounting One-Click ICBC i
Green Discount Pro
PBC
70
BETA1.0
2024 36.2 3,700,250
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2024
GBC
Zhi
Cun Bao and Ling Cun Bao
Ease Long-term Loan Repay
as You Wish 1CBC
7*24 Quick Redemption Zhi Xiang Huan WM Night Market
Tian Tian Ying T+0
Wealth Academy Intelligent Asset Allocation Service

own + third-party + e-CNY

Moneylink Account

AML AML

19,172,000
68.6
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Happiness 1+4
ICBC i Xiaoyu

Intelligent Brain 2.0

Global Finance Best Consumer Lending Bank in China Best Wealth Management
Provider The Asset Best Digital Wealth Management Experience in China Best Risk
Management Project in China Retail Banking Best Pension Finance Award

2024 766 22.84
1,975,942 11.9 18,541,510
304,099 3.5 8,957,720 6,541
557 787
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Entrepreneurs® Partner Bank
2,000
Prospering Enterprises Tour
ICBC e Enterprise+
ICBC
Partners in Innovation for A Brighter Future
PWM The Asset Best Private Bank in China The Asian Banker Best
Private Banking Entrepreneurial Service in China PWM Best Digital Private Bank in
Asia China Securities Journal Golden Bull Award for Private Banking Wealth
Best Charity Service Award
2024 26,000 9.9 289,000
4,043 13.2 3.47
I GO
JD Xiaomi
1CBC
ICBC e Life 7.0
8
ICBC e-Life e-Life station + Meituan Community
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107 232,000
CISCE
ICBC PASS
ICBC PAY
2024 1,283 1,133
150 775,364
2024 1CBC 19.03 2.13

ICBC Asset Management
SRDI

ESG

REIT
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2024 2,121,075 I1CBC
1,961,351
FMI
2024 8.1
4.5 3.3
STAR 200 STAR Composite Index ETF
1CBC
QDI

ICBC Custody Innovation Cooperation Forum

1CBC RMB
EU
2024
2.1

ICBC The Asian Banker Best Mega Custodian
CHINAFUND China Fund Industry Yinghua

Bank in China The Asset Best Custodian, Bank

Award — OQutstanding ETF Custodian

2024 28.0

26.2

ICBC Aixiangban
Happy Life

WeChat ICBC Services
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Pension Insurance Management Centre
Occupational Annuities Scheme Outstanding Trustee The

Economic Observer 2024 Excellent Bank in Pension Financial Services

PBC

SFISF
CFETS
Al LLM
CFETS

Outstanding Foreign Currency Repo Member
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The Asset Top Investment Houses in Asian G3 Bonds

( oTC ) oTC
13 oTC

60

2024 4,046
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oooooog
Ruyi Gold Ingot Victory in Hand (Silver) Gold by the
Gram
70
SGE
SGE SGE International Board
2024 SGE
SGE Excellent Financial
Member — First Prize Excellent Depository Bank of the Year
Chunrong Action 2024
4.8
33.8 273,174 10
2024
6,487
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Chunxu Action
FDI FDI
2024 9.8
BRICS BRICS
China-Europe Business Council
CEBC
Belt and Road Bankers Roundtable BRBR
2024
49 20
408 31 254
143 1,461

ICBC Global Pay
YES I1CBC
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2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
206,670 201,941 1,126 551 96 95
144,381 136,959 1,700 1,522 88 90
87,152 87,215 m 786 70 74
40,157 41,367 349 386 153 153
- - - - 1 1
(44,509)  (50,847)
433,851 416,635 3,946 3,245 408 413
o 3,692 3,573 456 454
437,543 420,208 4,402 3,699 408 413
)
2024
437,543 6.5
172,140 164,255

4,402 7.6
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+X
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ICBC
ICBC
CSRC QDI
RQFII
ICBC
REIT
ICBC Hebei Expressway REIT ICBC Mengneng Clean Energy REIT
2024 I1CBC 254 580
2.09
1
ICBC
ICBC SRDI
ICBC
COMAC €919
€919 €909 I1CBC
40

90
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1CBC

1CBC
1CBC

1CBC

1CBC

1CBC

All-in-One Code

1CBC

123/483

Worry-free Journey
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ICBC
ICBC
ICBC
2024
ICBC
I1CBC
International New Quality Productive Forces Stock Index The Asset
Best Bond Advisor in Hong Kong
1CBC
ICBC
1CBC
1CBC
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1CBC
1CBC
NFRA
1CBC
ESG
1CBC
1CBC
7*24 Quick Redemption Zhi Xiang Huan WM Night Market
ICBC
Clear
Management, Clean Wealth
County-area Consumer Protection Tour
ICBC People.cn People
” s Craftsmanship Brand Award China Securities Journal Golden Bull Award for

Bank Wealth Management
2024 1CBC 1,961,351
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I1CBC
( )
2023 12 31 2024 12 31
1,011 1,552,597 522 223,855 643 299,248 890 1,885,335 96.1
190 54,880 115 66,875 121 54,305 178 76,016 3.9
906 1,552,905 559 238,259 668 325,170 797 1,877,046 95.7
53 5,578 - - 11 10,179 36 2,370 0.1
242 48,994 78 52,471 85 18,204 235 81,935 4.2
1,201 1,607,477 637 290,730 764 353,553 1,068 1,961,351 100.0
ICBC 2024
( )
822,618 40.6
1,011,226 50.0
30,941 1.5
@ 160,083 7.9
2,024,868 100.0
C ) QDI
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4-(D
837,808 579,194
1,063,495 1,853,132
1,471,468
1,254,570 5,079,115
1,834,186 6,550,583
415,683
721,152 2,143,460
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33 1,523,555 1,018,106
34 445,419 385,198
35 34,836,973 33,521,174
31,880 63,322
36 2,028,722 1,369,777
28 4,278 3,930
37 929,215 818,642
44,834,480 40,920,491
38 356,407 356,407
39 324,344 354,331
134,614 134,614
189,730 219,717
40 1,275,004 1,134,082
2,014,086 1,912,067
3,969,841 3,756,887
17,425 19,701
3,987,266 3,776,588
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20 23,933,967 21,909,988
21 4,362,723 1,478,151
22 23,744,458 24,019,922
23 541,782,383 498,091,625
24 277,693,161 232,490,486
19,824,813 15,930,596

64,572,402 43,769,512

193,295,946 172,790,377

26 1,439,264 1,270,944
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32 1,492,219 1,233,294
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33 29,892,149 19,975,240
34 8,739,121 7,557,585
35 683,501,410 657,685,434
625,486 1,242,378
36 39,803,526 26,875,025
28 83,934 77,107
37 18,231,198 16,061,756
879,652,498 802,860,033
38 6,992,705 6,992,705
39 6,363,629 6,951,974
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3,722,503 4,310,848
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356,407 354,331 148,270 428,359 561,637 24,047  (15,608)  (2,901)  (9,722) 1,134,082 1,912,067 3,756,887 19,701 3,776,588
- - - - - - - - - - 365,863 365,863 1,083 366,946
- - - - - 53,534 9,516  (1,280) (9,381) 52,389 - 52,389 (1,200) 51,189
- - - - - 53,534 9,516  (1,280) (9,381) 52,389 365,863 418,252 (117) 418,135
— 2022
)
17 - - - - - - - - - - (160,312) (160,312) —-  (160,312)
17 - - - - - - - - - - (14,963)  (14,963) - (14,963)
) - - - 36,006 - - - - - 36,006  (36,006) - - -
) - - - - 53,179 - - - - 53,179 (53,179) - - -
- 50,000 0 - - - - - - @ - 49,998 872 50,870
—  (79,987) @13) - - - - - - @13) - (80,000) - (80,000)
- - - - - - - - - - - - (116) (116)
- - - - - (616) - - - (616) 616 - - -
- - (1) - - - - - - 1) - (1) (2,915)  (2,936)
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( ) 2024 51,109 2023 109,203
() 98 1,237
() 928

189/483



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)

OooooOodd
2022 12 31
356,407 354,331 148,280 392,487 496,719 767 (17,241)  (2,987) (1,129) 1,016,896 1,767,537 3,495,171 18,655 3,513,826
- - - - - 1,576 - - (4,848)  (3,272) 4,210 938 655 1,593
2023
356,407 354,331 148,280 392,487 496,719 2,343 (17,241) (2,987) (5,977) 1,013,624 1,771,747 3,496,109 19,310 3,515,419
- - - - - - - - - - 363,993 363,993 1,123 365,116
- - - - - 21,954 1,633 86  (3,745) 19,928 - 19,928 (701) 19,227
- - - - - 21,954 1,633 86  (3,745) 19,928 363,993 383,921 422 384,343
— 2022
17 - - - - - - - - - —  (108,169) (108,169) —  (108,169)
17 - - - - - - - - - - (14,964)  (14,964) - (14,94)
) - - - 35,872 - - - - - 35,872 (35,872) - - -
) - - - - 64,918 - - - - 64,918  (64,918) - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - - 31) 31)
- - - - - (250) - - - (250) 250 - - -
- - (10) - - - - - - 10) - (10) - (10)
2023 12 31
356,407 354,331 148,270 428,359 561,637 24,047 (15,608) (2.,901) (9,722) 1,134,082 1,912,067 3,756,887 19,701 3,776,588
() 112 891
() 654
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2024
6,992,705 6,951,974 2,909,057 8,404,404 11,019,318 471,802 (306,229) (56,918) (190,746) 22,250,689 37,514,755 73,710,123 386,534 74,096,657
- - - - - - - - - - 7,178,232 7,178,232 21,248 7,199,481
- - - - - 1,050,337 186,704 (25,114) (184,055) 1,027,872 - 1,027,872 (23,544) 1,004,328
- - - - - 1,050,337 186,704 (25,114) (184,055) 1,027,872 7,178,232 8,206,104  (2,296) 8,203,809
2022
)
17 - - - - - - - - - - (3,145,321) (3,145,321) - (3,145,321)
17 - - - - - - - - - - (293,574) (293,574) - (293,574)
) - - - 706,438 - - - - - 706,438  (706,438) - - -
) - - - - 1,043,372 - - - - 1,043,372 (1,043,372) - - -
- 981,000 (39) - - - - - - (39) - 980,961 17,109 998,069
- (1,569,345) (255) - - - - - - (255) - (1,569,600) - (1,569,600)
- - - - - - - - - - - - (2,218)  (2,276)
- - - - - (12,086) - - - (12,086) 12,086 - - -
- - (412) - - - - - - (412) - (412) (57,192)  (57,604)
2024 12 31
6,992,705 6,363,620 2,908,351 9,110,841 12,062,690 1,510,053 (119,525) (82,031) (374,801) 25,015,578 39,516,367 77,888,280 341,879 78,230,159
( ) 2024 1,002,759 2023 2,142,563
() 1,923 24,270
() 18,207
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2022 12 31
6,992,705 6,951,974 2,909,254 7,700,595 9,745,627 15,049 (338,268) (58,605) (22,151) 19,951,500 34,679,076 68,575,255 366,011 68,941,266
- - - - - 30,921 - - (95,118) (64,197) 82,600 18,404 12,851 31,255
2023
6,992,705 6,951,974 2,909,254 7,700,595 9,745,627 45,970 (338,268) (58,605) (117,269) 19,887,303 34,761,676 68,593,659 378,862 68,972,521
_ _ — — - - - - - - 7,141,543 7,141,543 22,033 7,163,576
- - - - — 430,737 32,039 1,687 (73,477) 390,987 - 390,987 (13,754) 377,234
- - - - — 430,737 32,039 1,687 (73,477) 390,987 7,141,543 7,532,530 8,280 7,540,810
2022
17 - - - - - - - - - - (2,122,276) (2,122,276) - (2,122,276)
17 - - - - - - - - - - (293,594)  (293,594) - (293,594)
) - - - 703,809 - - - - - 703,809  (703,809) - - -
) - - - - 1,273,691 - - - - 1,273,691 (1,273,691) - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - - (608) (608)
- - - - - (4,905) - - - (4,905) 4,905 - - -
- - (196) - - - - - - (196) - (196) - (196)
2023 12 31
6,992,705 6,951,974 2,909,057 8,404,404 11,019,318 471,802 (306,229) (56,918) (190,746) 22,250,689 37,514,755 73,710,123 386,534 74,096,657
() 2,197 17,481
) 12,831
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12 31

2024 2023
421,827 421,966
(4,519) (5.022)
29,553 30,345
11 5,157 4,429
14 125,739 148,808
924 2,008
(4,990) (4,444)
50,929 40,967
(1,994) (1,915)
(24,190) (23,510)
(365,208) (338,267)
(12,220) ,711)
(1,308) (1,813)
(3,067) (4,020)
216,633 266,821
165,650 (178,368)
356,999 85,731
(190,081) (26,740)
(21,896) 23,917
(2,277,977) (2,898,902)
(68,180) (104,618)
(2,035, 485) (3,098,980)
12,214 (714)
(61,745) 85,524
1,065,314 160,197
486,521 437,224
51,074 2,116
821,679 3,531,968
108,292 120,166
2,483,349 4,336,481
664,497 1,504,322
(85,303) (87,320)
579,194 1,417,002
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2024 2023
(43,297) (31,201)
19,193 7,527
(6,499,586) (4,683,824)
4,567,823 3,453,713
(7.,700) (1,372)
5,951 2,730
387,378 360,575
98,770 -
(1,471,468) (891,852)
50,872 -
2,092,588 1,422,308
(52,973) (49,151)
(1,463,682) (956, 689)
(80,000) -
(109,203) (108, 169)
(14,963) (14,964)
(116) (31)
(6,840) (7.860)
415,683 285,444
(476,591) 810,594
2,755,732 1,926,851
11,263 18,287
42 2,290,404 2,755,732
1,121,140 1,117,401
(679,124) (617,791)

194/483

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)

12 31
2024 2023

8,276,246 8,278,973
(88,663) (98,532)
579,830 595,369
11 101,180 86,897
14 2,466,999 2,919,613
18,129 39,397
(97,904) (87,191)
999,227 803,773
(39,122) (37,572)
(474,608) (461,266)
(7.165,381) (6,636,799)
(239, 756) (53,190)
(25,663) (35,571)
(60,175) (78,872)
4,250,339 5,235,028
3,250,053 (3,499, 580)
7,004,320 1,682,042
(3.729,389) (524,639)
(429,600) 469,252
(44,693,909) (56,876,457)
(1,337,692) (2,052,605)
(39,936,216) (60,801,988)
239,639 (14,009)
(1,211,437) 1,677,981
20,901,461 3,143,065
9,545,542 8,578,335
1,002,072 41,516
16,121,342 69,297,212
2,124,689 2,357,657
48,723,307 85,081,757
13,037,431 29,514,798
(1,673,645) (1,713,218)
11,363,786 27,801,579
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2024 2023
(849, 487) (612,164)
376,567 147,680
(127,521,877) (91,896,627)
89,620,687 67,761,849
(151,074) (26,919)
116,759 53,563
7,600,356 7,074,482
1,937,867 -
(28,870,202) (17,498,136)
998,109 -
41,056,577 27,905,683
(1,039,330) (964,343)
(28,717,441) (18,770,238)
(1,569,600) -
(2,142,563) (2,122,276)
(293,574) (293,594)
(2,276) (608)
(134,201) (154,213)
8,155,700 5,600,411
(9,350,715) 15,903,854
54,067,462 37,804,817
220,980 358,791
42 44,937,726 54,067,462
21,996,767 21,923,408
(13,324,413) (12,121,059)
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2024 2023
937,938 951,845
599,296 581,117
319,897 353,039
18,745 17,689
365,208 338,267
54,174 53,815
() 70,628 61,112
1,427,948 1,405,039
(564,039) (589,688)
() (156,622) (103,529)
(69,882) (56,809)
(790,543) (750,026)
637,405 655,013
)
)
2024 2023
42,755 45,418
19,724 20,060
17,880 22,582
17,853 17,906
10,850 11,770
8,045 7,994
4,185 7,296
2,019 1,950
2,866 2,915
126,177 137,891
(16,780) (18,534)
109,397 119,357
2024
15,850 2023 17,179
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13,644 12,063
4,293 4,421
1,503 (1,556)
19,440 14,928
2024 2023
FVTPL 13,893 10,496
FVTPL (5,087) (4,163)
FVTOCI 2,490 3,788
FVTOCI
3,067 4,020
914 884
2,153 3,136
3,446 2,596
65 660
22,961 21,560
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10.
2024 2023
10,840 10,684
(7.606) (9,028)
1,352 1,925
(6,911) (7.,785)
(752) (196)
(3,077) (4,400)
11.
2024 2023
93,872 93,496
30,941 29,422
() 19,741 18,487
144,554 141,405
15,250 15,995
7,182 7,479
2,724 2,955
2,118 2,105
27,274 28,534
5,157 4,429
() 28,705 29,442
10,765 10,662
25,700 24,226
242,155 238,698
)
() 195 2023 192
() 2024 5,697 2023 4,593

2,249 2023 1,590

222/483



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)
oOoOooodn

2024 12 31
@D @ A @O=DO+@D+3)
) 673 235 - 908
)
448 159 - 607
605 229 - 834
) - - - -
- - 440 440
- - 503 503
() - - 377 377
) - - 208 208
() - - 37 37
) - - - -
- - 50 50
- - 250 250
- - 250 250
)
56 19 - 75
() - - 130 130
() - - 313 313
) - - 449 449
1,782 642 3,007 5,431
2015
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2024
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)
- 384 531 227 1,142 - 1,142
- 346 417 220 1,043 - 1,043
470 - - - 470 - 470
490 - - - 490 - 490
440 - - - 440 - 440
420 - - - 420 - 420
) - - - - - - -
50 - - - 50 - 50
250 - - - 250 - 250
250 - - - 250 - 250

)
- 384 531 227 1,142 - 1,142

)
- 86 119 54 259 - 259

)
520 - - - 520 - 520
) - - - - - - -
2,890 1,200 1,658 728 6,476 - 6,476

2015

2023
2023
PRC
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13.
12
48(9)
2024 2023
20,136 16,672
38,003 59,475
505 430
58,644 76,577
2024 2023
9,000,001 11,000,000 2 -
11,000,001 13,000,000 2 1
13,000,001 15,000,000 - 1
15,000,001 17,000,000 1 1
17,000,001 19,000,000 - 2
5 5
2024
2023
14.
2024 2023
23 122,479 143,422
(507) 7,389
FVTOCI (675) 568
690 (3.585)
3,752 1,014

125,739 148,808
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15.
@
2024 2023
47,474 58,651
1,389 1,101
4,998 5,211
53,861 65,053
1,020 (8,203)
54,881 56,850
2021 12 -
15%
2024 12 31
IAS 12
®)
PRC 25
PRC
2024 2023
421,827 421,966
PRC 105,457 105,492
(672) (288)
( 22,556 19,580
(69,966) (65,266)
(270) (449)
(2,224) (2,219)
54,881 56,850
)
() PRC
16.
2024 12 31 345,454
2023 347,516 52
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17.
2024 2023
2024 0.1434 51,109 -
2023 0.3064
2022 0.3035 109,203 108,169
5,819 5,842
9,144 9,122
14,963 14,964
12 31
2024 0.1646 58,664 -
2023 0.3064 - 109,203
18.
2024 2023

365,863 363,993

(14,963) (14,964)
350,900 349,029
356,407 356,407
0.98 0.98
0.98 0.98
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19.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
72,069 66,699
() 2,634,893 2,832,799
() 393,112 952,050
221,179 188,923
1,658 1,822
3,322,911 4,042,293
() PBOC
2024 12 31
2023 12 31 2023 12 31
PBOC
( ) PBOC
20.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
247,111 221,700
58,112 24,145
172,465 164,954
3,777 3,885
481,465 414,684
(700) (426)
480,765 414,258
190,427 265,904
221,474 209,164
323,836 222,934
7,021 7,591
742,758 705,593
(3,647) (3,134)
739,111 702,459
1,219,876 1,116,717
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
11,227,428 194,358  (158,566) 6,015,214 52,830 (41,618)
5,312,282 13,114 (15,019) 4,231,434 15,142 (16,273)
1,347,756 14,889 (24,210) 1,003,045 7,367 (18, 360)
17,887,466 222,361  (197,795) 11,249,693 75,339 (76,251)
@
2024 12 31
- 949 - - 949 13 -
53,203 82,784 4,645 - 140,632 2,213 (1,203)
38 1,900 58 1 1,997 258 ®)
53,241 85,633 4,703 1 143,578 2,484 (1,206)
2023 12 31
- 2,417 1,863 - 4,280 99 (6)
42,935 82,685 4,322 - 129,942 761 (1,052)
922 322 82 2 1,328 74 an
43,857 85,424 6,267 2 135,550 934 (1,075)
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41,479 - €)) 132
() 35,349 (16,733) (524) (4,154)
77,919 (64,551) (1,445) (4,313)
() FVTOCI
)
2023 12 31
() 4,733 (27,775) 248 593
39,997 - 169 169
() 30,146 (41,615) (290) (3,630)
74,876 (69,390) 127 (2.868)
() FVTOCI
)
2024 2023
®»
2024 2023
(533) 1,919
521 (1,988)
(12) (69)
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2024 12 31 2,362 11,249 34,319 10,692 58,622 2,083 (256)
2023 12 31 2,270 18,042 45,069 17,020 82,401 2,955 (416)
2024 12 31
() 50,613 (1,276) (359) 26
2,825 - (56) -
() 182 (2,531) 1 13
53,620 (3,807) (414) 39
() FVTOCI
)
2023 12 31
() 73,809 (1,404) (703) 62
3,429 - (90) -
) 3,267 - 92) -
80,505 (1,404) (885) 62
() FvTOCI
)
©
2024 12 31 1,587 2023 12 31
1,002 2024 2023
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83,971 27,845 72,958 26,884
®
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117,495 86,521
69,662 48,975
47,833 37,546
42,112 36,563
3,667 4,678
163,274 127,762
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188,935 109,077
1,000,277 1,073,854
721 909
(33) 97
1,189,900 1,183,743
FVTPL
20,317 40,514
1,210,217 1,224,257
23.
23.1
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
17,460,342 16,128,752
17,289,398 15,940,237
170,944 188,515
8,957,720 8,653,621
1,351 2,755
56,447 56,117
26,475,860 24,841,245
23.2(a) (815,072) (756,001)
25,660,788 24,085,244
FVTOCI
16,876 10,348
1,930,935 1,284,902
177 335
1,947,988 1,295,585
FVTPL
5,005 6,104
27,613,781 25,386,933
2024 12 31 FVTOCH 425 2023 12 31
390 23.2(h)
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- - 13,856 13,856
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2024 12 31 354,083 156,502 304,487 815,072
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46,568 (42,004) (4,564) -
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®) FvTocI
2024 361 - 29 390
(@) 4 - -
[6h) 46 ©) 36
(©)] 1 1 @
2024 12 31 353 51 21 425
2023 510 - 28 538
(46) - 46 -
(108) - 224 116
- - (270) (270)
5 - 1 6
2023 12 31 361 - 29 390
2024
235,494 2023 436,289
68,453 2023 101,522
78,229 2023 223,294
2023
24.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
FVTPL ©) 1,010,439 811,957
FVTOCI (b) 3,291,152 2,230,862
©) 9,851,985 8,806,849
14,153,576 11,849,668

237/483



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)

ooooOoog
@ FVTPL
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

395,728 186,993
27,272 21,338
73,431 64,517
67,721 84,302
564,152 357,150
18,048 14,650
582,200 371,800

FVTPL
6,904 372
184 181
653 222
7,741 775
34,735 42,868
42,476 43,643

FVTPL
8,416 13,037
156,979 166,690
1,693 2,517
167,088 182,244
93,719 90,396
124,956 123,874
385,763 396,514
1,010,439 811,957
4,375 3,204
29,227 20,629
705,379 516,336
738,981 540,169
3,582 2,937
24,348 27,188
83,837 74,921
111,767 105,046
4,913 3,353
5,791 2,393
148,987 160,996
159,691 166,742
1,010,439 811,957
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() FVTOCH
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
1,673,679 1,076,400
512,411 184,168
398,174 293,463
588,449 566,522
27,787 22,099
3,200,500 2,142,652
5,426 5,421
85,226 82,789
3,291,152 2,230,862
146,519 123,348
389,928 339,324
2,664,053 1,679,980
3,200,500 2,142,652
5,426 5,421
11,398 5,681
4,899 4,363
68,929 72,745
85,226 82,789
3,291,152 2,230,862
2024 12 31 FVTOCI 92,821
31 2023 12 31 19,296 66
FVTOCI 2024 12
31 8,184 2023 12 31 4,267
2024 3,067 2023 4,020
914 2023 884
7,816 2023 20,496
674 2023 366
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FVTOCI
FVTOCI

2024 4,835 964 3,769 9,568
@17 (355) (43) (675)

7 26 99 132

2024 12 31 4,565 635 3,825 9,025
2023 4,794 1,009 3,527 9,330
40 (40) - -

(49) 49 - -

(13) (78) 659 568

63 24 (417) (330)

2023 12 31 4,835 964 3,769 9,568
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©
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
() 8,379,953 7,529,154
549,266 593,513
() 771,310 542,365
68,060 68,061
104,906 98,590
9,873,495 8,831,683
() 16,877 13,869
16 16
16,893 13,885
9,890,388 8,845,568
(38,403) (38,719)
9,851,985 8,806,849
36,281 38,843
233,832 200,976
9,568,021 8,555,776
9,838,134 8,795,595
13,851 11,254
13,851 11,254
9,851,985 8,806,849
269,046 236,482
() 1998 MOF 85,000 2023 12 31
85,000 2028
2.25
() 90,309 2023 12 31 90,309 2000
2001 312,996
10
2.25 MOF 2010
10 MOF 2020 2020
MOF
2021 10 MOF 2024 12 31
222,687 2023 12 31 222,687
)
2025 2039 2.84 6.08
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2024 36,009 11 2,699 38,719
(507) - - (507)
38 - 153 191
2024 12 31 35,540 11 2,852 38,403
2023 28,613 23 2,699 31,335
19 (19) - -
@ 2 - -
7,385 4 - 7,389
(6) 1 - ®)
2023 12 31 36,009 11 2,699 38,719
25.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2,712 2,712
160,571 160,571
163,283 163,283
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/
)
2024 2023
12 31 12 31 2024 12 31
100 100 HKD44,188 HKD54,738 oRC
1CBC )
1CBC
1CBC 100 100 HKD5,963 HKDS, 963 bR
89.33  89.33 MOP589 MOP12,064 bR
1CBC
1DR3, 706,100
PT. 1CBC 98.61  98.61 USD361
100 100 MYR833 MYR833
97.98  97.98  THB20,107 THB23,711
1cBC
100 100 KzT8,933 KzT8,933
100 100 NZD234 NZD234
1CBC
s A 100 100 EUR437 EUR437
1CBC PLC 100 100 USD200 USD200
ICBC PLC
; 60 60  USD1,083 USD839
1cBC 100 100 RUBL0,810 RUB10,810
1CBC 92.84  92.84  TRY12,770 USD425
1CBC GmbH 100 100 EUR200 EUR200
80 80 USD369 USD306
USA NA
100 100 USD50 USD50.25
LLC
1CBC 80 80 CAD208 CAD218.66
S A 100 100 MXNL,507 MXNL,597
s a 100 100 Real 202 Real 202
A 100 100 ARS373,751 USD904
1CBC 100 100 USD120 USD120
1CBC
. 80 80 RMB200 RVB433 PRC
1CBC
- 1CBC 100 100 RMB18,000 RVB11,000 PRC
1CBC-AXA
. 60 60  RMB12,505 RVB7,980 PRC
1CBC-AXA
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1CBC
* 1CBC 100 100 RWB27,000 RMB27,000 PRC

1CBC

. 100 100  RWB16,000 RMB16 000 PRC

1CBC

. 60 60 RMB200 RMB120 PRC

1CBC

. 100 100 RMB100 RMBL0O PRC
*
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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26.

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
71,072 61,868
2,285 2,910
73,357 64,778

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
59,428 50,973
14,448 14,324
73,876 65,297
(519) (519)
73,357 64,778

@

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
26,946 25,394
46,411 39,384
73,357 64,778

168
2024 12 31
19.59 2023 12 31 19.39
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

1,271,730 1,174,552
1,157,892 1,068,458
113,838 106,094
17,009 17,129
97,422 91,062
19.59% 19.39%
19,085 17,657
8,209 8,085
27,294 25,742
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®)
2,910 - (204)  (342) - (44) (35) 2,285 -
25,742 - - 3,356 @7 (1,878) 121 27,294 (348)
36,645 15,098  (5,713) 1,505 32 (1,553) (1,717) 44,297 a7
62,387 15,098  (5,713) 4,861 (15) (3.431) (1,596) 71,591 (519)
65,297 15,098  (5,917) 4,519 (15) (3.475) (1,631) 73,876 (519)
27.
2023 191,703 17,106 14,335 83,383 198,453 504,980
509 17,954 751 6,589 3,955 29,758
5,904 (10,685) - 136 4,645 -
(2,413) (155) (106) (6,350) (3,280)  (12,304)
2023 12 31
2024 195,703 24,220 14,980 83,758 203,773 522,434
1,383 10,449 811 7,142 17,701 37,486
3,291 (6,099) - 121 2,687 -
7,099 (7.418) ) (3,401) (8,939)  (12,746)
2024 12 31 207,476 21,152 15,704 87,620 215,222 547,174
2023 82,155 34 12,359 66,191 50,354 211,093
7,011 - 854 8,182 6,811 22,858
- - - - 1,297 1,297
(1,229) - (93) (6,224) (4,146)  (11,692)
2023 12 31
2024 87,937 34 13,120 68,149 54,316 223,556
7,045 - 804 7,456 7,083 22,388
- - - - 891 891
2,780 1 (96) (3,069) (1,664) (2,048)
2024 12 31 97,762 35 13,828 72,536 60,626 244,787
2023 12 31 107,766 24,186 1,860 15,609 149,457 298,878
2024 12 31 109,714 21,117 1,876 15,084 154,596 302,387
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2024 12 31 5,404 2023 12 31 6,421
2024 12 31
154,596 2023 12 31 149,457
2024 12 31
28,043 2023 12 31 72,257
2024 12 31 14,699 2023 12 31 17,670
28.
@
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
474,566 117,825 450,033 111,767
FVTPL
(40,707) (10,183) (16,762) (4,221)
FVTOCI
(112,174) (28,101) (35,609) 9,222)
45,935 11,477 46,529 11,623
(3.861) (971) (21,244) (5,278)
363,759 90,047 422,947 104,669
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
(90) (23) (109) (38)
FVTPL
7,573 1,693 7,729 1,701
FVTOCI
(333) (81) (146) 64
10,733 2,689 8,912 2,203
17,883 4,278 16,386 3,930
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@)
2024 2024
12 31
111,767 6,058 - 117,825
FVTPL
(4,221) (5,962) - (10,183)
FVTOCI
9,222) - (18,879) (28,101)
11,623 (146) - 11,477
(5.278) (715) 5,022 (971)
104,669 (765) (13,857) 90,047
2024 2024
12 31
(38) 15 - (23)
FVTPL
1,701 ®) - 1,693
FVTOCI
64 - (145) (81)
2,203 248 238 2,689
3,930 255 93 4,278
2023 2023
12 31
99,753 12,014 - 111,767
FVTPL
(1,194) (3,027) - (4,221)
FVTOCI
(2,449) - (6,773) 9,222)
10,839 784 - 11,623
(5,832) (942) 1,496 (5,278)
101,117 8,829 (5.277) 104,669
2023 2023
12 31
(196) 158 - (38)
FVTPL
1,845 (144) - 1,701
FVTOCI
710 - (646) 64
1,591 612 - 2,203
3,950 626 (646) 3,930
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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29.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
238,962 213,951
208,907 140,230
@) 24,466 28,538
13,960 14,438
(b) 19,566 9,357
1,197 7,034
© 6,186 6,502
3,684 3,425
110,303 121,963
627,231 545,438
(13,998) (11,891)
613,233 533,547
@
2023 37,837 20,418 395 58,650
6,231 1,106 162 7,499
(4,877) (6,873) 1,051 (10,699)
2023 12 31 2024
39,191 14,651 1,608 55,450
6,983 - 13 6,996
(2,567) (3,888) (1,162) (7,617)
2024 12 31 43,607 10,763 459 54,829
2023 21,156 3,516 325 24,997
6,730 689 95 7,514
(4,321) (1,414) 136 (5,599)
2023 12 31 2024
23,565 2,791 556 26,912
6,410 536 74 7,020
(2,508) (845) (216) (3,569)
2024 12 31 27,467 2,482 414 30,363
2023 35 855 -~ 890
1 (325) - (324)
2023 12 31 2024
36 530 - 566
1 (89) -~ (88)
2024 12 31 37 441 - 478
2024 12 31 15,590 11,330 1,052 27,972
2023 12 31 16,103 7,840 45 23,988
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@)
2024 2023
9,357 9,181
9,961 -
248 176
19,566 9,357
(401) (390)
19,165 8,967
el cou
cou
cou
cou
2024
©
2024 2023
5,604 5,878
582 624
6,186 6,502
(2,974) (3,116)
3,212 3,386
30.
2024 2024
12 31
3,560 586 - - 201 4,347
97 (64) - - _ 33
756,391 122,479 (85,127) 13,856 7,898 815,497
48,287 (1,182) G7) - 380 47,428
519 - - - - 519
11,522 891 - - 389 12,802
24,185 690 - - 284 25,159
39,691 3,263 (1,499) - 98 41,553
884,252 126,663 (86,683) 13,856 9,250 947,338
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2023 2023
12 31
1,500 2,040 - - 20 3,560
475 (387) - - 9 97
672,762 143,422 (72,991) 14,915 1,717) 756,391
40,665 7,957 (563) - 228 48,287
365 154 - - - 519
13,685 1,297 (3,619) - 159 11,522
27,640 (3,585) - - 130 24,185
40,159 (82) (1,298) 226 686 39,691
797,251 150,816 (78,471) 15,141 (485) 884,252
31.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

3,841,081 2,698,821

143,455 138,308

36,001 4,256

4,020,537 2,841,385

273,806 228,733

288,602 288,883

8,020 10,857

570,428 528,473

4,590,965 3,369,858
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32.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
) 61,362 51,843
) 10,562 5,647
4,132 5,369
76,056 62,859
)
FVTPL
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 2023
33.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
12,096 11,738
1,493,317 968,339
17,427 9,855
1,522,840 989,932
FVTPL
715 28,174
1,523,555 1,018,106
34.
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35.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
7,158,295 7,366,691
6,463,845 6,083,841
13,622,140 13,450,532
8,349,110 8,843,237
12,077,665 10,481,727
20,426,775 19,324,964
228,721 210,185
559,337 535,493
34,836,973 33,521,174
2024 12 31 142,531 2023 12 31 171,113
36.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
Tier
@
732,586 682,184
6,058 9,543
10,617 12,402
749,261 704,129
®
1,192,573 554,931
84,843 108,393
2,045 2,324
1,279,461 665,648
2,028,722 1,369,777
2024 12 31 1,114,660 2023 12 31 476,234
2024 2023
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() Tier

PBOC NFRA Tier

TLAC Tier TLAC
( ) ( )

2011  ICBC 01 2011-06-29 100 38,000 5.56 2011-06-30  2031-06-30  2011-08-30
2019  ICBC 02 Tier 2019-03-21 100 10,000 4.51 2019-03-25  2034-03-25  2019-03-26
2019  ICBC 04 Tier 2019-04-24 100 10,000 4.69 2019-04-26  2034-04-26  2019-04-28
2020  ICBC 01 Tier 2020-09-22 100 60,000 4.20 2020-09-24  2030-09-24  2020-09-25
2020  ICBC 02 Tier 2020-11-12 100 30,000 4.15 2020-11-16  2030-11-16  2020-11-17
2020  ICBC 03 Tier 2020-11-12 100 10,000 4.45 2020-11-16  2035-11-16  2020-11-17
2021  ICBC 01 Tier 2021-01-19 100 30,000 4.15 2021-01-21  2031-01-21  2021-01-22
2021  ICBC 02 Tier 2021-12-13 100 50,000 3.48 2021-12-15  2031-12-15  2021-12-16
2021  ICBC 03 Tier 2021-12-13 100 10,000 3.74 2021-12-15  2036-12-15  2021-12-16
2022 ICBC 01 Tier 2022-01-18 100 35,000 3.28 2022-01-20  2032-01-20  2022-01-21
2022 ICBC 02 Tier 2022-01-18 100 5,000 3.60 2022-01-20  2037-01-20  2022-01-21
2022  ICBC 03 Tier 2022-04-12 100 45,000 3.50 2022-04-14  2032-04-14  2022-04-15
2022  ICBC 04 Tier 2022-04-12 100 5,000 3.74 2022-04-14  2037-04-14  2022-04-15
2022 ICBC 03A Tier 2022-08-18 100 30,000 3.02 2022-08-22  2032-08-22  2022-08-23
2022  ICBC 03B Tier 2022-08-18 100 10,000 3.32 2022-08-22  2037-08-22  2022-08-23
2022  ICBC 04A Tier 2022-11-08 100 50,000 3.00 2022-11-10  2032-11-10  2022-11-11
2022  ICBC 04B Tier 2022-11-08 100 10,000 3.34 2022-11-10  2037-11-10  2022-11-11
2022 ICBC 05A Tier 2022-12-20 100 25,000 3.70 2022-12-22  2032-12-22  2022-12-23
2022  ICBC 05B Tier 2022-12-20 100 5,000 3.85 2022-12-22  2037-12-22  2022-12-23
2023 ICBC 01A Tier 2023-04-10 100 35,000 3.49 2023-04-12  2033-04-12  2023-04-13
2023  ICBC 01B Tier 2023-04-10 100 20,000 3.58 2023-04-12  2038-04-12  2023-04-13
2023  ICBC 02A Tier 2023-08-28 100 30,000 3.07 2023-08-30  2033-08-30  2023-08-31
2023  ICBC 02B Tier 2023-08-28 100 25,000 3.18 2023-08-30  2038-08-30  2023-08-31
2024  1CBC 01A TLAC 2024-05-15 100 30,000 2.25 2024-05-17  2028-05-17  2024-05-20
2024  1CBC 01B TLAC 2024-05-15 100 10,000 2.35 2024-05-17  2030-05-17  2024-05-20
2024  ICBC 01A(BC) Tier 2024-08-27 100 42,000 2.25 2024-08-29  2034-08-29  2024-08-30
2024  ICBC 01B(BC) Tier 2024-08-27 100 8,000 2.40 2024-08-29  2039-08-29  2024-08-30
2024  ICBC 02(BC) Tier 2024-10-24 100 40,000 2.37 2024-10-28  2034-10-28  2024-10-29
2024  1CBC 01(BC) TLAC 2024-12-17 100 10,000 1.76 2024-12-19  2028-12-19  2024-12-20
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2015 Tier
( ) ( )
(C ) C ) )
2015
5 2015-9-21 99.189 2,000 14,600 4.875 2015-9-21  2025-9-21  2015-9-22
1er
2018 23 1CBC 5,000 3.5 Tier
2028 23
2022 15 1CBC-AXA 5,000 3.7
2032 17
4.7
Tier
®»
() 2025 2027 1,081,694
2.70
() 2025 2027 6,241
1.08 5.41
() 2024 2027 24,412
1.20 5.24
() 2025 2027 7,632
3.54
() 2026 2,269
4.13
() DIFC 2025 2027 12,583
2.70 5.42
() 2024 2027 40,151
1.20 5.37
() 2025 2027 15,821
1.63 5.37
() 2025 2027 2,550
4.70 5.15
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( ) IcBC 2025 2027 8,370
2.05 4.90
( ) ICBC 2025 2031 44,486
1.75 6.00
( ) ICBC 2025 2027 7,521
1.52 3.70
( ) IcBC 2025 2027 8,246
1.52 3.70
( ) IcBC 2025 2029 2,160
2.93 5.78
( ) ICBC 2025 10,000
2.20 2.50
( ) ICBC 2025 753
3.30 3.56
( ) ICBC 2026 2,989
3.09
( ) IcBC 2025 318
5.00
37.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
374,945 296,443
304,959 277,321
(@) 45,269 44,768
() 25,159 24,185
©) 20,983 24,849
15,974 15,941
1,239 1,716
7 12
140,680 133,407
929,215 818,642
(a) 2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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®
2024 17,897 5,634 654 24,185
113 (113) - -
(204) 204 - _
(76) ©) 83 -
1,771 (528) (553) 690
314 54 (84) 284
2024 12 31 19,815 5,244 100 25,159
2023 20,783 6,611 246 27,640
341 (341) - -
(301) 301 - -
1) (113) 184 -
(2,953) (855) 223 (3,585)
98 31 1 130
2023 12 31 17,897 5,634 654 24,185
©
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
6,741 8,073
5,515 6,109
3,913 4,689
4,444 5,441
2,145 3,023
22,758 27,335
20,983 24,849
38.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
86,795 86,795 86,795 86,795
269,612 269,612 269,612 269,612
356,407 356,407 356,407 356,407
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39.
@
@
( ) C ) C )
2020-09-23 3.58 20 / 145 2,900 19,716
2015  2015-11-18 4.58 100 / 450 45,000 45,000
2019 2019-09-19 3.02 100 / 700 70,000 70,000
134,716
()]
)
)
)
)
Tier Tier
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)
Non-viability NFRA
Tier Tier 5.125
Tier 5.125
Tier
5.73 2015
3.44 2019 5.43
)
NFRA
NFRA
©
2024 2024 12 31
145 2,900 19,716 - - - 145 2,900 19,716
2015 450 45,000 45,000 - - - 450 45,000 45,000
2019 700 70,000 70,000 - - - 700 70,000 70,000
134,716 - 134,716
2024 12 31 134,614 2023 12 31

134,614
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@
@
2021-09-24 3.20 () N/A 6,160 39,793
2021
2021-06-04 4.04 100 / 700 70,000 70,000
2021
2021-11-24 3.65 100 / 300 30,000 30,000
2024
2024-07-10 2.35 100 / 500 50,000 50,000
189,793
() 200,000 1,000 100
®)
2021 2021 11 24 2024 10
70,000 30,000 50,000 2021
2021 2024
2021 24 6,160
Tier
2024 2021
)
100 2021
4.04 2021 3.65 2024 2.35
3.20
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)
Tier
Tier
)
2021 2021 2024
)

Tier
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©
2024 2024 12 31
N/A 6,160 39,793 - - - N/A 6,160 39,793
2019
800 80,000 80,000 (800)  (80,000)  (80,000) - - -
2021
700 70,000 70,000 - - - 700 70,000 70,000
2021
300 30,000 30,000 - - - 300 30,000 30,000
2024
- - - 500 50,000 50,000 500 50,000 50,000
219,793 (30,000) 189,793
2024 12 31 189,730 2023 12 31
219,717
©)]
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
3,969,841 3,756,887
) 3,645,497 3,402,556
@)
324,344 354,331
17,425 19,701
(€Y 16,553 19,701
@)
872 -
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()

)

PRC GAAP
50

2025 28
34,981 PRC GAAP
34,671 2023 34,869

98 2023 112

)

PRC GAAP

)

©

MOF Cai Jin [2012] No.20

2025 28
64,264 2024 12 31 596,800
1.50
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FVTOCH
O]
Q)
@
O]
PRC GAAP IFRS
IFRS
4.
&)
2023 2,343 (17,241) (8,858) (23,756)
21,704 1,633 (3,659) 19,678
2023 12 31
2024 24,047 (15,608) (12,517) (4,078)
52,918 9,516 (10,661) 51,773
2024 12 31 76,965 (6,092) (23,178) 47,695
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®
2024 2023

YFVTOCI
4,088 1,748
(319) (218)
3,769 1,530
) 43 Q)
) 24 (28)
YFVTOCI 75,927 30,515
(2,490) (3,593)
(18,923) (5,818)
54,514 21,104
YFVTOCI (469) 98
200 107
(269) 205

)
(1,445) 126
113 )
(1,332) 117
) (58) (372)
) 9,744 1,823
) (15,246) (5,145)
51,189 19,227
42.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

72,069 66,699
393,112 952,050
402,017 331,464
325,554 272,302
1,097,652 1,133,217
2,290,404 2,755,732
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43.
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
36,587 36,587 38,421 38,421
74,943 74,943 85,277 85,277
30,476 30,476 35,859 35,859
142,006 142,006 159,557 159,557
2024 12 31
FVTPL FVTOCI
36,450 137 -
27,921 31,317 15,705
7,143 19,919 3,414
71,514 51,373 19,119
2023 12 31
FVTPL FvTOCI
38,421 - -
30,606 26,829 27,842
15,511 19,576 772
84,538 46,405 28,614
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2024 12 31

2024 12 31
2,121,075
1,756,215

2024

©

2023 12 31

2,111,149

2023

2023
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1,857,056



627,857

2024 12 31
840

132

45.

46.

2006

10

2023 12 31 627,857
28,723
2023 12 31 791
2024 12 31
2023 12 31 132

2023 12 31

2,202,447
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47.
@
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
19,469 26,804
®)
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
908,973 804,061
40,259 32,048
625,887 540,709
51,318 53,099
151,732 148,803
43,586 34,841
415,557 443,749
1,166,166 1,126,870
3,403,478 3,184,180
1,190,347 1,158,895
©
ICBC
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
16,846 18,228
15,033 16,037
13,239 14,878
22,993 23,914
44,569 51,414
112,680 124,471
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@

2024 12 31

8,655 2023 12 31 6,659
©
MOF
MOF
2024 12 31 53,445 2023 12
31 57,256
2024 12 31 400 2023 12 31
®
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

4,586,796 3,857,252

4,586,664 3,857,046
@
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@) MOF
MOF 2024 12
31 MOF 31.14 2023 12 31 31.14
MOF
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
PRC 3,325,998 2,365,572
2024 2023
64,747 53,525
MOF 48(i) PRC
®»
2003
12 16 828,209 2024 12 31
34.79 2023 12 31 34.71
2024 12 31 58,897
2023 12 31 40,427 30 1.90 4.98
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
59,573 41,036
68,139 12,009
35,642 19,374

2024 2023

1,377 1,397
2,074 421
381 70

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
1,153,794 821,752
273,219 212,218
84,763 79,687
2,544 3,240
6,206 8,058
396,947 336,930
3,400 3,400
31,419 7,582
12,947 10,420
7,924 7,026

2024 2023

27,655 27,829
2,849 1,554
35 87
74 70
5,004 2,539
4 0
228 123
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©
SSF MOF SSF
2024 12 31 SSF 5.31 2023 12 31 5.38
SSF
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
75,360 64,000
2024 2023
2,560 2,306
@
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

39,769 41,126

366,583 330,455

7,398 12,002

90,772 108,761

5,971 4,003

482,000 171,189

2,924 1,904

9,303 6,827

26,354 42,500

2024 2023

2,054 2,048

2,685 3,094

5 12

3,746 3,021

6,171 3,737

1 50

3,788 4,611
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31

- 11,279

722 6,066

1,837 3,264

4,894 4,278

1,825 2,436

2,554 4,120

2,968 1,089

1,587 2,271

8,293 4,293

2024 2023

133 274

22 50

- 1

237 174

297 41

22 46

@®
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

217 249

643 608

139 32

2024 2023

27 17

4 6

3 0
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@
2024 2023
12,972 17,152
2023 2023
PRC
2024
2024 2023
2023 12
31 0.23 2023 12 31 0.21
NFRA 2024 12 31
113.3 2023 12 31 64.24
Q)
2024 12 31 42.43 2023 12
31 38.14 2024 12 31 809.16 2023 12
31 292.72
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O) PRC

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
4,539,365 32.07 3,239,639 27.34
273,941 22.46 218,284 19.55
86,600 7.16 82,951 6.78
75,794 0.27 19,776 0.08
8,031 3.61 10,494 13.93
400,144 8.72 341,658 10.14
3,400 0.22 3,400 0.33
33,006 16.69 9,853 12.92
127,056 0.36 94,915 0.28
16,217 0.48 11,319 0.36

2024 2023

99,230 6.95 85,399 6.08
8,503 1.08 5,131 0.68
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2024

351,117 24,889 261,399 - 637,405
(43,280) 243,001 (199,721) - -
66,602 41,725 1,070 - 109,397
() 7,890 523 26,927 3,984 39,324
382,329 310,138 89,675 3,984 786,126
(98,394)  (123,792) (15,937) (4,032)  (242,155)
() (39,043) (87,636) 1,532 (1,516)  (126,663)
244,892 98,710 75,270 (1,564) 417,308
- - - 4,519 4,519
244,892 98,710 75,270 2,955 421,827
(54,881)
366,946
10,922 12,730 2,981 112 26,745
20,102 24,473 5,534 212 50,321

2024 12 31
19,463,926 9,029,477 20,083,673 154,623 48,731,699
- - - 73,357 73,357
108,819 140,972 30,283 22,313 302,387
() 38,610 20,360 6,161 21,172 86,303
90,047
48,821,746
16,419,197 19,534,790 8,684,636 159,609 44,798,322
36,158
44,834,480
2,238,406 1,165,072 - - 3,403,478

~ N

o o A
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2023

301,507 62,885 290,621 - 655,013
232 211,174 (211,406) - -
72,556 46,060 741 - 119,357
() 7,619 (2,263) 21,464 5,268 32,088
381,914 317,856 101,420 5,268 806,458
(98, 156) (120,738) (15,881) (3,923) (238,698)
() (96,812) (46,644) (8,374) 1,014 (150, 816)
186,946 150,474 77,165 2,359 416,944
- - - 5,022 5,022
186,946 150,474 77,165 7,381 421,966
(56,850)
365,116
11,031 13,138 2,822 108 27,099
17,386 21,020 4,454 173 43,033

2023 12 31
17,203,589 8,983,095 18,228,557 177,169 44,592,410
_ - - 64,778 64,778
108,123 137,558 27,917 25,280 298,878
() 42,654 19,802 5,487 8,549 76,492
104,669
44,697,079
16,989,789 17,454,497 6,226,481 182,472 40,853,239
67,252
40,920,491
2,058,377 1,125,803 - - 3,184,180

~ N

o o A
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2024

(343,871) 63,424

70,210

32,743
8,673

(85)

- 637,405

(1,325) 109,397

1,292 39,324

(26,847) (37,865) (26,846)

(32,911) (34,352)

111,541
(39,395) (33,754) (38,684) (13,550) (25,247)

(21,584) (28,413) (30,558)

(5.189)  (9,032)

(33) 786,126
33 (242,155)

(126,663)

49,374

417,308

4,519

49,374

3,610
2,401

421,827
(54,881)
366,946

26,745
50,321
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2024 12 31

7,841,046 12,434,709 7,718,129 7,246,667 5,406,280 6,270,179 1,696,003 5,753,936  (5,635,250) 48,731,699

- = - - - = = 73,357 = 73,357

11,869 30,333 13,457 18,533 16,764 20,374 7,490 183,567 = 302,387

( ) 18,869 6,878 5,741 6,897 8,377 9,832 2,140 27,641 (72) 86,303

90,047

48,821,746

4,716,988 11,143,759 6,759,439 11,183,389 5,441,641 5,672,095 2,560,972 2,955,289 (5,635,250) 44,798,322

36,158

44,834,480

1,182,427 1,809,734 1,083,228 1,190,983 859,622 954,749 178,126 834,035 (4,689,426) 3,403,478
)
)
)

2023

325,228 61,311 63,780 (12,379) 71,307 96,072 4,604 45,090 ~ 655,013

(349,200) 73,626 37,282 158,627 35,925 25,492 23,176  (4,928) - -

30,106 21,597 14,911 17,021 10,576 11,680 2,739 12,232  (1,505) 119,357

() 18,762 (818)  (707) (1,277)  (602)  (766) (90) 16,139 1,447 32,088

24,896 155,716 115,266 161,992 117,206 132,478 30,429 68,533 (58) 806,458

(26,727) (37,168) (27,117) (38,395) (34,320) (39,076) (13,242) (22,711) 58 (238,698)

() (14,547) (22,613) (27,990) (19,273) (25,326) (22,577) (5,980) (12,510) — (150,816)

(16,378) 95,935 60,159 104,324 57,560 70,825 11,207 33,312 — 416,944

- - - - - - - 5,022 - 5,022

(16,378) 95,935 60,159 104,324 57,560 70,825 11,207 38,334 — 421,966

(56,850)

365,116

4,719 4,093 2,795 3,927 3,617 4,194 1,538 2,216 —- 27,099

4,125 3,120 2,545 3,294 2,926 2,936 882 23,205 — 43,033
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2023 12 31

(

)

8,502,997 10,215,437 6,993,931 6,680,826 4,946,259 5,743,425 1,507,213 4,255,879  (4,343,557) 44,592,410
- - - - - - - 64,778 - 64,778

11,663 31,346 13,544 19,297 18,074 21,517 7,99 175,441 - 298,878
17,001 7,087 6,253 6,837 8,392 9,998 2,338 18,756 (170) 76,492
104,669

44,697,079

5,554,000 9,781,890 6,342,124 10,346,856 4,965,877 5,207,532 1,986,209 1,012,218 (4,343,557) 40,853,239
67,252

40,920,491

1,140,709 1,742,306 1,132,348 1,305,493 735,849 878,791 170,587 788,274  (4,710,177) 3,184,180

~ N

50.

o o S
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() 90 90
)
)
90 90
12 ECL ECL
ECL
PD LGD
EAD
PD PD
IRB
PD
LGD LGD
EAD
ECL PD LGD
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ECL
ECL
ECL GDP
CP1 M2
PD LGD PD LGD
PD LGD
ECL
2023 12 31
2024 12 31
ECL
GDP
2023 12 31
10 ECL 2023 12 31
an
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
139,086 82,723
41,821 15,607
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2024 12 31
19,414,509 2023 12 31 17,432,861
4,779,598 2023 12 31 5,344,849
2024 12 31 8,957,720
2023 12 31 8,653,621
7,590,566 2023 12 31 7,719,465
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
3,250,842 3,975,594
1,219,876 1,116,717
222,361 75,339
1,210,217 1,224,257
27,613,781 25,386,933
FVTPL 770,192 578,595
FVTOCI 3,205,926 2,148,073
9,851,985 8,806,849
131,680 107,719
47,476,860 43,420,076
3,403,478 3,184,180
50,880,338 46,604,256
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)

(€))

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
874,284 3.08 754,746 2.89
6,182,636 21.78 5,616,187 21.53
4,348,121 15.33 4,055,692 15.54
4,677,575 16.49 4,285,481 16.44
4,416,409 15.57 4,064,415 15.58
5,233,652 18.45 4,766,575 18.27
1,158,000 4.08 1,082,666 4.15
1,481,552 5.22 1,460,720 5.60
28,372,229 100.00 26,086,482 100.00
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

4,051,167 3,782,387

2,575,716 2,454,786

2,523,970 2,396,063

1,863,449 1,742,614

1,868,505 1,690,911

1,110,747 1,014,138

831,967 757,022

842,033 635,529

516,972 462,957

426,677 410,202

374,331 340,250

496,689 458,345

17,482,223 16,145,204

7,761,161 7,635,604

1,196,559 1,018,017

8,957,720 8,653,621

1,932,286 1,287,657

28,372,229 26,086,482
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
11,078,420 9,947,491
2,708,808 2,715,345
10,787,880 10,444,304
3,797,121 2,979,342
28,372,229 26,086,482
2024 12 31
91
90
35,138 40,223 37,036 13,592 125,989
9,712 17,125 23,011 6,611 56,459
76,542 61,971 61,143 17,870 217,526
968 1,260 3,456 1,081 6,765
122,360 120,579 124,646 39,154 406,739
2023 12 31
91
90
31,987 33,514 29,897 7,368 102,766
13,790 19,151 16,805 11,400 61,146
58,876 48,272 37,285 14,429 158,862
2,583 952 3,131 984 7,650
107,236 101,889 87,118 34,181 330,424
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@

2024 12 31
FVTPL FVTOCI

402,632 1,673,679 8,346,596 10,422,907
35,688 512,411 549,026 1,097,125
230,594 398,174 769,838 1,398,606
70,067 588,449 67,768 726,284
738,981 3,172,713 9,733,228 13,644,922

2023 12 31

FVTPL FVTOCI

187,365 1,076,400 7,495,472 8,759,237
34,375 184,168 593,403 811,946
231,388 293,463 540,296 1,065,147
87,041 566,522 67,834 721,397
540,169 2,120,553 8,697,005 11,357,727

2024 12 31

AAA AA A A

3,330,132 6,825,677 124,512 77,960 64,626 10,422,907
923,671 79,897 37,269 55,829 459 1,097,125
611,520 380,105 68,488 219,349 119,144 1,398,606
181,918 378,178 11,860 119,431 34,897 726,284

5,047,241 7,663,857 242,129 472,569 219,126 13,644,922

2023 12 31
AAA AA A A
2,461,141 6,139,412 63,270 52,824 42,590 8,759,237
732,015 55,943 8,934 11,754 3,300 811,946
409,850 380,700 47,941 173,791 52,865 1,065,147
159,202 391,268 5,943 121,625 43,359 721,397

3,762,208 6,967,323 126,088 359,994 142,114 11,357,727
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2024 12 31
ECL

3,322,911 - - 3,322,011 - - - -

1,224,065 - 158 1,224,223 (4,189) - (158) (4,347)

1,189,933 - - 1,189,933 (33) - - (33)

25,300,817 795,620 379,423 26,475,860 (354,083)  (156,502)  (304,487)  (815,072)

9,885,410 1,836 3,142 9,890,388 (35,540) 1) (2.852)  (38,403)

40,923,136 797,456 382,723 42,103,315 (393,845)  (156,513)  (307,497)  (857,855)
FVTOCI

1,947,015 938 35 1,947,988 (353) (1) @1 (425)

3,196,321 9,203 402 3,205,926 (4,565) (635) (3,825) (9,025)

5,143,336 10,141 437 5,153,914 (4,918) (686) (3,846) (9,450)

2023 12 31
ECL

4,042,293 - ~ 4,042,293 - - - -

1,120,116 - 161 1,120,277 (3,399) - (161) (3,560)

1,183,840 - - 1,183,840 7) - - o7

23,773,666 714,114 353,465 24,841,245 (342,730)  (156,240)  (257,031)  (756,001)

8,840,215 2,214 3,139 8,845,568 (36,009) 1) (2.699)  (38,719)

38,960,130 716,328 356,765 40,033,223 (382,235)  (156,251)  (259,891)  (798,377)
FVTOCI

1,295,548 - 37 1,295,585 (361) - 29) (390)

2,136,289 11,509 275 2,148,073 (4,835) (964) (3,769) (9,568)

3,431,837 11,509 312 3,443,658 (5,196) (964) (3,798) (9,958)
2024 2023 12 31
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2024 12 31
)
663,560 12,057 3,989 6,993 1,419 - 2,634,893 3,322,011
) 376,826 1,411,071 274,396 324,274 43,526 - - 2,430,003
- 40,353 56,970 106,761 12,752 5,525 - 222,361
55,352 1,401,798 1,524,797 5,809,922 5,157,509 13,541,001 123,312 27,613,781
FVTPL
115,122 10,507 34,325 277,426 249,601 211,580 111,878 1,010,439
FVTOCI
- 118,609 263,122 615,595 1,442,912 765,555 85,359 3,291,152
- 111,481 220,800 1,467,655 3,388,429 4,663,189 431 9,851,985
- - - - - - 73,357 73,357
- - - - - - 302,387 302,387
183,447 233,352 41,809 72,476 28,340 32,073 111,783 703,280
1,394,307 3,339,228 2,420,208 8,681,102 10,324,578 19,218,923 3,443,400 48,821,746
- 9,874 46,175 113,573 - - - 169,622
) 2,757,012 844,462 638,061 1,571,697 297,196 6,002 - 6,114,520
FVTPL
66,164 2,459 895 4,615 1,669 254 - 76,056
- 48,034 53,927 80,581 11,533 3,720 - 197,795
- 59,484 15,729 327,008 43,198 - - 445,419
13,778,148 1,781,556 2,736,664 7,896,577 8,631,898 12,130 -~ 34,836,973
- 149,859 138,098 826,703 229,287 684,775 - 2,028,722
368,453 167,171 118,288 145,613 165,848 965,373
16,601,324 3,264,181 3,796,720 10,939,042 9,360,394 872,819 — 44,834,480
(15,207,017) 75,047 (1,376,512)  (2,257,940) 964,184 18,346,104 3,443,400 3,987,266
)
)
)
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2023 12 31
)
1,192,880 4,640 3,980 2,908 5,086 - 2,832,799 4,042,293
) 337,094 1,458,823 178,151 327,184 39,718 4 - 2,340,974
- 9,989 17,197 30,865 11,194 6,094 - 75,339
36,677 1,233,059 1,299,690 4,848,837 4,967,058 12,873,541 128,071 25,386,933
FVTPL
81,529 9,082 22,165 235,722 156,408 201,903 105,148 811,957
FVTOCI
- 132,916 94,002 425,812 852,277 643,039 82,816 2,230,862
- 104,586 338,685 875,813 3,345,609 4,141,536 620 8,806,849
- - - - - - 64,778 64,778
- - - - - - 298,878 298,878
115,927 222,172 40,247 50,709 61,395 45,949 101,817 638,216
1,764,107 3,175,267 1,994,117 6,797,850 9,438,745 17,912,066 3,614,927 44,697,079
- 6,549 66,676 158,149 - - - 231,374
) 2,685,751 458,379 284,933 907,359 46,034 5,508 - 4,387,964
FVTPL
56,799 141 123 633 4,847 316 - 62,859
- 17,999 20,057 22,859 10,909 4,427 - 76,251
- 58,396 122,826 182,299 21,677 - - 385,198
13,683,549 1,830,012 2,325,939 6,986,876 8,679,518 15,280 - 33,521,174
- 17,813 106,187 352,234 215,269 678,274 - 1,369,777
- 268,158 132,389 149,244 161,415 174,688 - 885,894
16,426,099 2,657,447 3,059,130 8,759,653 9,139,669 878,493 — 40,920,491
(14,661,992) 517,820  (1,065,013)  (1,961,803) 299,076 17,033,573 3,614,927 3,776,588
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2024 12 31
)
663,560 12,147 4,017 7,566 1,421 - 2,634,893 3,323,604
) 377,144 1,413,614 279,741 333,163 47,091 - - 2,450,753
) 56,509 1,431,667 1,558,220 6,007,274 5,721,992 16,183,016 428,944 31,387,622
FVTPL
115,126 13,436 39,687 287,394 281,878 228,586 113,215 1,079,322
FVTOCI
- 140,683 271,622 664,584 1,565,377 912,364 89,750 3,644,380
- 130,173 264,932 1,680,678 4,154,919 5,665,433 3,132 11,899,267
175,473 217,418 27,027 66,303 31,720 18,869 - 536,810
1,387,812 3,359,138 2,445,246 9,046,962 11,804,398 23,008,268 3,269,934 54,321,758
- 10,018 46,418 114,666 - - - 171,102
) 2,757,012 849,510 648,907 1,608,813 317,848 6,743 - 6,188,833
FVTPL

66,164 2,642 1,258 4,915 2,330 287 - 77,596
- 63,560 15,879 365,204 44,952 - - 489,595
13,859,932 1,795,548 2,744,063 7,903,231 9,037,518 14,583 - 35,354,875
- 150,198 138,850 854,712 338,267 772,365 - 2,254,392
- 360,896 13,937 18,698 37,631 17,007 - 448,169
16,683,108 3,232,372 3,609,312 10,870,239 9,778,546 810,985 - 44,984,562

- (12,072) (22,700) (73,896) 3,962 58 - (104,648)
- 2,253,093 1,513,483 3,523,819 429,830 50,987 - 7,771,212

- (2,244,458)  (1,490,156)  (3,348,141) (430, 755) (51,330) - (7,564,840)
- 8,635 23,327 175,678 (925) (343) - 206,372
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2023 12 31
()
1,192,880 4,654 4,028 2,998 5,183 - 2,832,799 4,042,542
) 337,004 1,462,855 179,850 334,769 42,474 4 - 2,357,046
) 54,533 1,353,001 1,534,912 5,839,403 8,646,048 19,669,390 671,048 37,768,335
FVTPL
81,529 9,384 24,206 246,219 185,042 226,856 105,763 878,999
FVTOCI
- 137,501 101,117 462,665 964,058 802,982 83,534 2,551,857
- 118,767 377,001 1,075,522 4,070,282 5,072,783 3,130 10,717,485
105,707 195,642 20,713 46,739 45,605 51,849 - 466,255
1,771,743 3,281,804 2,241,827 8,008,315 13,958,692 25,823,864 3,696,274 58,782,519
- 6,565 66,840 159,718 - - - 233,123
() 2,685,751 460,705 301,577 953,779 51,671 7,802 - 4,461,285
FVTPL
56,799 180 165 1,414 5,463 357 - 64,378
- 58,475 123,722 186,117 22,905 - - 391,219
13,685,047 1,831,542 2,335,694 7,090,386 9,148,344 18,184 - 34,109,197
- 18,200 107,968 376,141 330,196 780,131 - 1,612,636
- 263,648 35,260 19,738 59,849 51,921 - 430,416
16,427,597 2,639,315 2,971,226 8,787,293 9,618,428 858,395 - 41,302,254
- 207 1,555 (11,256) 2,322 (67) - (7,239)
- 1,229,409 583,502 1,758,108 367,431 57,583 - 3,996,033
- (1,212,090) (589,874)  (1,772,475) (370,714) (57,826) - (4,002,979)
- 17,319 (6,372) (14,367) (3,283) (243) - (6,946)
)
)
)
)
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2024 12 31
1,250,483 197,971 441,314 820,351 562,731 130,628 3,403,478
2023 12 31
1,270,414 145,907 359,067 690,830 510,386 207,576 3,184,180
©
50(d)
VaR

VaR
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) VaR
VaR
250 VaR 99
VaR
2024
301 171 336 83
305 279 475 124
22 19 40 11
VaR 466 317 470 232
2023
87 112 209 43
258 256 406 131
38 37 44 26
VaR 245 312 412 180
VaR
VaR VaR
VaR
(1) VvaR VaR
) VaR
99
() VaR
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31 2024 12 31 2023 12 31
(321) 267 (708) (629)
274 327 (1,565) (1,443)
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2024 12 31

3,009,110 181,040 9,580 123,181 3,322,911

) 1,552,443 587,177 65,538 224,935 2,430,093

170,301 23,754 11,813 16,493 222,361

26,304,262 651,996 315,362 342,161 27,613,781

FVTPL 963,589 17,444 11,105 18,301 1,010,439

FVTOCI 2,715,471 411,742 47,398 116,541 3,291,152

9,505,735 203,964 24,531 117,755 9,851,985

44,465 1,511 146 27,235 73,357

132,927 166,466 677 2,317 302,387

344,105 135,107 24,565 199,503 703,280

44,742,408 2,380,201 510,715 1,188,422 48,821,746

169,622 - - - 169,622

) 5,278,640 524,278 65,894 245,708 6,114,520

FVTPL 5,498 2,440 2 68,116 76,056

145,146 32,089 10,841 9,719 197,795

140,187 220,006 58,295 26,931 445,419

33,146,429 945,302 380,181 365,061 34,836,973

1,859,351 142,352 - 27,019 2,028,722

806,682 126,396 8,693 23,602 965,373

41,551,555 1,992,863 523,906 766,156 44,834,480

3,190,853 387,338 (13,191) 422,266 3,987,266

2,686,750 468,537 50,378 197,813 3,403,478
)
)
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2023 12 31

3,741,187 168,210 8,133 124,763 4,042,293

) 1,612,535 427,598 39,665 261,176 2,340,974

30,533 25,973 7,455 11,378 75,339

23,997,794 690,350 346,152 352,637 25,386,933

FVTPL 761,884 30,975 10,832 8,266 811,957

FVTOCI 1,736,925 359,118 38,971 95,848 2,230,862

8,450,363 192,730 36,996 126,760 8,806,849

36,804 2,096 196 25,682 64,778

134,199 161,870 674 2,135 298,878

333,577 174,586 5,658 124,395 638,216

40,835,801 2,233,506 494,732 1,133,040 44,697,079

230,246 - - 1,128 231,374

) 3,588,038 482,444 73,509 243,973 4,387,964

FVTPL 4,937 2,250 4 55,668 62,859

28,563 29,765 8,627 9,296 76,251

103,347 208,441 40,857 32,553 385,198

31,837,835 871,819 434,579 376,941 33,521,174

1,150,601 187,762 2,058 29,356 1,369,777

569,117 213,141 24,334 79,302 885,894

37,512,684 1,995,622 583,968 828,217 40,920,491

3,323,117 237,884 (89,236) 304,823 3,776,588

2,525,419 426,002 49,055 183,704 3,184,180
)
)
@
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PBOC
FVTOCI
2024 12 31
100 100
(26,560) (102,939) 26,560 121,349
1,109 (8,228) (1,109) 9,259
129 @172) (129) 177
1,101 (3.,274) (1,101) 3,497
(24,221) (114,613) 24,221 134,282
2023 12 31
100 100
(14,922) (73,298) 14,922 84,941
(1,320) (6,466) 1,320 6,655
(1,439) (95) 1,439 9%
1,008 (20) (1,008) 74
(16,673) (79,879) 16,673 91,766
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2024 12 31

2,921,951 6,665 50 - 394,245 3,322,911

() 2,041,613 321,984 41,914 - 24,582 2,430,093

- - - - 222,361 222,361

10,976,981 16,188,046 255,342 138,400 55,012 27,613,781

FVTPL 44,028 275,562 247,340 209,389 234,120 1,010,439

FVTOCI 379,404 611,783 1,427,981 758,866 113,118 3,291,152

344,569 1,449,893 3,328,729 4,623,451 105,343 9,851,985

- - - - 73,357 73,357

- - - - 302,387 302,387

1,986 6,273 17,976 3,556 673,489 703,280

16,710,532 18,860,206 5,319,332 5,733,662 2,198,014 48,821,746

56,043 113,573 - - 6 169,622

) 4,052,089 1,711,979 254,138 675 95,639 6,114,520

FVTPL 6,523 4,615 1,669 254 62,995 76,056

- - - - 197,795 197,795

193,076 217,042 32,266 - 3,035 445,419

18,333,925 7,503,276 8,213,196 11,798 774,778 34,836,973

311,014 826,952 193,297 684,797 12,662 2,028,722

3,540 10,328 30,765 7,423 913,317 965,373

22,956,210 10,387,765 8,725,331 704,947 2,060,227 44,834,480

(6,245,678) 8,472,441 (3,405,999) 5,028,715 N/A N/A
)
)
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3,707,044 2,498 4,303 - 328,448 4,042,293

() 1,946,422 323,422 35,293 - 35,837 2,340,974

- - - - 75,339 75,339

9,187,465 15,369,942 528,802 245,909 54,815 25,386,933

FVTPL 33,322 234,428 125,924 194,907 223,376 811,957

FVTOCI 272,320 420,740 803,302 629,586 104,914 2,230,862

580, 346 849,538 3,198,040 4,079,888 99,037 8,806,849

- - - - 64,778 64,778

- - - - 298,878 298,878

2,457 7,674 40,169 24,485 563,431 638,216

15,729,376 17,208,242 4,735,833 5,174,775 1,848,853 44,697,079

73,225 158,149 - - - 231,374

() 3,415,815 924,444 13,684 10 34,011 4,387,964

FVTPL 3,647 633 4,847 316 53,416 62,859

- - - - 76,251 76,251

181,578 180,896 19,878 - 2,846 385,198

17,501,563 6,643,611 8,618,565 14,862 742,573 33,521,174

172,151 311,141 193,484 678,275 14,726 1,369,777

4,292 12,526 54,930 29,349 784,797 885,894

21,352,271 8,231,400 8,905,388 722,812 1,708,620 40,920,491

(5,622,895) 8,976,842 (4,169,555) 4,451,963 N/A N/A
)
)
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Tier Tier

Tier

Tier Tier
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Tier Tier

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
Tier 3,648,963 3,404,032
356,407 356,407
148,128 148,164
463,951 428,007
614,426 561,303
2,007,203 1,905,968
4,071 3,623
54,777 N/A
N/A 560
Tier 24,621 22,091
18,687 8,488
10,194 8,490
(4,260) (2,867)
Tier - 7,980
Tier 3,624,342 3,381,941
Tier 325,111 354,978
Tier 324,344 354,331
767 647
Tier 3,949,453 3,736,919
Tier 1,037,078 970,181
Tier 632,917 635,672
402,917 N/A
N/A 333,382
1,244 1,127
4,986,531 4,707,100
() 25,710,855 24,641,631
Tier 14.10% 13.72%
Tier 15.36% 15.17%
19.39% 19.10%
)
51.
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2024 12 31
12,111 210,195 55 222,361
FVTPL - 20,317 - 20,317
FVTPL - 4,929 76 5,005
FVTOCI - 1,947,988 - 1,947,988
FVTPL
17,498 718,558 2,925 738,981
23,736 1,003 87,028 111,767
37,666 78,015 44,010 159,691
78,900 797,576 133,963 1,010,439
FVTOCI
301,020 2,899,480 - 3,200,500
- 5,426 - 5,426
13,793 5,730 65,703 85,226
314,813 2,910,636 65,703 3,291,152
405,824 5,891,641 199,797 6,497,262
- 200,983 - 200,983
- 715 - 715
FVTPL 150 73,584 2,322 76,056
8,005 189,651 139 197,795
8,155 464,933 2,461 475,549
2023 12 31
3,333 71,491 515 75,339
FVTPL - 40,514 - 40,514
FVTPL - 5,990 114 6,104
FVTOCI - 1,295,585 - 1,295,585
FVTPL
21,412 515,389 3,368 540,169
19,885 10,935 74,226 105,046
37,443 87,942 41,357 166,742
78,740 614,266 118,951 811,957
FVTOCI
338,551 1,804,101 - 2,142,652
- 5,421 - 5,421
8,761 33,556 40,472 82,789
347,312 1,843,078 40,472 2,230,862
429,385 3,870,924 160,052 4,460,361
- 202,976 - 202,976
- 28,174 - 28,174
FVTPL 1,462 59,559 1,838 62,859
3,133 71,939 1,179 76,251
4,595 362,648 3,017 370,260
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2024 2024
12 31
515 110 -~ 521 (352) (739) 55
FVTPL
114 5 - - (43) - 76
FVTPL
3,368 7 - 639 (1,091) 2 2,925
74,226 (15) -~ 23,192 (10,375) - 87,028
41,357 (940) - 18,914  (15,321) - 44,010
FVTOCI
40,472 - 1,490 3,521 (3,400) 23,620 65,703
160,052 (833) 1,490 46,787  (30,582) 22,883 199,797
FVTPL
(1,838) (221) - (761) 498 - (2,322)
(1,179) (174) -~ - 496 718 (139)
(3,017) (395) - (761) 994 718 (2,461)
2023 2023
12 31
886 177 - 24 (587) 15 515
FVTPL
109 14 - - ) - 114
FVTPL
3,158 412 - 511 (800) 87 3,368
68,484 (99) - 16,612  (10,237) (534) 74,226
36,320 588 - 10,484 (6,035) - 41,357
FVTOCI
362 - - - (362) - -
47,024 - 1,495 1,488 (9,535) - 40,472
156,343 1,002 1,495 29,119  (27,565) (432) 160,052
FVTPL
(1,311) (156) - (595) 224 - (1,838)
(2,185) 675 - an 396 12 (1,179)
(3,496) 519 - (672) 620 12 (3,017)
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2024 2023
(402) 391
(826) 1,220
(1,228) 1,611

©

)

2024 2023

)

@

2024 12 31 2023
12 31
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(O)
2024 12 31
9,851,985 10,531,041 43,473 10,360,858 126,710
Tier
TLAC 749,261 778,648 - 778,648 -
2023 12 31
8,806,849 9,083,501 75,260 8,830,559 177,682
Tier 704,129 705,809 - 705,809 -
)
) Tier TLAC
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
3,231,078 3,983,898
1,268,833 1,209,201
193,367 52,312
1,148,203 1,144,948
26,789,370 24,618,384
13,184,522 11,011,574
FVTPL 693,738 504,918
FVTOCI 2,875,432 1,913,887
9,615,352 8,592,769
163,283 163,283
37,042 36,042
119,025 123,642
89,322 103,196
500,316 458,765
46,724,361 42,905,245
169,622 231,349
4,711,602 3,250,269
FVTPL 62,195 52,306
169,959 51,234
1,473,959 949,247
428,929 370,623
33,425,710 32,621,398
30,345 61,462
1,936,857 1,250,598
530,327 465,975
42,939,505 39,304,461
356,407 356,407
324,344 354,331
134,614 134,614
189,730 219,717
1,270,537 1,139,911
1,833,568 1,750,135
3,784,856 3,600,784
46,724,361 42,905,245
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2023
356,407 354,331 153,348 384,808 480,285 8,513 (1,528)  (3,089) (189) 1,022,148 1,624,995 3,357,881
- - - - - - - - - - 347,516 347,516
- - - - - 17,821 794 (39) (56) 18,520 - 18,520
- - - - - 17,821 794 (39) (56) 18,520 347,516 366,036
2022
17 - - - - - - - - - - (108,169) (108,169)
17 _ _ - - - - - - - - (14,94)  (14,964)
) - - - 34,981 - - - - - 34,981  (34,981) -
- - - - 64,264 - - - - 64,264  (64,264) -
- - - - - ) - - - ) 2 -
2023 12 31
2024
356,407 354,331 153,348 419,789 544,549 26,332 734)  (3,128) (245) 1,139,911 1,750,135 3,600,784
- - - - - - - - - — 345,454 345,454
- - - - - 45,144 63 (1,225) (87) 43,895 - 43,895
- - - - - 45,144 63 (1,225) (87) 43,805 345,454 389,349
- 50,000 @) - - - - - - @ - 49,998
- (79,987) 1) - - - - - - (13) - (80,000)
) 17 - _ - - - - - - - - (160,312) (160,312)
17 _ _ - - - - - - - - (14,963)  (14,963)
) - - - 34,769 - - - - - 34,769 (34,769) -
- - - - 52,251 - - - - 52,251  (52,251) -
_ - - - - 274) - - - (274) 274 -
2024 12 31
356,407 324,344 153,333 454,558 596,800 71,202 (671)  (4,353) (332) 1,270,537 1,833,568 3,784,856
( ) 2024 51,109 2023 109,203
() 98 2023 112
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53.
2025 28 10 1.646
2024 12 31 58,664
54.
55.
2025 28
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| Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 Decembser 2074
{In RMB millions, unless othenwyise stated)

Notes 2024 2023
Interest incamme 1.427 848 1,405,039
Interest expense (750,543} (750,026
NET INTEREST INCOME 5 637,405 655,013
Fee and commission Income 126,177 13780
Fee and commission sxpense {16, 7EQ} (1B 534)
MET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME 7 109,397 119,357
Met trading income 8 18,440 14928
Nat gaing an financial invistments 9 22,961 21,560
Other operating expenss, nat 10 (3,077) {4,400
OPERATING INCOME TBG. 126 BOG A58
Operating sxpenses " (242,155} (238, 658)
Credit impairment losses 14 (125,735) (148, 804)
Impalrment kosses on other assets (F24) (2,00:8]
QPFERATING PROFIT 417,308 416,944
Share of results of associates and joind ventures 4,519 5,022
PROFIT BEFORE TAXKATION A21 827 421 966
Income tax expense 15 (54,881} (56,8500
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 366,946 365,116
Profit for the year attnbutable 1o
Equity holders of the parent company 365,863 363,993
Mon-contrafling interests 1,083 1,123
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 366,946 765,116
EARMINGS PER SHARE 18
= Basic (RMB yuan) 0.58 0.58
~ Dituted (RMEB yuan) 0.98 0,98

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2024 159
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' Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2024
iim RMEB millions, uniess othensise stated)

Notes 2024 2023

Profit for the year 366,946 365,116
Other comprehensive moome (after tax, netk 41

{al ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
iy Chamges in fair value of eguity instruments designated as at fair

value through other compreheniion income 37689 1,530

(i) Other comprehensive iIncome recoghised under the equity method 43 %]

{iif) Chers 4 (28}

(k) Herns that may be reclassifed subsequently to prolit or boss:
il Changes in fair value of debt instruments measured a1 fair value
through other compreheminve moome 54514

21,7104
(i) Credit bosses of debt instruments measured at fair value theough
other comprehensive moome (269) 205
{iii} Cash flow hedging reserve 1,332 17
{iv) Dhar comprahensive income recognised under the asquity methad (58) (3721
v} Foresgn currency translatson reserve 9,744 1,623
i) Others (15.246) 15,145
Subtotal of ather comprehense income for the year 51,189 19,227
Total comprehensive moome Tor the year 418,135 384,343
Tatal comprehensive ncome for the year attributable foc
Equity holders of the parent company 418,252 3|38
Non-controlling interedts (LA 422
418,135 364,343

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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| Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2024
{in RMB millions, unless othenwise stated)

Motes 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks. 19 332291 4,042,293
Due from banks and other financal institutions 20 1,219.876 1,116,717
Derivative financial assets 21 222361 75,3559
Reverse mpurchase agreemants 22 1,210,217 1,234,257
Loans and advances to customers 23 27,613,781 25,386,933
Financial investments 24 14,153,576 11,849 668
Financial imvestments measured at far value through
profit or loss 1,010,439 B11,957
Financial investments measured at fair value through
other compeehensive income 3291152 2,230,862
Financial investments measured at amortised cost 9 851,985 8,806, 849
Investments in associates and joint ventures 26 13,357 64,778
Property and equéipment 27 302,387 198,878
Deferred tax assets 28 90,047 104,669
Other assets 29 613333 533,547
TOTAL ASSETS 48,821,746 44,697,079

The accompanying notes foem pan of these consolidated financial staternents
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Consolidated Statement of Finanoal Position
As at 31 December 2024
iIn RAB millions, unless otheraise statedh

Hotes 11 December 2024 31 December 2023
LIABILITIES
[Duse to central banks 169,622 231,374
Duee 1o banks and ather linancal institutions n 4 500,965 3,369 B%8
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss iz 76,056 62,E59
Derivative financial lisbehities 1 197,795 76,251
Repurchase agreements i3 1,523,555 1,018,106
Certificates of deposit 34 445 419 385,198
Dus 1o cusiomers 35 34,836,073 33,521,174
ncome tax payable 31,880 63,322
Debt securing Bioed a6 2,028,731 1,369,777
Deferred tax habikties 28 4,278 3.5930
Other labikties 37 220,215 B18,642
TOTAL LIABILITIES 44,834,480 40,920.49
EQUITY
Equity attributable o equity holders of the parent company
Share capital e 356,407 356,407
Other equity Instrumants ] 374,344 35430
Preferemee dhares 134,614 134614
Ferpetual bonds 169,730 219,717
Reserves 40 1,275,004 1,134,082
Retained profits 2,014,086 1,912,067
_____ ' 3,969,841 3,756,887
Mon-controlling inferests 17,425 19,701
TOTALEQUITY 1,987,266 3,776,588
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 48,621,746 44,697,079
Lisa Lin Liu Jun ¥u Zhisheng
Chairman Vice Chairman and President Persan in charge of Finance and

The accompanyng notes form part of these consalidated financial statements

162 Annual Report 2024

318/483

Accounting Department



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 n(Eess?)
Oooooooa

¥ Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2074
{In RMB millions, unless othenwyise stated)
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]
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ophl ddnertt it mEw mine e maw mem reunn bbell o omis Tl e omay
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T - oy el i 17 - - - . - . = [ (@ Lk
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(fen - - m - - - - - - m - O oeE Bee

Ralaecn 16 31 Docrmber 20 WA UM I BUOE BN NN MDD M DRME LRI M0 RN T MO

(i} Includes interim dividends on ocdinary shares of RMBS51.108 millicn for 2024 and annual dvidends on ordinary shares of
RME109,203 milban for 2023,

fii} Includes the appropriation fo surplus reseree made by ovenseas branches and subsidanes. in the amounts of RMBI8 millicn and
RIET, 237 millian, respectively.

(i} Includes the appropriation to general reserve made by subsdiaries in the amounts of RMB22E millian,

The accompanying noles foem pan of these consolidated financial staterments.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2024
tIm RMB millions, unbess otherwise stated)
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it Includes the appropration 1o surplus rese made by o branches and subsdianes in the amounts of RMET12 mallon
and RMBBST milkon, respectvely,
fih  Inchides the appropriation to general made by subsidiaies in the amounts of AMBESS milion.

The accompanyng notes form part of these consalidated financial statements
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! Consoclidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 Decembser 2074
{In RMB millions, unless othenwyise stated)

Notes 2024 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 421,827 421,966
Adjustments for;
Share of results of associates and joint ventures {4,516} (5,022)
Depreciation 29,553 30,345
Amortisation i1 5.157 4429
Credit impairment |osses 14 125,739 148,808
Irmpairment bosses on other assels o2 Z,008
Unrealised gains on fomeign exchangs {8, FS0) (4,444)
Interest expense on debl securities ssued 50,930 40,967
Accreted interest on impaired loans {1, G} (1,91%5)
Mt gaing on finsncial investmemts (24,190} (23,510
Interest income on financial investments (365,208} (33B6,267)
Met gains on changes in fair value (12,220} 2,711
Mel gains on docktake and disposal of property and equipment and
other assets (other than repossessed assels) {1,308} (1,813
Dividend Income g (3,067 (4,020
216,633 266,821
Nit decreasefintresse) in operating assets.
Due from central banks. 165,650 (176,368
Due from banks and other financial institutions 356,999 85,731
Financial assets measwred at fair value through profit o boss (190,081} (26, Fa0)
Rieverse repurchase agreemants (21,896} 137
Loans and advances to customers 2.277.9770) (2, B9B,S02)
Cther assets (68, 1800 (104, 618)

12,035,485) (3,098, 9810

Met increatafdecrease) in eperating lab#ities:

Financial Babilses measured at fasr value through profit or loss 12,214 714)
Due 1o central banks (61,745} 85,524
Due 1o banks and other financial institutions 1,065,314 160,197
Repurchase agreements 486,521 437 224
Certificates of deposit 51,074 2,116
Due 10 customers B21,679 3,531,968
Cther habilities 108,252 120,166

] 2483349 433648
Net cash flows from operating actnities belome taxation B64, 497 1,504,322
Income tax paid (85,303} (BT, 3200
Miet cash flows from operating actnities 579,104 1,417,002

The accompanying notes form part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 Decomber 2024
tIm RMB millions, unbess otherwise stated)
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Notes 2024 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment and other assets {43,267} {31, 201)
Proceeds fram dispesal of property and equipment and ather aiiels
tother than repossessed assefsh 19,193 7.527
Purchases of financial imvestments 6,499,586} {4.683,824}
Proceeds from sale and redemption of financial ivestments 4,567,823 3453113
Inwestments in associates and josnt ventures {7.700) .37
Proceeds from disposal of associates and joind venitures 5.951 2,730
Ivvestment returmns recened 387,378 360,575
Cash receipts fram other investng activitees 98,770 -
Met cash flows from investing activities [1.471.468) (B91,852)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from ssuance of other equity mstruments 50,872 -
Proceeds from issuance of dabk securitees 2,092 588 1,422,308
Inlerest paid on debl secunties {52,973) {49, 151)
Rapayment of debt secunties (1.463.682) (956, GES)
Cath payment to redeem other equity instrument (80,000} -
Dwidends paid on ordmary shares (109,203) (108, 165)
Dwedends or interest paid 1o other equity mstrumaent hobders {14,963} {14,964}
Dwidends paid 10 non-controlling shareholders (116) (31}
Cath paymant for othet financang activitigs {6,840) {7,860)
Mt cash flows from financing actndties 415,683 285444
MET (DECREASEVINCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1476,551) 810,594
Caih and cash equmvalonts at bqlgnnmg al the year 2,755,732 1,926,851
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 11,263 18,287
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR az 2,290,404 2,755,722
MET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES INCLUDE:
Interest recesved 1,121,140 1,117,401
nterest paid (679, 24) (617,790}

The accomparrymg notes form part of these consolidated financial statements
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] Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(in RMB milliens, unless stheswise stated)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Inchustrial and Cosmmercial Bank of China Limited (the "Bank ®), whech was previowsly known as Industrial and Commerncial
Bank of China ("ICBC"), used to be a wholly-state-owned commercial bank established on 1 January 1584 based on
the authorisation of the State Councd and the People's Bank of Chima (the “FBOC") af the People’s Republic af China
(the "PRLCT). On 28 October 2005, with the approval of the State Coundl, ICBC was restructured and incorporated as
a joint-stock himited company The joint-stock limsted company underiook &l the assets and habilines of ICBC upon the
restructuring. On 27 October 2006, the Bank was listed on both Shanghas Stock Exchange and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited

The Bank obtained authorisatssn to carry out banking business with an institubion code of Mo, BOOOTH11000301
from China Banking Regulatory Commiswen (n 2023, the regulator was renamed the MNational Financial Regulatosy
Administration, hereinafter referred 1o as the "NFRA™) of the PRC. The Bank obtained its business license with unified social
credit code 91 100000100003962T by the S1ate Adminstration for industry and Commmerce, The legal representative is Liao
Lim and the registered office & located at Mo, 55 Fuxingmennei Avenue, Xicheng District, Beijing, the PRC.

The Bank's stock codes of A Shares and H Shares Isted on Shanghat Stock Exchange and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Eong Limited are 601398 and 1398, respectively. The Bank's olfshore prelerence shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and the stock code is 4620, The Bank's domestic preference shares are listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange and the stock codes are 360011 and 360036

The principal actiities of the Bank and its subsidianes (collectively referred to as the " Group” ) comprise corporate financial
senvices, personal financial services, treasury operatsons, imesiment banking, assel management, trust, fmancial leasing,
insurance and other financial services. Domestic establishments refer 1o the Head Office of the Bank, branches and
subsidiaries established in Chinese mainland. Overseas establishments reler to branches and subsidianes establshed n
Jumisdictions oulside Chinese mainland.

2. BASI5 OF PREPARATION
{1) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared i accordance with Intermational Financial Reparting Standards
("IFR%") promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “1A5B"), and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Geverning the Listing of Secunties on The Stack Exchange of Hong
Eong Liméted.

{2) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The conschdated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain financial
imstruments, and certain non-financal asets measured a1 fair value, as further explained in the respective accounting
pobcies below.

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with [FRSS requines managemant to make judgements, estmates and
assumptions that affect the application of pelicies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Judgements made by management in the application of FRS: that have
significant eflect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are disclosed in Note 5,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iIn BARER millions, unbess othersise stated)

3. NEW AND AMEMDMENTS TO IFR5Ss
(1) Application of amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effactive for the current year

in the current year, the Group has applied, for the first tme, the folowing new and amendments 1o IFRSs imued by the
1A5E which are mandatorily effectse for the annual persods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2024 for the preparation of the
Group's consolidated financial statements:

- Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liabdity in a Sale and Laaseback

- Amendments to 1AS 1. Clagsification of Liabiies as Currenl or Non-current
= Amendments to 145 1: Mon-current Labiithes woth Covenants

- Amendmients to 1AS 7 and IFRS 7: Suppiier Finknce Arrangements

The adoption of the abowe amendments to IFRSs has had no material imgact on the financal pasition and fmancial
perdormance of the Group,

(2) New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yot effective

The Group has net apphed the following new and amendments 1o IFRS that have been msued but ane not yet effective:
- IFRS 18: Preseritation and Disclosure w Fnancial Statements?

- IFRS 19: Subsifiaries withowt Pubbic Accountability: Disclosures?

= Amendments to IFRS % and IFRS 7: Classifcation and Measwrerment of Financial instrurmenits?

- Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contnbuton of Assets berween an Investor and its Assocate or fownt
Venture!

=] Amendments to 145 21: Lack of Exchangeability'

Effective for annual peiods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2025
Effective for annual penods beginning on of after 1 lanuary 2036
Effective for annual penods beginning on o after 1 January 2027
Mo mandatory etfectve date yet determined,

b oW R o—

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

The 1ASE ssued IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financal Statements, replacing 1AS 1 Presentation of Fimancial
Staternents. Compared with the current [A5 1, the new requeements in FRS 18 mainly inchude: introducmg three new
categories for income, expenses — operating, imesting and financing to impeove the structure of the income statement,
ontities are required 1o classify all income and expenses within the staternent of profit of loss into one of the five categories:
operating, investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued opefations and to present two new defined subtotals of
operating profit, profit befare financing and income tax; requining the drclosures of management = defined performance
measures to improve the transpasency of perfcemance indicators defined by management, and separately disclose the
roconciiation procis betwean each management performance indicalor and the most directly comparable 1otal or subtotal
iterms specified in IFRSs in the nofes, the caloulation method of each management performance indicator and the description
of its changes, the incoeme tax impact of reconcilation nems and the empact on non-controlling interedts; strengthening
information aggregation and disaggregatien to further wmprove the usefulness of information in financial statements in
docision-making.

IFRS 1& and the consequential amendments to ather IFRSs are effeciove for anmual periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary
2027 wath earlier application pesmitted, Retrospective application | required

The adoption of IFASIE & expected to have no materal impact on the financial position and financal perfesmance of the
Group.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

Amendments to IFRS 8 and IFRS 7 - Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments

The amendments clarify the date on which a financial asset ar finaneial liability |s derscognised and mitroduce an accownting
podcy option to derecognise a financal Eabilidy that is settled through an electronic payment system before the settlement
date o specilied entena are met. The amendments elanily how to mseds the contractual cath Tlew charactenstics of financia
assels wiath environmental, social and governance and other similar contingent {eatures. Moreover, the amendments clardy
the requirements lor classifying fmanclal assets with non-recourse features and contraciually knked instruments, The
amendments also include additenal disclosures for investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other
camprehensive moame and fnancial instruments with contingent features. The amendments shall be applied retrospectively
with an adjustment to opening retained profits {or other component of equity) at the initial applcation date.

The adeption of the amendments 1o IFRSs are expected to have no malenal impact on the financal positien and financial
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale ar Contribution of Assets between an Investar and its
Aszoclate or Jaint Venture

The amendments clarify the accounting treatment for sales or contribution of adsets between an investor and its associates
or joint ventures. The amendments require @ full recognition of a galn or loss resulteng from a downstream fransactson
when the wale of contnbution of assels constitutes a business. For & transaction involving assets that do nat constitute a
business, a gain or boss resulting from the transacton s recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the
unmalated investon's intasest i that sssociate of joint venture. The amendments aie 1o be applied prospectivaly,

Thie adoption of the amendments to IFR%s ame expected to have no matenal impact on the financal position and financial
perfarmance af the Group,

The other new and amendments to IFRSs that have been isswed but not yet effective are expected to have no material
impact an the financial position and finanoal perfarmance of the Group m the foreseeable Tulure

4. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
{1) Functional currency and foreign currency translation
Functional currency

The funcieonal currency of the Group's domestsc establishments & Renminbl ("RMB®) The owverseas establishments
determine their own functional currencies which best represent the economic environment they operate in, These financial
staternents are presented in RMB miions except when othersvise indicated

Farelgn currency translation

Foreign curency transactions are initially recorded i the functional currency using the exchange rates a1 the dates of the
transactions or deemed exchange rates. Monetary assets and labikties denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
inte the functional currency at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting peried, Exchange differences
arising on the setllement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at period end rates are recognised in profi
or loss, with the exception that they are taken derectly to other comprehenseoe income when the monetary lems are
designated as part of the hedge of the Bank's net investment in a foreign entity, and the aggeregate exchange differences
are nat recogrised in profit o foss wntil thee disposal of sich net investmien

Mon-monetary items that are measured at histoncal cost in a foreign currency are translated wsing the exchange rates as
at the dates of the wetal transactions. Nan-monetary derrs measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates a3 ol the date when the fair value is determined, Any goodwill ansing on the acquisition of a
foreign operation and any fair value adjustrents 1o the carrying amounts of assets and habilithes atising on the acquisiton
are treated as foreign assets and labilites of the foreign operation and translated at the deemed rates at the end of the
reporting period. The exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss of in other comprehensive income, depending on
the nature of non-monetary items.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iIn BARER millions, unbess othersise stated)

As ot the end of the reporting penod, the assets and labilities of foreign opevations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Bank at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. For overseas busness not operaling in
a hyperinflationary economy, all items within equity except for retained profits are translated at the exchange rates nuling
at the dates of the tramsactions Income and expenses in the statement of profit or loss are translated using the exchange
rates at the date of the transactions of deemed exchange rates. The exchange differences aising on the above translation
are taken to other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foceign operation, the deferred cumulative amount recagnised
in other comprehensive income relating fo that particular foresgn operation is recognised in profit or koss, The effect of
exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents is presented separately in the statement of cash flaws.

(2) Subsidiaries

Subsidianes arg entities (ncluding structured entitesh controlled by the Group, The Group contreds an entity if it 1§ exposed,
of has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability 1o alfect those returns through its
power aver the enlity. The Group reassesses whother it has contrgl if there are changes 1o one or mone of the sements
of control. This inchudes circumstances in which protective rights held (2.9, those resulting from a lending relaticnship)
become submantive and lead to the Group having power over an entity,

A stroctured entity is an entity that has been designed so that yvoting or similar nights am® not the dominant factor in
deciding who controls the entity, and the relevant activities are directed by means of contraciudd or other arrangements

An irvestment in a subsidsary b consolidated into the comsolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and any unrealsed profit or loss arising
from intra-group ramactions are ahiminated in full in preparmg the consolidited lnancial statements

In the Bank's statement of financial position, investments in subsidianies are stated at cost bess impaimment losses.

{(3) Mon-controlling interests

Moa-conirolling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary nat attnbutable directly or indirecily 10 a parent.

Non-controlling Interests ane presented i the consolidaied statement of financial position within equety, separately fram
equity attributable 12 the equity holders of the Bank. Mon-controlling interests i the resulis of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or boss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprebemine income as an allocation af the total profit o loss and 10%al comprehensve income for the year bebween
nan-controlling interests and the equity holders of the Bank

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not resuft i a loss of contred are accounted for as equity
transactsons, whereby adpustments are made ta the amounts of cantrolling and non-cantralling interests within comoldated
staternent of equity 10 reflect the change in relative inferests, but no adjustments are made 1o goodwill and no gain o boss
it recognised,

(4) Associates and joint ventures

An assofiate is an entity in which the Group has significant mfluence. A joind venture s an arrangement whereby the
Group and other pariies contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and have mghts to the net assets of the
arrangemenl. Other than those measured at fair value through peafit or loss, the Group's investments in associates or point
wentures are accounted Tor using the equety method,

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate oo joent wenture is carried in the consolidated statemment of fimancial
position at cost plus post-acquisibion changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the assocate or joint ventwe, les
any impairment bosses. The consolidated statement of profit or loss reflects the share of the results of operations of the
assaciate of poent veniure, Unrealised prafits and losses resufting from ransactions between the Group and the associates or
foint ventures are eliminated 1o the extent of the Group's interests in the associates or joint ventures. Unrealned losses are
also eliminated unless evidence of mmpairment on the transferred assets B provded Tor the transaction
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

W an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joent veniuhe, the retained interest is not re-measured. Instead,
the irvestment contmnues 1o be accounted under the equity. method, and vice versa

In the Bank"s staternent of finanoal position, investments in associates and joint ventures ate stated a1 cout bess impamment
losses,

{5) Business combination and goodwill

Busineis combinations ame sccounted for by applang the acquisition method, The Group can elect 1o apply an optional
concentration test, on a tramsaction-by-tramsaction bass, that permats a smplified assessment of whether the acquired set
of asiets i nol 4 business. If the concentration test i< met, the set of assels i3 determined not fo be a business; otherwise,
the Group shall then perform an assessment in accordance with the reguirements of business. The consederation transferred
is measured 81 scquisition date falr value whach is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities assumed by the Group fo the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in schange for control of the acquires, Any costs directly atinbatable 1o the combination are recognaed in profit o ko
whin incurred.

When the Group acquires & business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilites assumed for appropriate cdassification and
designation in sccordance with the contractual terms, sconamic circurmalances and pertinent conditions as at the soquibtion
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives from host contracts of the acqueree.

H the business combsnation 1§ achieved in stages, the acquiner’s previously beld equity interest m the acqueree s reameasurod
to the acquasition date fair value through profit or koss.

Any contingent consderation 1o be transterred by the scquirer 13 recogrised ot fair value at the acquisition date,
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is dassified as a financial asset er financial
lability, is recognised n geofit or loss. If the contingent conmideration i classified a3 equity, 1t shall not be re-measured, and
its subrsequent settbernent is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill 1 mitially measwred a1 cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consderation transfemmed, the amoun
recognised for non-controling intevests and the fair value of the acquirer's previously-held equity imterest in the
acquires over the net af the acquision-date amounts of the identfiable assets and habslties acquired. If the sum of this
consideration and other ems is bower than the fair vakse of the net assets of the subsidsary acquired, the difference i,
after reassessment, recognised in prafit of loss a5 gains on bargam purchase

After initial recognition, goodwall is measured at cost less any accumulated smpasrment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impasrment annually or more frequently I events or changes in crcumatances indecate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual Empairment test of goodwill at year end date. For the purmpose of impaisment
testing, goodwill arising m & business combinatson 15, from the scquisitkon date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units {"CGU"L or group of CGUs, that ae expected 1o benefit from the synergses of the combination,
immespectnig of whether other assets of liabilitses of the Growp are assigned to these units or groups of units,

Impasrment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the CGLU or group of CGLUs to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the CGU or group of CGUs & bess than the carrying amount, an impairment boss s
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill s not reversed in subsequent period.

Whete goodwill forms part of a CGU o group of CGUs and part of the operatson within that unit s disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is Inclhuded m the carmying amewnt of the operation when drtermineng
the gain o loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in ths circumstance s measured based on the relative
values of the eperation disposed of and the partion of the CGU or group of CGUs retained
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(6] Related parties

A party is considered to be refated to the Group if:
fal  the party is a person or & close member of that person's farmily and that person:
i hascontrol or joint contred over the Group;
(i has significant influence ewver the Growp; or
i} iz & member al the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group,

()  the party is an entity whedse any of the follcwnng condstions applies:
(i} the entity and the Group afe members of the same group;

() one entity is an associale of joint venlure of the othes entity (or of a parent, subsideary o0 fellow subssieary of
the othar entity):

fill}  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;
i} one entity 15 a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity 15 an associate of the third entity,

(v} the enlity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related 10 the Group;

(i) the entity is controlled o pntly controlled by a person identified in (al;

twil} a person identified = (ali} has significant influsnce over the entity or is a member of the key management
persannel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

iwiii)  the entity, or any member of a Group of which it &5 a pan, provdes key management personnel services to the
Group or 1o the Group's parent,

{7) Classification and measurement of financial instrumants

A financial nstrurment is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial labikty or equity
wstrument of anather entity.

(i} Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments

A srtial recognithon, financial asets and linancial kabilites are mabsuted at fair value Fof fnancial adipts and financial
liabikties measured at fair value through profit o loss (FYTPLY), any related directly aninbatable transaction costs are
charged to profi or loss; for other calegodes of financial assets and financial labilities, any rolated directly attributable
transactson costs are included m their initial recognised value.

Fair value 15 the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderdy transaction bebween
market partecspants a1 the measurement date,

When mesxsuring fasr value, the Group shall take into account the characterstics of the asset or labdity i market
partiopanits would take those characterstics mio account when pricing the asset of liability at the measurement date
{includang the condition of the asset; and restrictions, if any, on the sale of wie of the atset), and use valuation technigues
that are apgeopnate in the orcumstances and for which sulficent data and other information are available to measure fair
walue, The adopted valustion technsques mainly include market appraach, income approach and cest approach.
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{if) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Classification of financial assets

The dassificatson of financial assets i generally based on the business model in which a financial asset 5 managed and its
contractual cash flow charactenntics, Cn inital recognition, & financal asset n casaled as measured at amontned cost, at
fair value through other compeehensive income ("FYTOCI"), or at FVTPL

Financial asiets are nod reclassified subsequent to ther initlal recognition unless the Group changet ity busness model Tos
managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in the business madel

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost i 1 meets bath of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FYTPL.

= it is held within & business model whose objective i3 to hold assets 1o collect contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specfied dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and intarest on
the principal amount cutitanding,

A financial asset is measurad at FVTOCH if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FYTPL

- it is held within & business model whose objectme i3 achieved by both collecting contraciual cash fhows and sellng
finanoiad assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specfied dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the prncipal amount catstanding,

On inital recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may evocably elect 1o present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value m other compeehensive income, This election s made on an investment-
by-inwvestment basis, and the relevant investment chould meet the definition of equity instrument from the perspective of
tha iuer,

All financial assets mot classified as measured at amorsed cost or PVTOC! as described above are measured at FVTPL. On
inifial recognition, the Group may irevocably dessgpnate a fimancial asset that cthonwize meets the reguerements 1o be
mieasured at amortised cost or at FVTOC as at FYTPL i doing so efiminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would atherwise arse.

The business model refers to how the Group manages it5 financial assets in order fo generate cash flows. That &, the
Group's business model determines whether cash flowas will result from eollecting contractual cash flows, seling financial
assets, or both. The Group determines the business model for managing the hinancial assets according to the facts and
based on the specdic busness objeciree for managing the fmancal assets determined by the Group's key management
personnel

I assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the princpal amoun
outstanding, the Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument, For the purposes of this assessment, principal is
defined as the fair value of the financial asset on inital recogneteon, Interest 15 defined as consideration for the time value
of money and for the eredit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during & particular period of time and for
other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin, The Group also assesses whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that cowld change the timing or amoeunt of contracteal cash flows such that it would not meet the above
contractual cash flows charactenstics.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets measured at FVTPL

These finanoal assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Met gains and losses, inchuding any interest or dividend
income, are recognised in profit or loss unless the fmancial assets are part of 4 hedging relationship
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Financial assets measured at amortised cost

These assets ate sulnequently measured at amorticed codt using the effective interest method. A gain of lass en a fnancisl
asset that 5 measwed at amortised cost and i not part of a hedging refationship shal® be recognised in profit or loss when
it financial asiel 5 derccognned, amorbed of mpained.

Debt instruments measured at FVTOC!

These assets are subsequently meaxsurad at fair value. Interest income calculated uwsng the effective interest maothod,
wnmpairment and foreign exchange gains and lowses are recognised In prolit or less Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other compeehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income
arg reclassified to profit or los.

Equity instruments measured at FVTOC|

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dvidend income s recognised in profit or loss for the pened, Other
el gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
ather comprehensive income are reclsilied 10 retained earmmegs

{ifi} Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at FYTPL and other mancial liabslities.

Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL

A financiad hability is classified as measured at FVTPL f 11 is classified as held-for-tradng (including derrative fnancial
Fiability} or it is designated as such on nitial recognition.

A financial liabdlity may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition i

{1} such designation eliminates or significantly reduces accounting mssmatch;

12} the Group makes management and performance evaluation on a fair value basis for a portfolio of finanoial labiktes
or a portfelio of financal assets and financial llabshities, in accordance with the Group's formally decumented risk
management of investment strategy, and reports to key management personnel on that basis;

13)  the qualfied hybrid contract that containg embedded dervatves.

Financial kabilities measured at FYTPL are subsequently measured at fair value and net gains and losses (incheding amy
interest expensel are recognited in profit or loss, unless the flinancial Habikties are part of a hedging relationshap.

For the financial liatslities moasured st FVTPL, the gains and loswes from changes in fair vahee of the financial lability arising
from changes in the Group’s own credit msk are included in other comprehensive income, other changes in fair value
of the financial liabilities se recognised in profit o loss for the period. If the treatmant of the impact of changes = the
fimancial liabilities” ocwn credit sk will create of enlarge the accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Group shall recognise
1he entire gains or kosses of the financial liabdities {incheding the amount of the impact of changes in s own credit risk)
in prafit and loss. When these lisbilities are derecognised, the cumufative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensve income are reclassified Trom reserve 1o relained eamings
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Other financial liabilities

Other financial labslities are subsequently measuned at amortised cost wing the effective imteren method,

fiv) Financial instruments reclassification

The Growp will reclassify all related financal assets when i changes its business model for managing financial assets, and
the reclassification applies piospectively from the reclassificatson date dthe first day of the fust reporting peried following
the chinge in business model]

{8) Trade date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of fmancial assels are recognised at the trade date, which is the date that the Group
comnmis 1o purchase or sell the asets, A reguler way purchase or sale is the purchase or sabe of financl assets that
requires delivery of assets within tha time frame generally established by regulation or conventicn in the marketplace.

(9) Presentation of financial instruments

Fimancial assets and financial lishslities are generally presented separately in the statement of financial posion and shad not
be affset. However, a fimancial assel and a financial labslity are offset and the net amount is presented in the staternient of
fimancial position when both of the following conditions are satisfied:

= the Group currently has a legally enforceable right 1o set off the recogniied amounts; and

- the Group intends either to seitle on a net basis, or 10 realise the fimandal asset and settle the financal Habilkty
wiriLi Naneauwrly.

{(10) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognies loss allowances for expected credit loss (TECLT) on:
- finamcia assets measured at amorised cost,

- debt instruments measuned at FYTOCL, and

= loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

Financial assets measuned at far value, including debt or equity instruments measured at FYTPL, gty instruments
designated as at FVTOLO! and derivatve financial assets, are not subgect to ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECL

ECL 5 a probability-weighted amount of credit losses on financial instruments that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weight, Credit losses are measunod as the present value of all cash shortfalls {i e, the differance
between a¥f cath Tlows discounted at effective interest rates and receivable in accordance with the contract and all cash

floras that the Group expects 1o recen),

The Group's method of measuring ECL of financial instruments reflecis the following elements: (i) unbiased weighted
average probability determined by the reiults of evaluating a range of possible oulcomes; (=) time value of money: and (i)
reasonable and evidence-based information about past events, current condstions, and future economic forecasts that are
avadable a1 no additional cost or effort ot the end of the eporting penod

The maxsmum period considered when estimating ECL & the maximum contractual period (inciuding exiension opbions) oves
which the Group i exposed to credit rsk

Lifetime ECL s the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected bfe of a financial instrument.

12-month ECL is the portion of ECL that result from default events that are possibla within the 12 months after the end of
the reporting penod for a shorter period if the expected bfe of the istrument & less than 12 menths)
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The Group classshes financial instruments into the following throe stages and provides provisions for ECL accordingly,
depending on whether credit nsk on that financial instrement has increased sgnificantly since initial recognition,

Stage 10 A finangal mstrument af which the credit mk has not signsficantly increazed since initial recognition. The amouent
that equals to 12-menth ECL is recognised as loss allowanoe.

Stage 2: & financal instrument with a sgnificant mcrease in credit ntkc since initial recognition but is not considered to be
credit-impaired. The amount that equals to Metime ECL & recognised as loss allowance. Refer to Note 50{a) credst risk for
that descriptean of how the Group determines when o ugnificant increase in credit riskc hay occurred,

Stage 3 A financial instrument is considered to be oedit-impaired as at the end of the reporting periad. The amount that
equal to lifetime ECL & recognised as boss allowance. Refer 1o Note SO0} credit mik for the definition of credit-impaired
fimancial assets.

Presentation of allowance for ECL

ECL s re-smeasured at the end of each reporting period to reflect changes in the fimnancial instrument’s credit risk since
Emitiad resegnition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or koss, The Growp
recaqgnises impalrment gains or losses for financial snstruments measured at amortised cost with a cofresponding adjustment
ta their carrying amount through allowange for impairment loss. For debt instruments that are measured at FYTOC), the
loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income, which does not decrease the carying amount of the fiancial
assets. The Group recognises boss allowance for loan commitments and financid guaraniee contracts through other
Habikties (provisions Tor credid commitments),

Write-off

The gross camying amount of a financial assel & wiitten off (esther partially ar in fulll 1o the extent that there s no realistic
prospect of recovery. A write-off constilules a derecognition event. This i generally the case when the Group determines
that the deblor doed not have ascels of sowrces of meome that could generate sulficient cach flows to repay the amounts
subject to the wrte-off, However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
1o comply with the Group's proacedures lor recovery af amounts due. Sulsequent recaveries of an aiset that was previously
witten off are recognised as a reversal of imgairment in profit oo loss m the penod in which the recovery ocours.

{11} Modification of financial assets contracts

In some cases (such as rescheduled loans), the Group may renegotiate or othensse modify the financlal assets contracts.
The Group would dssess whether or not the new contraciual terms are substantinly different 1o the aniginal terms. i the
terms are substantially different, the Group derecagnises the original financial asset and recognises a new asset under the
rovised torma. If the renegotiation or modification does. not result in derecognition, but leads 1o changes in contractual cash
fhowes, when assessing whether a significant increase in credit nsk has occurred, the Group compares the risk of a default
aocurting under the revised torms as a1 the ord of the reporting peicd with that as a1 the date of initial recognition under
oniginal terms

{12) Deracognition of financial assets and liabilities
Derecognition of financial assets

Financial asst 15 derecogrised when one of the follewing conditions is met:

- the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows fram the finandal asset expire;

= the financial asset has been transderred and the Group tramsfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownershap
of the financial asset; or

- the financial asset has been transferred, although the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, it does not retan control over the transfermed asset.
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Whera the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an amel or has relained i3 nghts to receive cash
flosws Froms the asset but assumed the obligation 1o pay those cash flows to the eventual recepients and meamwvhile meet the
conditions of the transfer of financial assets, and has neither iransferved nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transfermed contrel of the asset, the asset is recognesed 1o the extent of the Group®s continuing mvolement
in the asser. Continuing invebvement that takes the form of a guaranter over the transferred asset is measured a1 the lower
of the ariginal carrying amount of the asset and the masimum amount of consderation that the Group could be reguired
ho repay

Securitisation

As part of its operationad activities, the Group secuntoes credit assets. When a securitisation of financial asseis dioas not
qualify fer derecognition, the relevant finanoal assets are not derecognmed, and the conuderation paid by third partses
are recorded as a financial liabslity; When a financial asset & transferred, and if the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownerthip of the financial asiet, but retaond control, the Group conlifuds
to recognise the fnancial asset to the estent of its continuing involvement in the financiad asset, Gains of kosses on
secaritisation are the difference between the carrying ameunt of the derecognised fimancial assets and the consideration
recetved which is recognesed in profit or boss.

Sales of assets on condition of repurchase

The derecognition of fmancal assers sold on condrmon of repurchase o determined by the economic substance of the
transaction. I a financial asset is sold under an agreement to repurchase the same or substantially the same asset at a
fooed price or a1 the sale prce plus a reasonable retum, the Group will not derecognise the asset. I a financlal aswet s
sold together with an option to repurchase the finanoal asset at ds fair walue at the time of repurchase, the Group wll
derecognise the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises 4 financial abality {or part of it} only when its contractual obligation (or part of ith i extinguishad

{13) Derivatives and hedge accounting
Derivatives

Dertvatree financial sstruments are mitlaly recognised at far value on the date on which a dernalive contract m entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are camied as assets when the fair value is posstive and as
luabilithes wehen the fair value & negative,

I the hait contract included in tha hybed contract 18 a linancial asiet, the embedded defvatve i fa langer bt from the
main contract of the financial asset, and the hybnd financial mstrument as a whole is related to the dassifcation of the
financial asset provision, If the st contract included in the hybrid contract is not a financial atsed, when the embedded
derivative’s economic characieristics and nsks are not cdosely related to those of the host contract, those separate
instrumenis with the same terms a5 the embedded dervatve would meet the definition of a dervative, and the hybeid
instrument s not camried at FVTPL, derivatees embedded i other financial instruments should be split from the hybed
contract and treated a3 separate dervatives, These embedded dervatives are measured at fair value wath the changes in fasr
vialue recognised in profit or boss.

Any changes in falr value on denvatve financial instruments that ane not designated as hedging instruments and do not
meet the requirements for hedging instruments, including those intended 1o hadge specific interest rate and exchange rate
reiks but do not quabfy for hedgng accounting, ane taken derectly 1o profit o loss,

For less complex dervative products, the fair vabues are principally determmned by valuatson models which are commenky
used by market paniopanis, Inputs 1o valuation models are determined from observable market data wherever possible,
inchuding foresgn exchange spot and fonward rates and interest rate yield curdes. For more complex derivative peoducts, the
fair values are mainly determined by quoted prices from dealers.

Anpual Report 2024 177

333/483



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 n(Eess?)
Oooooooa

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iIn BARER millions, unbess othersise stated)

Hedge accounting

A1 the inception of a bedgng relationship, the Group formally designates the hodging instruments and the hedged Rerms,
and decuments the hedging relationship to which the Group wishes 1o apply hedge accounting and the risk management
abjectrg and strategy lor undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes entilication of the hedging instrement, the
hedged tem or transaction, the nature of the msk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument's
effectiveness m offsetting the exposure ta changes in the hedged nerm’s Tasr valus or cash llows attributable te the hedged
risk. Such hedges are espected to meet the hedge effectveness o achieving offsetting changes in fair vaklue or cash
flows and are assessed on an on-gong basis 1o analyse the sources of hedge ineffeciveness which are expected to alfect
the hedging relationship in remaining hedging period. if a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectweness
requirement relating 1o the hedge ratio, but the sk mansgement obgective for that designated hedgeng relationship
remains the same, the Group would rebalance the hedging relationship,

Cenain dervative transactsons, while provding effective economic hedges under the Group's sk management positions,
do not qualify for hedge accounting and ase therefore treated as desvatives held for trading with fair value gains or losses
recognised m profit o ko

Fair value hedges

Fair value hedges are hedges of the Group's exposure 1o changes in fair value of a recognined asset or liability or an
wrrecognised finm commstment, or an identified portion of such an asset, lability or unrecognised fm commitment, that
& attributable 1o a particular nsk and could alfect the peolit or loss of ather comprehinsive income. Amang them, the
arcumstances affecting other comprehensive income are limited to the hedging for the risk esposure from fair value change
of non-trading equity investment designated as at FYTOCL, For fair value hedges, the carmpng amount of the hedged item
nat already measured at fair vakee s adjusted for the gain or loss attributable to the sk being hedged and i taken 1o profit
of |oss or other comprehonsive income. The gains or losses for hedging instrument re-measured ot fair value ane taken to
peofit or loss or other comprehensive income,

When the hedged iterm in a fair value hedge 5 measured a1 amortised cost, any hedge adjustment to its casrging amount s
amartised to profit or boss. The amortisation is based on a recaboulated effective interest rate at the date when amortation
begine.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is dessgnated a3 a hedged item, the subsequent cumutative change in fair value of
the {em commitment attributable 10 the hedged risk i recognesed as an asset or labslity with a comresponding gain or loss
recognised m profit or boss. The changes in fair value of the hedging instrument are also recognised in profit or loss

The Group discontinues Tair value hedge accounting when the hedoing relationship ceases o meet the qualifying enteria
after taking into account any rebalancing of the hedging relationship, induding the hedging instrument has expred o has
been sold, terminated or exercised. If the hedged ilems are derecognized, the unameoriised adjustment to carrying amount
5 recorded in profit of loss.

Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedges are hedges of the Group's exposure to variabdity in cash flows that is atiribatable to a particular risk
associated with a recognaed asuet or kability, a highly probable forecast transaction or & component of any such em, and
coruld affect profit or boss. For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or koss on the
hedging instrument & initially recognised dwectly in ather comprehenside ncome, The neffective portion of the gan o loss
on the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in profit or loss

When the hedged cash flow affects profit o loss, the gain or leas on the hedgmg nstrument recognised directly i other
comprehersive income s recycled in the corresponding income or expense line of the statement of profit or loss. When
ihe hedging relationship ceases to meet the qualifying eriteria after 1aking nte accownd any rebalancing of the hedging
relationship, incuding the hedging mstrument his expired or has been sold, terminated or exercised, any cumulatiee gains
of loises existang in other comprehendsive income at that time remaing in other comprehentve income wntil the hedged
{orecast tramsaction ultimately occurs. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to ooowr, the curmulative gain or
loss that was reported n ather comprehensve Income Is immediately transferred to profit or loss.
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Net investment hedges

A net investment hedge is a8 hedge of the currency ek of & net investment in a foreign insttution opecation

Hedges of net mwestments in foresgn operations are accounted for simidarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the
hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge i recognised directly in other comprehensiae incorme, the
gain or loss refating to the meffective portion is recognised in profit or koss immediately. Gaing and losses accumulated in
other comprehanuve income are included in profit o loss when the foreign opetation is deposed of a5 part of the gaing o
losses on the disposal,

{14} Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions (including securities borrowing and
lending)

Assats wohkd under agreements to repurchase at a speafied future date (“repos”) are not derecognised from the statement
of femancial position. The corresponding cash recesved, including accrued interest, is recognised on the staterment of
financial powstion a8 “repurchase agreemant”, The ditference between the sale and repurchase prices is treated a5 an
Imerest expense and is amortised over the life of the agreement wsing the effective interest method,

Comersely, asets purchased under agreements to resell at a specified future date ["reverse repos”) are not recogrised on
the statemant of financial positan. The corresponding cash paid, including accrued interest, is recognised on the statement
of financlal positon as a “reverse repurchise agreement”

According to the policy of classification of financial assets, the reverse repurchase agreements hald by the Group were
diwided into different dasulicatons sccording (o the enlity’s business model for managing the fmancial Instruments and the
contractual cash Hlow characteristics of the assets: financial assets measured al amortsed cost and financial assets measured
at FVTPL. The difference betwesn the purchase and resale prices of reverse repurchase agreements measured ot amortsed
cost is treated as an nterest income and is amartised over the life of the agreement wsing the elfective interast method,

Secunties bomowing and lending transactions are wiually collateralised by secusities or cash The transfer af the securitms
1o counterparties i only reflected on the statement of financial position i the risks and rewards of ownership are also
transferred. Cash advanced or received as collateral is recorded as an asset or liability,

Secuntios boerowed are not mecognised in the vatement of financial position, unless they are then sold 1o third partios, in
which case the obligation to retum the securities is recorded as a financial llability held for trading and measured at fasr
value with any gasrs of lodsses mchided in profit or loss

{15) Insurance contracts
Identification of insurance cantracts

The Group s exposed 1o msurance ek due 1o the tsuance of insurance contracts, insurance risk (5 the ek, other than
fnancial risk, transferred from the hofder of a confract 10 the ssuer. The Group assesses the significance of insurance sk
coniract by contract. A contract [s an irdwance contract only i 1t transfers significant insurance risk. A contract that s
assessed a3 meeting the definition of an insurance contract at the contract commencement date will not ba re-assessed
subsequently, An insurance contract shall be devecognized W the obligations under such contract are discharged due to
fulfilment, cancellation o expiration.

Grouping of contracts

The Group wentifies portiolios of insurance contracts. A portiolio comprses contracts subject to simélar msks and managed
together, The Group further divides pertfolios of insurance contracts inte groups of Insurance coniracts, whach are taken as
the unit of measurement. Insurance contracls ssued less than ooe year apart and having similas expected profitabelity are
incheded In the same group,

H & group of msurance contracis i5 onerous at the date of insial recognition, or if additional loss 15 caused by contracts
added to the group of onerous confracts, the Group recognizes & lods as nsurance Sensce expenses.
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Excapt for groups of onerous contracts, the Group reasonably determines the coverage units of contract groups for each
accountng pencd of the coverage period based on the modes o prowde nsurance contract services and allocates the
carrying amount of contract service margin as the insurance revenue for the current and subsequent periods,

Recognition and measurement of insurance contracts

On initial recognition, the Group measures 8 group of insurance contracts at the total of the fulfilment cash flows and
the contraciual service mangin, and recognises an nsurance contract lability. Confractual sennce margn represents the
unearned profit the Group will recognise a5 it provides services under insurance contracts in the future. The fulflment
cash {lows compene estimatos of futwe canh flows directly atinbutable to fulfilling insurance contracts, an adjustment to
reflect the time value of money and the financiad risks and a risk adjustment for non-financial rsk. An Group™s own non-
perdormance risk 14 not laken inlo account in estimating the fullilment cash flows. Ruk adjustment for non-linancial nsk
represents the compensation the Group requires for beaning the uncertainty about the amount and timing of fulure cash
Tlewes that anses from non-financial sk & the entity Tullils insurance contracts,

The Group measures insurance confracts with the general model, applymng the variable fee approach or premium allocation
approach, and subsequently measures the insurance contract habilees a1 the end al the reporting periad at the sum of the
liabikty foe remaining coverage and the Bability for incurred claims. The Group recognises the reduction in the liability for
rernaining coverage becaune of services provided in the peniod as insurance revenue, The Group recognises the morease
im the liabiity for incurred daims becawse of claims and expenses incured in the period and any subsequent changes in
fulfilment cash flows relating 1o incumed claims and incurded expenses & iurance senice expenses. The Group allocates
insurance acquisition cash flows 1o each acoounting period af the coverage period as insurance revenue and recognises the
A& AMSUNL A% INGUFARCE SEMGCE EXpEnses

The Group recognises the change in the lability for remaining coverage and the hability Tor incurred claims becarse of the
effect of the time value of money and the effect of financial sk as financal changes of insurance contracts. The Group
elects 10 disaggregate financial changes of insurance contracts and include such changes in imurance finance income of
expenses for the penod and other comprehensive income.

{16) Leasas

A lease s when the lessor conveys the nght te control the ute of an asset for & petod of time in exchange for the
consideration of the lesses.

At inception of & contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or containg, & lease. A contract i, of contains, & lease
if the contract conveys the nght to controd the wse of one or moee identified assets for a period of time in exchange for
corlderation,

To assess whether a contract conveys the nght to control the use of an ientified asset, the Group assesses whether:

- the contract woles the use of an entified asset. An identified asset may be specified explicithy o implicithy in a
contract and should be physically distingt, or o capasity portion or cther portion of an amet that & not physically
distinct but represents substantially all of the capacily of the asset and thereby provides the cusiomer with the
right to obtain whsantiafy all of the econome: benefis from the uie of the asser, If the supphor hax a substantive
substitution right throughout the penod of wse, then the asset is not identified,

= the lessee has the nght to oblan substantialy all of the economsc benefits from wse of the asset throughout the
period of use;

- the lesses has the right to direct the use of the asset

For a contract thal contans more than one separale lease component, the lessee and the lessor sepasate lease components
and account for each lease component as a lease separately. For a contract that contains lease and non-lease companents,
the lessee and the bessor separate lease components from non-lease components. Howewver, for the leases in which the
Group & 8 lesses, the Group has elected not to separate lease companents from non-lease components and accounts for
the lease and non-lease components as a single lbase component,
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fi)  As a lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-ute asset and 4 lease lability af the lease commencement date. The right-of-use st i
imstially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, any bease payments made at or before
the commencarment date (ledi any lease incentives recessad), any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of codls 1o
dismantle and remove the underlying asset of 1o restore the site on which it is located or restore the underhying asset to the
condstion required by the terma and conditions ol the lease

The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method, i the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
aplion by the énd of the lease term, the rnght-of-uie &set 1 depreciated over the remalnng uteful Ives of the underlyng
asset. Otherwase, the nght-of-use asset s deprecated from the commencement date to the eadier of the end of the useful
Ide af the right-of-use auset or the end of the lease tesm, Impairment |osses of nghi-of-use sssels are accounted for
accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 4(23)

The lease Nabilty is initially measured at the peesent value of the lease payments that are not pad at the commencement
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group wies the mcremental borrowing rate if the interest rate
Implicit in the lease s not readidy deferminable. Each institution of the Group uses an interest rate that a lesses would have
o pay to borrow over a simifar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary 1o obtain an asset of & similar value 1o
the right-of-use asset in & similar economic environment as the incremental borrowing rate.

A constant pencdic rate 15 used to calculate the interest on the fease Bability in pach period dunng the lease torm with a
cofresponding chamge to profit or loss or included in the cost of assets where appropriate. Vanable lease payments not
inchrded i the measurernent of the lease liability are charged 1o prafit or koss or induded in the cost of asets where
appropriate as incured.

Undar the following crcumstances after the commencement date, the Group re-measures lease liabilities based on the
present value of revised lease payments:

- these 13 & change in the m-wubstance fixed lease payments;
- there 15 a change in the amounts expected to be payable under a residual valus guarantee;

- there ts a change in future bease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate used to determine those
pamienl

- there is a change in the assessment of whether the Group will exercise a purchase, extension or lerménation option,
or thete is a change in the exercre of the extension ar termination option

When the lease kability s re-measured, a corresponding adjustment s made to the camang amount of the nght-of-use
assel, o is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amownt of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zer

The Groug has elecied not to recognise nght-of-use assets and fease liatilities for short-term keases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less, and does not contain any purchase oplion and leases of low-value atsels. The Group recognises
the lease payments associated with these leases in profit or loss or as the cost of the assets where apgeopriate using the
strasghit-line method over the lease term.
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() As a lessor

The Group determanes st bease inception whether sach lease i 3 finance lease or an operating lease. A lease v classifisd
as a fmance bease i it transfers substantially all the nsks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
wrrespective ol whether the legal title 10 the asset i eventually trarderred. An operating lease i a lease ather than & finance
lease.

When the Group Is a sub-lessor, 0 assesses the lease clasufication of a sub-lease with reference to the right-ol-ute asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If the head lease 15 a short-term lease to which the
Group apphes practical expedeent described above, then i1 elasifies the sub-lease as an operaling lease.

Under a finance kase, at the commencement date, the Group recogrises the finance lexe receivable and d!‘m:uqﬁts- the
finance lease asset. The finance lease receivable s initially measured at an amount equal o the net investment in the lease.
The net investment i the lease is measured at the aggregate of the unguaranteed residual value and the present value
af the lease receivable that are not received at the commencement date, discounted wsing the interest rate implicit in the
Fease,

The Group recognises finance income over the lease tesm, based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return.
The impairment and derecognition of the finance lease recervable are recognaed in accordance with the acoounting policy
in Motes A(10) and 4{12). Vanable lease payments not induded in the measurement of net inestment in the lease are
recogrised a5 meome as thay are carmed,

Lease receipis from operating leases is recognised a5 income using the straight-line method over the lease term. The initial
direct costs incurmed in respoct of the operating lease are initially capitalised and subsequently amortized in profit or los
ower the kease term on the same basis as the lease income. Variable leaze payments not included in lease receipts are
recogrised a5 meome as thay are carmed,

(17} Financial guarantee contracts

The Group wsues financal guarantee contracts, mcluding letters of credit, letters of guarantes and acceplance. These
fimancial guarantee contracts provide for specified payments 1o be made to reimburse the holders for the losses they nour
when a guaranteed party defaults under the onginal or modified 1erms of a debt instrument, loan or any other obligation.

The Group initially measures all financial contracts at fasr value, in other liabélities, being the premium recesed. This
amaunt i recognised ratably ever the pened of the contract & fee and commiision income. Subsequently, the Rabiltes are
measured at the hagher of the amount of the loss allowance determened in accordance with smpasrment policies of fmancial
mstruments and the amount mitially recognsed less the cumadative amount of income. Any Increase in the lability relating
1o a financial guarantee s taken to the statement of profit or loss.

(18} Fiduciary activities

When the Group acts in a fidudary capacity such as custodian of agent, assets ariing thereon together with related
undertakings o return such assets to customers are excluded from the statemment of financial position,

The asset custody senvices of the Group refer to the busness that the Group as trustes approved by regulatory authorities,
signs omstody agreement with clents and takes the respomsibility of trustee i accordance with rebevant laws and
regulations, The assets under custody are not recorded on the statement of financial position as the Group merely Tulfils the
responsability as trustee and charges fees in accordance with these agreements without retaining any risks or rewards of the
assets under custody.

The Group grants entrusted loans on behall of trustars, which are recorded off-balance sheet. The Group, a3 a tnustes,
grants such emtrusted koans to bomowers under the direction of those trustors who fund these loans. The Group has been
contractod by these trustons 1o manage the administraton and collecton af these loans on their behall, Those trustors
determine both the underwriting onteria for and the terms of all entrusted loans including thelr purposes, amounts, interest
rates, and repayment schedules. The Group charges a commission related 1o its actinties i connecison with entrusted loans
whhich are recognesed ratably over the pencd in whech the service is proveded. The risk of boss is bome by those trustors.
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{19) Preciowus metals

Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. Precious metaks that are not related to the Group's precious
metals trading activities ane milially measured at acquisition ¢ost and subsequently measured o1 the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Precious metals acquired by the Group for trading purposes are instially measured at fair value and
subsequent changes in fair value are recorded in the statement of profit or loss

The Group records the precious metals reconed as an asset. A liability to return the amount of precious metals deposited is
alse recognised, The precious metals deposted with the Group are measured at fair value both on initial recognition and in
subiequent measurement,

(20) Property and equipment

Property and equipment, other than construction in progress are stated at costs bess accumulated depreciaton and
any Impairment loss. The cost of an item of preperty and equipment comprises (ts purchase price, tax and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its present woeking condition and tocatesn for its intended wse. Expenditure
incumred after iterms of property and equipment have been put into operatian, such as repais and maintenance, & normally
charged 1o profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition critevia are satisfied, the
expenditure fos & major inspection 15 capitalised in the carmyng amount of the sset & & replacement

Construction in progress compeses the derect costs of construction during the persed of construction and s not depreciated.
Construction in progress o reclassified 1o the approgeiate category of property and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

The camying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when evenis or changes in arcumstances
indicate that the carrying walues may not be recoverable.

Depreciation is caloulated on the straight-lne bass to write off the cost of each item of properly and equipment, less any
estmated residual value, over the estimated wseful lite, The estimated useful Bfe, estimated resdual value rate and the
annual depreciation rate of each item of property and equipment (excluding aéncraft and vessels) are as follows:

Estimated Estimated residual Annual

useful life walue rate depreclation rate

Properties and bulldings 5-50 years 0%-3% 1.94%-20%
Office equipment and motor vehicdes

(exchuding aiccraft and vessels) 2-T years - 14.29%-50%

The sharter of the economec

Leasehald improvements useful lnies and remalning lease terms

Equipment under operating leases where the Group is the |essor comtains aircrafi, aircraft engmes and wvessels. The
estimated wsrul [ees and depreciation mgthods are determined according to the condions of indiadual aircraft and vessel,
The estimated residual values are assessed by an independent appraiser based on historical data. The estimated wseful fves
range from 15 to 25 years

For an impaired ficed asset, the depreciation & calculated based on the camying value less the cumlative impairment loss.

Whete parts of an item of proporty and equipment have ddferent useful lives, the cost of that item = allocated on &
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Reudual values, useful lves and depreciation methods ame ressewed, and adpsted f appropriate, at least at each financial
yaar end

An derm of property and equipment s derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are cxpecied from
i1s wse or disposal, Any gain or boss arising from derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net
dispasal proceeds and the carrying amount of the aswet) is included in the statement of profit or loss & the year the asset s
derecognised
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{21} Land use rights

Land use nghts are recognised at cost, being the fair value at the time of injection from the central government of the PRC
ithe “Government”) during the Group’s restructuning or the consderation paid. The nghts are amodtied usng the strasght-
lime mathod over the periods of the feases. When the prepaid land lease payments cannot be alocated rebably bebween
e land and buildings elements, the enting krase payments ane incheded in the costs of propertes and buildings as fnance
leases in property and equipment.

{22) Repossessad assets

Repossessed ansets are infially recognised at fair value of assets nol retained phus related costs, and are subsequently
measured at the lower of the carmying valee and net recoverable amount. IF the recoverable amount s lower than the
carrying value of the repossessed asets, the assets are wiitten down 10 the recovorabie amount

{23} Non-financial asset impairment

The Group assesses a1 the end of each reporting period whether there ls any indication that property and equipment,
land use nghts, right-of-use assets, associates and point veniures and other non-financial assets may be mpaired. I amy
such indication exists, ar when mpairment testing for an sset B required, the Group makes an estimate of the aset's
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount & the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and
s determined on an indiadual basks, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that ane largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount & determined for the CGU to which the
asset belongs, Whene the gross carmang amount of an asset exceeds 15 recoverable amownt, the asset is considered 1o be
impaired and b written down 1o its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use of an asset, the estimated future cash
Tlows s discounted to thew present values using & pre-tax discount rate that reflects cumment market assessments of the
time value of money and the nisks specific to the asset

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting penod as to whether there 15 any indication that previously recognised
impairment besses may no lorger et or may have decreased, IF such an indication exists, the recoverable amount s
estimated. A previously recognised mmpairment boss excep? for goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates wsed 1o determine the assel's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. IF that s
the case, the carrying amount of the asset & increased to its recoverable armount. That inoreased amount cannot exceed
the carrying amount that would have boen detarmined, net of any depreciation or amortmation, had no mparment loss
been recognised for the asset in prod years. Any such reversal s recognised in profit or loss. After such a reversal, the
depreciation or amonaation charge s adjusted in future perods 1o allocate the aset's revoed carrying amount, less any
residual value, on a systematic bases over its remaining useful life.

(24) Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligatson as a result of a past event, and 1 is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying econamic benelits will be required to setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made on the amoant of the obligation.

A prowsion 13 inibally measared at the best estimate of the sxpenditure required to settle the related present obligation.
When the effect of the time value of money s matenal, the best estimate is deterrmined by discounting the related fulure
cash outllows ‘When determining the best estimate, the Group conuders faciors pertaining to & contingency such as
risks, uncertainties and tame value of money. Wheve there s a range of possible cancome, and each possibde outcome in
that range (8 as likely as any other, the best estimate s the mid-paint of that range, In other cases, the best estimate is
datermined according to the following droumstances:

- where the contingency imvolves a single itern, the best estimate i the most bikely outcome;

= whete the contingency imvolves a large population of items, the best estimate i determined by wesghting all possible
outcomes by their assaciated probabilities.

The Group reviews thee casrying amount of & provisson at the end ol reporting period. The carrying amount |5 adjusted 1o
the current best estimate.
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{25) Contingent liahilities

A contingent liability is a possible obfigation that anses from past events and whose axistence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mare uncertinn future events not whelly wathin the contred of the Group, It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that i not recognised because it is not probable that an outfiow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured refably. Comrgent lisbdities are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outfiow ocours so that outflow is
protable and can be reliably estimated, it will then be recognised as 8 provision.

{26) Preference shares and perpetual bands

At initkal recognition, the Group cassifies the preference shares, perpetual bonds issued or their compaonants as financial
liabilites or egusty instruments based on thelr comtracheal terms and their economic substance after comsidering the
definition of financial liabastios and equity instruments,

Preference shares and parpetual bonds issued that should be classified as equity instruments are recognased in equity based
on the actusl amount receved. Any datnbution of dividends or inferests during the instrument’s dusation s tested as
profit appropriation. When the preference shares and perpetual bonds are redeemed according to the contractual terms,
the redeemed amount & charged 1o equity.

{27) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents refer 1o monetary assets, which are short-term, highly liquid, readily comvertible o known
amounts af cash and subgect 10 an magmficant mk of changes m value, Cash and cash equivalents compeise cash,
unrestricted balances with central banks, amounts due from banks and other financial institutsons and reverse repurchase
agreements with onginal matunty of less than three months.

{28) Revenue recognition
Interest income

For all financial imstruments measured at amortised cost and nteresi-generating financial instruments classified as financial
aisets measured a1 FYTOCH, nterest mcome m recorded at the effective intérest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts o2 payments through the expected life of the finandal instrument, whese appropriate, to the
grass carmping amownt of the financial asset, of the amortised cost of fmancial latility, The caleulation takes inlo account all
contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment optlons) and includes any fees or incremental costs
that ate directly attnibutable to the insthement and ane an integeal part of the effectve iInterest rate, but not expected creda
lossas

Imterest income 5 caloulated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial assets and s
racognised as interest income, except for:

{iy purchased or adiginated credit-impawed financial assets, whose interest income 15 calculated, since initiad recognition,
by appiying the credit adpusted effective intorest rate 1o thair amortised cost; and

{iy  purchased o origmnated financial assets that are not credit-impaired but have subsequently become credit-impaired,
whose interest income is calculated by apphying the offective interest rate 1o their amortised cost e, net of the
eapecied credit loss provision), H, In @ subsequent period, the fmancial assets quality improve so that they are no
longer oredit-impaited and the emprovement in credit quality is rolated objectively 1o & certasn svent occurmnng afte
the application of the above-mentioned rules, then the interest income 15 calculated by applyng the effective interest
fate 1o thist gross carnpng amaunl
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Fee and commission income

The Group esms lee snd commission income from a diverse range of sernces it provides 1o 13 customern. The fee and
commission income recognised by the Group reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group expects o be
entitled in exchange for fransderming promited senvices to customers, and income & recognned when ity perfarmance
obligatson n contracts 15 satisfied.

) The Group recognises income over time by mexsurng e progress fowards the complete sanfaction of a
performance cbligateon, it one of the following ontena is met:

- the customer simultaneously recees and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs,

- the customer controls the senace provided by the Group in the cowse of performance; o

- the Group does nol provide sernice with an alternative uae 1o the Group, and the Group has an enforceable
nght to payment for performance completed to date.

iy In other cases, The Group recognises revenue at a poent in time at which a cumomes obtains control of the promised
SEIVRES

Dividend income

Dwvidend income is fecognised when the Group’s right 1o receive payment B established, it is probable that the related
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the related income can be reliably measured.

(29) Employee benefits

Employee benafits refer to all forms of consideration and other related expenditure given by the Group in exchange for
sefvices rendered by employees. The benelns payable are recognsed as llabilities duning the perad in which the employess
have rendered serices to the Group, i the effect of discounting the benefits payable which are payable after one year from
the end of the reporting penod & sgnificant, the Group will present them at their present value.

Shaort-term employee benefits

Employee wages or salanes, bonuses, social security contributions such as medical insuwrance, work injury insurance,
maternity msurance and housing fund, measured at the amount incurred or ot the apphcable bonchrmarks and rates, are
recagnised as a liability as the employee provides services, with a comesponding charge to profit or boss or included in the
cont of msets whore apgeopriate.

Al eligible employess outside Chinese maintand participate in local defined contribution schemes. The Group contributes to
thasar defined contnbution schemes based on the requirements of the local regulatory bedies and chasge fo profi o boss or
included in the cost of assets where appropriate.

Post-employment benefits-defined contribution plans

Pursuant 1o the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group partiopates in a delined contribution basc pension
insurance and unermployment nsurance in the social insurance system established amd managed by government
organisations. The Group makes contributions 10 basic pension inswrance and unemployment insurance plans based on the
applicable benchmarks and rates stipulated by the coganizatons. Base pendion insurance and upemployment nusrance
contributions are recognised as Babilites with a corresponding charge to profit or loss or included in the cost of assets
where approprate as the related services are rendered by the employess

En addstion, employees in Chinese mamland also partespate in defined contnibaneon retrermnent benelit plans estabinhed
by the Group (the "Annuity Man®™) The Group and its employees are required 1o contribute a certain percentage of the
employess previous year basc walanes 1o the Annuity Plan. The Group pays a ficed contribution into the Annuity Plan
and has no obligation to pay further contrnibuteons if the Annuity Man does not hold suffcient assets to pay all employes
banefits. The contribution i charged 1o prodil of loeds when it s nourred.
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Termination benefits

Tesminaticn benefils are payable as a result of either the Growp's decision to terminate an employee’s employment before
the due date of labour contract or an employee’'s deciiion 10 accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of
employment. The Group recagnies termination benefits in prafit or loss al the earlier of:

- when the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw the offer of termination benefits becouse of an ernployes terminatson
plan of a curtailment proposal; and

- when the Group has a spacific, formal restructure plan involving payment of termination benefits, and the plan has
started or mformed each affected party about the influgnce of the plan, therelore each party formed reasanable
capactations

Early retirement benefits

Acconding to the Bank's policy on eatly retirement benefits, certain ermployess are entitled 1o take leave of absence and
i feturn receive a cortain level of staff calaries and related benefits from the Bank. The salanes and benefit paymenis are
made from the date of eary retirement 1o the normal retirement date. Differences arising from changes In ssumptions and
estimates of the present value of the Eabilibes are recognised i peofit or loss

{30) Income tax

Income tax comprres current and deferred tax. Income tax {s recognised in the staternent of profit or loss except that i
relates to iterms recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current fax

Cumrent tax awsets and liabilities for the current and poor perdods are measured at the amount expected 10 be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authoritses, The tax rates and tax laws wsed to compute the amount are thowe that are enacted
or substaniively enacted by the end of eath reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheat Kabildy method on termporary differences a1 the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and labilities and their carrying amounts.

Defered tax liabikties are recognased for all taxabde temporary differences, except
{y  whese the laxable tempocary difference anes from the initkal recognition af goodwill,

fit  where the taxable temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of avsets and Babilities in a transaction thi
is not a business combination and, at the tame of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
income (or deductible expenses), and such transaction does not give rise to equivaient taxable temporary differences
and deductible temporary diff ssences

In mespoct of taxable temporary diferenced msocinted with inveitments = subsidianed, alsociated and joint venluie,
defesred tax liabdities are recognived except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporasy differences will not be reversed in the foresseable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carngdorward of unused tax credis and unused
tax |osses, 1o the extont that it ix probable that taxable profit will be available againgd which the deductible termparary
differences, and the carryforward of wamsed tax credits and unused tax losses can be utifsed, except that deferred fax assets
are not recognised il the tempoarary difference anses from the initial recognition of assets and labilities in a transaction and
that;

{iy  transaction is not a busmess combination;
(i} ot the time of the transaction, it atlects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income (or deductible expenses);

(i) snch transachon does not give rise 10 equivalent taxable temporary diffevences and deductibde temporary differences
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In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianes, associates and joint ventires,
deferred tax assets are recognised only 1o the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will be reversed in
he foreseeable future ard taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utiksed,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilives are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the aiset B realsed of the Kabildy o setibed, based on tax rates (and tax lawsh that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reportng period, and reflect the correspondeng tax effect.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels i foviewied at the end of the reporting pericd and reduced 1o the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient takabde income will be available to allow o or part of the deferred tan asset to be
wlilised, When it s wrtually probable that sufficient taxable income will be available, the reduced amount can be reveried
accardingly,

Deferred tax misets and deferred tax labilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to et off cument tax assels
agairst cument tax kabilties and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(31) Dividends

Dwvidends are recognised as a liability and deducted fram equity when they ase approved by the Bank's sharehobders in
general meetings and declared, Intersm dindends are deducted from equity when they are approved and declared, and
no longer at the discretion of the Bank. A dividend for the year that is approved afier the end of the reporting pencd s
disclosed as an event after the reporting period.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, managament s required to make judgements, estimates and
asvsurnptions of the effects of uncertan future events on the financal staterments. The most sgnificant use of judaements,
estimates and assumptions concemang the uncertainty of the future at the end of the repoeting period that have a
signifcant risk af eausing a matenal adjustment 1o the carrypng amounts of assets and Habibtdes wathin the next nancial
year are described below,

Measurement of the ECL

The measurement of the ECL allowance for finanoal assets measured at amostised cost and FWTOC), and with esposure
arzng from kean commitments and financial guaraniee contracts, 5 an area that reguares the use of complex models and
significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behavious (the likeShood of customers defaulting
and the resulting losses). Refer 1o Note S04a) credit risk for 1he explanation of the paramaters, assumplions and estEmation
technigues used i measuring ECL

Income tax

Determining income lax provisions requsres the Group to estimate the future tax treatment of certain Wransactions, The
Group evaluates tax implscations of transactions n acoordance with prevailing tax regulations and makes tax prowisions
accordingly, In addition, deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the extent that i i1 probable that fulure taxable prafit will be
available aganst which the deduchibde termporary differences can be utilsed, This requires significant judgement on the tax
ireatments of certan ransactions and alwo significant aswesiment an the probability that adequate fulure taxable pealits wall
be available for the deferred tax assets to be recovered

Fair wvalue of financial instruments

If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the Group determines the fair value by using valuation techmique,
inchading wning recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgaable and willing parties, if available, roference
1o the current fair walue of another imstrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option
pricing models. Valuation technique makes maxirmum uie of obiervable market input. However, whiie observable market
inputs are not avadable, management makes estimates on such unobservable market mnputs.
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Determination of control over investees

Management applies its udgement 1o determine whather the controd indicatoes set out in Note 4(2) indicate that the Group
control securilisateon yehicles, weahth management products, investment funds, trust plans, asset management plans and
asset-hacked securties.

Securitisation vehicles

Certasn secusitisation vehacles sponsored by the Group under its securnsation programme are run according 1o
predetermined cmeria a1 the initial set up of the vehicles, In addition, the Group i exposed to vasability of mturns from the
vehicles theowgh holding interests in the vehicles and the day-1o-day senvicing of the underlypng assets in the vehicles which
is carried cut by the Group under a serviceng contract. Key decisions are usually required cnly when underlying assets go
imo default. Therefore, in considering whether it has conired, the Group considers whether it can use its powver Ba influence
these vehicles' returns

Wealth management products, investment funds, trust plans, asset management plans and
asset-backed securities

The Group acts a5 manager of investor in a number of wealth management praducts, investment funds, trust plans, assel
management plans and assets-backed securities. \When assessing whether the Group controls such a structured entity,
the Group would determine whether it exercises the decsion-making rahits as & principal or an agent and uswally focuses
on the assessment of the aggregate economic interests of the Group in the entity {comprising any camied nterests and
expecied management fees) and the decsion-making authorty of the entity. The Group would also determene whethes
another entity with decision-making sights is acting as an agent for it

6. MNET INTEREST INCOME

2024 2023
Int@rest incame on,

Loans and advances to customers G37.938 951,845
Corporate loans and advances 599,296 581,117
Persons boans 319,697 353,039
Discounted hills 18,745 17,689

Financial investments 365,208 338,267

Due from central bamks B4 1t 53,815

D from banks and other linancial institutions () T0.628 61,112

1,427 048 1,408 039
Interest expense on:

Due 1o customers (564,033) (5ED,6HE)

Bue 1o banks and other financial institutions (i) (156,622} (103,529

Dbt secunties ssued and certificates of deposit (69 882} (56, 809)

(190,543} (T50,026)
Net interest income 637,405 655,013

(i} Inchudes interest incoma on reverse repurchase agriements,
{iil  Includes interest expense on due to central banks and repurchase agresments.

Thie albowva intaredt income and exponse s solated to financial imitiwments which are ot measured at fair value throogh
profit or loss.
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7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2024 2023
Fee and commission income on
Setilernent, clearing business and cash management 42,755 45418
Inwastmiant banking business 19724 20,060
Personal wealth management and private banking services 17.880 12,582
Bank card business 17.853 17,806
Cofporate wealth management services 10,850 1770
Asset custody business 8,045 7.904
Guarantee and commitment business 4,185 7,296
Trust and agency senices 2,019 1,950
Others 2,866 2915
126,177 137,891
Fee and commission expense (16,780) {1B,534)
Net fee and commission income 109,397 119,357

Included in porsonal wealth management and private banking services, corporate wealth management sedvices, assel
custody business and trust and agency services above s an amount of AMB15,850 millien with respect to trust and other
fiduciary activities for 2024 (2023: RME17,179 millian),

8. NET TRADING INCOME

2024 2023

Dabt wecuriss 13,644 12,063
Denvatives and others 4.2593 4411
Equity Invesiments 1,503 {1,556}
19,440 14,928

The above amounts mainly include gaans amd losses arsing from the buying and selling of, the interest income and expense
on, and the chanpes in fair value of fnancial assets and liabilities held for tradug,

9. MNET GAINS ON FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

2024 2023

Meat gains on financial nstrumenis measured at FYTPL, including: 13,8593 10,496
Mat Josses on financial mstrumendts designated as at PVTFL {5,087) 4, 163
Met gasns on disposal of finencial instruments measured at FTOC 2,490 3,788
Dwadend income from equity mwestments dessgnated as at FYTOCN, incheding: 3,067 4020
Derecognised during thie year and EBE4
Hald at the end of cusrant year 2,153 3,136
Mot gamns on disposal of financial instruments measured st amartised cost 3446 2,506
Others 65 BE0
22,961 21,560
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10. OTHER OPERATING EXPEMNSE, NET

2024 2023
MNet operating lease busingss imcome 10,840 10,684
Met imurance business expense {7,606} {0,028)
Met gains on disposal of property and equipment, repossessed assets
and ather assets 1,352 1925
Met lonses from foreign exchange and foreign exchange producs {6,211} (¥, 785)
Others (752} {196)
{3,077 i4,400)
11. OPERATING EXPENSES
il FE] 2023
Staff eosts
Salanes and bonuses 93672 93,496
Staff beneins 30,941 28422
Post-employment benefits — defined conteibution plans () 19,741 18,487
lad 554 141,405
Prapey and equapment eapenies
Depreciation charge for property and equipment 15,250 15,945
Depreciation charge for right-ol-use assets and other leasing expense 7082 7479
Repairs and maintenance charges 2724 2,955
Ltilidy experies FANE] 2,105
T2 28,534
Amaortisation 5157 #4249
Other adminstrative expenses (i) 28,705 29,4432
Tazes and surcharges 10,765 10,662
Others 25,700 24,316
242,155 238,698

() The defired contibubon plans mainly incede pension mairance, unemplopment insurance and the annuity plan.
[} The principal auditar’s remuneration of AMB195 milion for the year (2023 RMB152 million) 5 incuded in other admanistrateoe
B,

(i} tn 2024, the Group incurred RMBS,G8T million (2023: RMBA.593 million) of expensed research and dewelopment mxpendidures
and AMB2, 249 milon (2023 ANEB1,590 milion) of capitalized reseanch ard development expenditures.
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12. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION

Dataily of the directars’ and supenviiess’ remuneration befers tax, a5 disclased puisuant to the Rules Govednsivg thie Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as foflows:

Year ended 11 December 228

Contributien by

the employer

o sodlal

imarance,

bausing

allawance.

annuities, and
Reémuneration saditonal Total
bebore regnal IemnEINGn
Mame Pesition tax paid invrmntm Feey behore tax
AMT 0 RME'DG EMEDM EMED
i L] {3 (=100
Laolm () (Chaman; Executive Diecior [12) 15 - 548
L Jun b Vice Chasman, Escutne Denector, Peeudent 4B 158 - )
Wang lngay Eseruzse Dismcios, Senior Enprutve Vice Presigent, [ ] - B34

Chef itk Officer
Lu Yorgzhen Bt Dhnector - - - -
Feng Windang Nt Dirostior - - - -
Cao Ligum Hew-Excuine Dector - - -
Chen Yiang er-eneutive Chrpctor . . -

Diang Yang Men-eanutive Ol - - - -
Thoing bantan (&) Meon-expcutive Cirector - - . =
Fred Zues Hu Independint Nofreweoutree Dvecer + - 4 B
Marmas Chan Tak Lam Indipendent Non-asecetre Decter - - ] w
Herher| Water i) Independeni Nor-enecstre Deitor - - m amn
Muray Hoen [ Independent Npn-associne Diracior - - o br|
Chen Guantng (W Independent Norvamecstive Diecisr - - ) n
Li Wespng (el Independent Nor-ssecufte Drecor - - - -
Hang Li Emplopee fugermor - - 5 5a
Trang Je el Sepervace - - 150 150
L Lartian Entemal Supenioe - - Fidi 50
Chen Suyng il Fermes Charman, Eacutve Descti £ ] - b
Bathery Francis Neoh (i) Fermer ndesendint Non-sasruties Dretior - - 130 130
Yarg Sas Shon i) Foru independent horvemscutie Dnacior - - E1E] m
Shen S () frommer Indapendent Non-gesouties Dvecior - - L] &9
Tl 1,781 (M 3mr 54

Mote:  Since lanuary 2015, the remuneration of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the President and other executroes of the
Bank has followed the State’s palickes relatng 1o the remunerabon elfoim on exsoutives of cenlral enterprises.
The total compensation packages for the Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Executive Directors of the
Bank have not been finalized i acooedance with the regulations of the FRC relevant authontes. The remuneration not
yet acorued is not especied 1o havet a significant impact on the Group’s 2024 consolidated financial statements, The total
compensation packages will be further disclosed when determined by the relevant autharities.
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Feed of M. Hushg Li are he allowances obtained & Employes Superviior of the Bank, excluding his remunetaton with the
Bank in accordance with the employee remuneration system,

A at the approval date of the consolidated financial statements foe the year ended 31 December 2024, changes of
directors of the Bank were as follows:

1) In February 2024, Mr. Liao Lin resigned froem the positien of President of the Bank due to change ol job assignments.
Im order to ensune the smooth operation and management of the Bank, Mr. Liso Lin perfoms the duties and powern
af the President to the date an which the new President of the Bank officlally takes office according 1o the regulation
and the Artickes of Assooation of the Bank, On 1 February 2024, the Board of Directoss of the Bank elecied M. Liao
Lin a5 Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Bank, and his qualfication was approved by the NFRA in February
2024

{iy  On 22 May 2024, the Board of Directors of the Bank efected Mr. Liu fum a5 Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
al the Bank, which took efect wpon his appointment as Executive Director of the Bank being considered and
approved by the Bank's Annual General Meeting foe the Year 2023 on 28 lune 2024; On 22 May 2024, the Board
of Deectors of the Bank appointed Mr. Liu Jun a5 President of the Bank, and his appoiniment took effect upon the
consideration and approval by the Board of Dwectors; At the Bank' 5 Annual General Meeting for the Year 2023
hield @n 2B June 2024, Mr. Ly Jun was elected as Evecutve Director of the Bank, and his term al office a5 Execubie
Drirector started from the date of approval by the Shareholders’ General bMaeting.

{iii) At the Bank’s Annual General Meeting for the Year 2023 held on 28 June 2024, Ms. Thong Mantao was elected as
Non-executive Direcior of the Bank, and ber qualification was approved by the NFRA in September 2024,

{mi At the First Extraardinary General Meeting of 2023 held on 30 November 2023, Mr. Herbert Walter was elected as
Intependent Kon-axecutive Dirsctor of the Bank, and hes qualification was approved by the NFRA in March 2024,

{v)  On 29 February 2024, the Firdl Extracedinary General Meeting ol 2024 of the Bank elected Mr. Murray Hom as
Indpendent Mon-executive Director of the Bank, and his qualification was approved by the NFRA i August 2024,

vl On 20 September 2024, the Second Extraondnary General Meeting of 2024 of the Bank elected Me. Chen Guanting
a5 Independent Non-sxecutive Diector of the Bank, and his qualification was approved by the NFRA in November
024

{wij COn 2 Decembar 2024, the Third Extraordinary General Meeting of 2024 of the Bank elected Br, LI Wesping as
Inthependent Non-exscutiee Director of the Bank, and hes qualification was appresed by the NFRA 0 Febroary 2025,

iliy Im Fetsuary 2024, Mr. Chen Siging ceased to act as Chaiman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director of the
Bank tue 1o his sge

{ixd Im March 2024, Mr. Anthory Francis Neoh ceased 1o act as independent Non-pxecutive Director of the Bank dus to
expirabion of his term of affice.

) Im August 2024, M. Yang Sio Shun ceated to act ad Independent MNon-executive Director of the Bank due to
expiratign of his term of office,

{xif  Im Nowember 2024, Mr. Shen 5i ceased 10 act & Independent Non-executne Direcior of the Bank due 1o expiratsan ol
hits term of office.
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Voo i 11 Dol 300

{ontlubon

b

gy

i s

i,

(e

ETmiie
e i (=
wlitiond Fod Of whickt nan
Dacrtcean ewfol el tehwred  of emgrecgnn
Nt Frtas i b besin ¥ ] szl syprer ko L ad
Ll L L] L ey L LU
i m m (0 BT B0 U] Tkl
Lo L D, et Do - B i i L - 14
Ry s Erutien ivcr, Sanew brectos Vim Pt - 4 4n ] 148 14

(e il (e
i Yooy Terveine [incie . . . - . - -
(ool leregrnet encioe - - - -
Che Vg ] B z = )
Dee g Nerrtnmtng st - - - - - - -
g b hn e Monmion Doy ] . . . m . m
B Frbeperideet Neramenates [y L] - - - ] - i
P Ty deperdent leronpotes [y “ . o w
s (b B L et Minpritoe Doty ] - L] in
Herbert Wb i cdeperrdend lersmpts oty - - - -
Hengls Engiowms gy L - 0 ]
Barg e b ey o] - - - ] - &
s rbag Ferd gy ] - - b ]
(hee S i) Former Chismme, Evecutve rerion - ] ] prif AL A
B o Former Erecaten e, - B it} 9 i) ]
et Fuatoe e Presetees

Aty Frc el Former dpersint lon-peene [ty ] . . - | - ]
B lrgeg e g S - . - - - - -
T - L 1B = Lied . %

Hote:  Since January 2015, the remuneration of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the President and other executres of the
Bank has followed the State Government's palicies relating 1o the remuneration relarm on executives of central entemprises.

The remuneration before tax of Directors and Supervisors for 2023 set cut in the table above represents the total amount
of annual remuneration for each of these indeiduals, which indude the smownt disclesed in the 2023 Annual Report.
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Pursuant 1o the PRC relevant regulations, & poftion of the discretionary bofus payments for the Chairman al the Baard al
Directors, the Presudent, Executive Directons and other sensor management membsers are deferred and will be detormined
based on the luture performance.

Fees of Mr. Huang U are his allowances obtained as Employee Supervisors of the Bank, sxcluding his remunesaton with

the Bank in pccordance with the employes remeneration system.

As at the approval date of the consoldated financial statements foe the year ended 31 December 2023, changes of

directors and supervisors of the Bank were s follovs:

§i)  Im February 2024, Mr. Liao Lin resigned as President of the Bank due 1o adjimtment of job smsignmenti bn order
o ensure the normal cpevaton and management of the Bank, Mr. Uao Lin performs the functions and pawers of
the President on behall of the Bank m accordance with regulaiory requirements and the Artscles of Association of
the Bank, and the penod for peddorming the duties on behalf of the President will end on the date when the new
President formally takes office. On | Febwuary 2024, the Board of Directors of the Bank elected Mr. Liso Lin a3
Chairman of the Board of Direciors of the Bank, and his qualificateon was approved by the MFRA in February 2024,

{iiy At the First Extraordinary General Meeting of 2023 held on 30 November 2023, Mr. Herbert Walter was elected as
Intfependent Mon-executive Director of the Bank, and his gualification was approved Ly the NFRA i March 2024,

i Im February 2024, Mr, Chen Siging ceated to acl a5 Chasnman of the Board ol Directors and Executive Director al the
Bank due o his age.

{iwd  In April 2023, Mr. Zheng Guoyu ceased to act as Executive Director and Senior Executive Vice President of the Bank
dise 1o change of [ob assgaments.

v In March 2024, Me. Anthory Francis Nech ¢eased 10 a0t a3 Independent Non-eascutive Director of the Bank due to
expiration of his term of office.

i) Im January 2023, Mr. Wu Xisngpang ceased 10 8ct a8 Employes Supenisor af the Bank due to his age.

Thie Mon-executive Dirctor ol the Bank who wene recommendaed by Huijin fecaived emolurments from Huipn & oeipect of
their services durnng the year.

In 2024, there was no amangement urder which o Director or a Supervisar of the Bank waived or agreed to wane any
remuneration (2023 Nonel

In 2024, no emolument was paed by The Group 10 amy of the Dwectons or SUPEVISOrs a5 an inducement 10 (o of upoan
joning 1he Group or as a compensation for loss of office (2023; Nill
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13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The fve highest pasd individuals of the Group ane employess of the Bank's wlsidunes. Their emaluments wene detesmined
based on the prevaibng market rates in the respective countresregions where the subsidianes are opevating. None of them
are derectons, supenvisars of key mansgerment persanne| of the Bank whose ernoluments are disclosed in Notes 12 and 48(g)
to the consolidated financial staterments. Details of the emoluments in respect of the five highest paid indvaduals are as

{ollows
2024 2023
RMEB 00D RMB 000
Salaries and allowances 20,136 16,672
Descretionady bonuses 38,003 59,475
Others 505 430
58,644 76,577

The number of these indraduals whose emaluments Tell within the fallowing bands is set aut bebow:

Number of employees

2024 2023

AMES, 000,001 Yuan 1o AMETT, 000,000 Yean 2 -
B 11,000,001 Yuan to AME13,000,000 Yuan 2 1
AME13,000,007 Yuan to RMB1 5,000,000 Yuan - 1
RIS 15,000,001 Yuan 1o AME17 000,000 Yuan 1 1
AME17,000,001 Yean 1o RME19,000,000 Yuan - 2
5 5

In 2024, no emofument was paid by the Group o any of these non-director and non-supenises indinduals as an
imducement 1o join o upon jining the Group or as a compensation for boss of office (2023: W)

14. CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

2034 2023
Leans and advances 16 customers (Note 23) 122479 143,427
Fevancial irmesiments

Financial investments measured at amaortised cost (507} 7.389
Fenancial assets measured at FYTOC (675} 568
Credit commitments 590 {3,585}
Others 3,752 1,014
125,738 148808
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15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

{a) Income tax expense

2024 023

Current income tax expense
Chingse mainland AT7.474 58,651
Hang Kong SAR and Macao SAR 1,380 1,191
Other overseas jurisdictions 4,998 5211
53,861 55.353
Deferred income tas expense 1,020 (B8,203)
54,881 56,850

In Decernber 2021, the Orgamsation for Economic Co-opevation and Development publihed Tax Challenges Assing from
the Digitalisation of the Economy Global = Anti-Base Erosion Model Rules (" Piltar Two Modal Rules™). According to the rules
of Pillar Two, bow-tax jurmsdictons with effectroe tax rate below 15% may have a Top-up Tax impact

Some of jurisdictions where the Group's overseas enfities are located, had implemented Pélar Two legislation during the
reparting perod. The Group has assessed the impact of Top-up Tax under Fillar Two. The legidation in the aforementioned
jursdictons has no significant mpact on the Group's financial position and operating results as at 31 Decermnber 2024, The
Group has sdopted amendments to 145 12 on Pllar Two Model Rules. Therelore, the Group does not recognise deferred
tax assets and liabilities related to Pdlar Two and does not disdose relevant information

(b} Reconciliation between income tax and accounting prafit

PRC statutory income tax rafe is 25% Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been caloulated at the applicable rates
of tax prevailing in the countries/regions in which the Group operates in. The Group has reconciled mcome tax expense
applicable 1o profit before taxation at the PRC statutory income tax rate 1o aclual income tax expense for the Group as

follows:

riiFl ] 2023
Profit before taxation a1 827 421,966
Tax at the PRC statutory income tax rate 105457 106,492
Effects al different applcable rates of 1ax prevalling in other countriesregeens (672} (288)
Effects of non-deductible expenses () 22,556 19,580
Eftects of non-taxable incoma (=] {69,266} (65,266
Effects of profits attributable 10 associates and joent ventures 2Ty | 445)
Effects of ather 2,224} (2,219
Incoemis tan expense 4 BET 56,850

i} The non-deductble experses mainky represent non-deduciible impatrment allowanee and write-offs.
(i) The non-taxable intome mainky represents interest incomae arsing from the PRC governmient bonds and municipal debis,

16. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company for the year ended 31 December 2024 includes
a profit of RMB345,454 million (2023 RMB347,516 milllen) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Bank (Note 52).
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2024 2023
Dewidends on ordinary shares declared and paid
Interim dniadends on ordinary shares for 2024: AMBO. 1434 per share 51,109 -
Dwidends on ardinary shases for 202 3:AMB0. 3064 per share
(2022:RMB0 3035 per share) 109,203 108,168
Deadends or interests declared and paid to ather equity instrument holders:
Dirdends on preference shares 5.819 5,847
Interests on perpeiual bonds ditributed 9,144 9,122
14,963 14,964
Dvndends an ordinary shoses proposed for approval
ot recognised as a1 31 December):
Year-end dridends on ordinaiy shares for 2024 RMB0 1646 pes shame 58,664 -
Dwadends on ordinary shases for 202 3:AMB0. 3064 per share - 109,203
18. EARNINGS PER SHARE
2024 2023
Earmings
Profit for the year attributable to equsty holders of the parent compasny 65, 863 363593
Less: Profit for the year attributable 1o other equsty instrement holders of
1he parent comparny {148,963) (14, 964}
;ﬂ:fi! for l;'ll' yoar nllribuw-hiﬂ to ordinary ;hlr\;h_w:&dert ar-il;v panent company 350,900 319,02_9
Shases
Weighled average number of ordinary shares in issue (m million shases) 356,407 356,407
Basic earnings per share (RMB yuan) 0.98 098
Deluted earmings per share (RMB yuan) 098 098

Basic and diluted eamings. per share were calculated using the profit for the year attnbutable to ordinary shareholders of

the parent company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in lssue,
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19. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

11 December 31 December

2024 2023
Cash on hand 72,080 66,850
Balances with central banks
Mandatony reserves () 2,634,803 2,832,799
Surplus resarves (i) 393,112 a5 050
Fiscal deposits and others 2,173 188,923
Acerued interest 1,658 1,822
3322911 4,042,293

(it The Group is requited to place mandatory reserve deposits and other restricted deposits with the PBOC and cenlan central
banks of oversexs countries or regions where i has operations. They are not available for use in the Group's daily operations.
As a1 31 December 2024, the mandatory resene deposits ratios of the domestic branches of the Bank in respedt of customer
deposits denominated in RMB and foreign currencies were 8% (31 December 2023: 9%) and 4%{31 December 2023: 4%
respectively. The mandatory reserve funds placed by domestic subsidiaries of the Group are detesmined by the PBOC. The
amounts af mandatory resere deposits placed with the central banks of those countries or regions outside Chinese mainland
are determined by local urisdictions.

(i) Surplis feserved with the PEOC include funds for the purpote of cash settlemeni and other kinds of unrestncted deposits.

20. DUE FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

31 December 31 Decomber

2024 023
Depasuts with banks and other financial institutions:
Banks operating in Chinese manland 24711 221,700
Other financial imtutions operating in Chinese mamiand 58,112 24,145
Banks and other Tinancial institutions opevating outside Chenese malnland 172465 164,554
Accrued intesest T 3,885
481 465 A1468d
Less: Allewance for impairment losses (oo (426)
' 4B0,765 414358
Placements wath banks and other financial institutions:
Banks operating in Chiness mainland 190,427 265,904
Other financial instdutions operating in Chinese mamband 221,474 209, 164
Banks and other financial institutions opedating outside Chinese mainkand 323,836 222,934
Accrued intefest o 7,53
742,758 705,593
Less: Allowance for impairment osses (3,647} (2,134)
133011 702 459
1,219,876 1,116,717
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A dervative 15 8 finanoal instrument, the value of whech changes in responme (o the changes i b specified intorest rate,
fimancsal instrument price, commodity price, fareign exchangs rate, index of prices or rates, credet rating or credit index, of
oither simifar variables. The Group wses dervative financial mstruments including forwards, swaps, opthons and futures

The notional amount of 8 dervative represents the underying amount of the specific financal instruments mentioned
aboye, It indicates the volume of business transacted by the Group but does not reflect the risk.

The notiomal amounts and fair values af derrative financeal instrumaents held by the Group ane set out bekow,

11 Decomber 2024 31 December 2023
Notional Fair valuss Moticnal Fair valuos
amounts Assets  Linbilities amounts Assets  Liabifities
Exchange rate confracts 11,227 428 194,358 {158,566) 6,015,214 52,830 41,6180
Interest rate contracts 5312 382 13,114 1150190 4,231,434 15,142 (16,273)
Caenmadity dasivatives and athers 1,347,756 1850 (242100 1,003,045 7367 (18,360}

17 BA7 466 222,361 (197,795} 11,240,693 75,330 {78,251}

{a) Cash flow hedges

The Group's cash flow hedges consist of interest rate swap contracts, cusrancy swag contracts, equity and ather derivatives
that are used 1o protect against exposures to vanability of future cash flows.

Incheded in the above dervatee financial imtruments, those dewgnated as hedging instruments in the Growp's cash flow
hadges are set aut below:

11 December 2004
| with ining mutirity of Fair values
Dver theee Drwer ome
Within moariihe yeur bt
thiee bt within within Over
imonths oot year free yeans live yeans Toal Aseta Lishilties
Intevest rate swap contracts - L r ] - - b 13 -
Curmernay swap contrachy 53003 0 4545 - 140,632 123 11,2031
Equity aned céhar derivatres EL 1900 k] 1 1987 5% LE]
53141 633 L] 1 143,578 148 (1.206]
11 Docesmbar 2013
Notional amounts with remaining maturity ol Fair values

Over theee Drver e
Within mniths v b

thiee  but withis within Over
imonths oot el five yeans five years Tomsd A Lindilies
Inlerest rale swap contracts - a7 1,863 - 4,280 el 1B}
Cummercy swap conii s 41935 1,685 4 - 15941 Tt 1,053
Equity and cthr divmatraes 2 m & 2 1318 4 117
43557 A 6! : 135550 a3 11,075}
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Detasty of the Group's hedged mik exposures in cash flow hedges and the comesponding effect on equity are as Tallaws:

11 December 2074
Carrying amount of hedged tems Hedging instruments.

Effact on sther Accumulated
wempbrehandive eflact on other
ingome during tomprehansive

fasels Lahiliihes ke curtent year shtame

Seuities ) 1,091 arEm (834 [2a1)
Lioars and advantes o (uitomeny 41473 E n (EH
Others 4 35,548 (P6.733) 52d) d,154)
11818 164.551) (1,445 4313

(i} Securities are inchuded in fnancial investments measured a1 FVTOCL, financial investments measured at amosised cost, debl
ascuritien sued and certificstes ol depesit.

(i) Osher hedged iipms am inchuded in due from banks and other financial institutions, other assets, dus o banks and other
fimamcial instiutions, due to cusiomern, repufchase spreements and olher habslies

31 Decembar 2013
Casryineg amoint of hedged itemn Hedging Inatruments

Effext on ether Accumulated

comprehantive elfect an other

Irme during temprehaniive

Agsets Lizhilities th curtent year ingome

Sacufiieeg (&) 473 |Z7.15 248 593
Loans and advances i csiomers ELE T - 160 i}
thers il 30,148 41,515 250 (3,630
TaETE 169,390 17 {2,888

() Securities are inchuded i fmancial investments measwred a1 FYTOCL, fmancial investments measwred a1 amonsed cost, debt
securities isswed and certificates of deponit,

(i) Other hedged tems are included in due from banks and other finsncial institutions, other assels, due o banks and other
fimancial institutions, due fo customens and other liabilities

Thers was no ineffectiveness recognised in profit or koss that arises from the cash flow hedges in 2024 and 2023

(b} Fair value hedges

Fair value hedges are used by the Group te profect agaenst changes in fair value of financial assets and financial kabilitses
due o movements i market mterest rates. The Group mainly used mterest rate swaps as hedgeng instruments to hedge the
interest risk of financial assets and financial labilizies

The changes in fair value of the hodging instruments and net gains of losses aring from the hodged mk relating to the
hedged Wems are set out below:

2024 023
({Lossesyigains arising from fair value hedges, net:
Hedging instruments (533) 1,919
Hedged items 521 (1.988)
2y (62
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Included n the above derivative financal instrumants, those designated a6 hedging instruments in fair value hedges are
interest rate swaps and the details are set out below:

National amounts with remaining maturity of Fair values
DOver theee Orwer omd
Within manths e bt

thiee but within within Ower
imontht B FRAT fove yoan live years Total Assets Lishifties
31 December 2024 1162 10,243 E R s 5462 1,083 (2561
31 Dacember 2073 2100 TE042 45,053 17,020 2,00 2955 416}

Details of the Group’s hedged risk expasures in fasr value hedges are set out below:

N e
Aremslated adjustments
Casrying amound of hedged Remi ti thie fir value ol hedged itesa
Assets Liahilities Mty Rizbiities
Secunties {1 50,613 [1.276 359 %
Loars and advances: b cusiomess 285 - (%61 =
Cebrs i) H (2530} 1 LE]
600 .m0 i i

it Secusities are inchuded in financial mvestments messured at FYTOC), financal mvestments messured at amorised cost and
debi securities issued.

{iiy  Oiher hedged fems are inchuded in due from banks and ether financul matitutions, dus to banks and ethés linancial
institutions and due to cusiomens

31 December 2023

Aecwmsalated adjusimenty
Carrying amount of hedged fMems %0 the far value of hedged ite=s
Asels Linbilities Aty Linkities
Secunties {il 13,60 [T 40} o &2
Lo and adhanes. b cusioman 141 - 1504 -
Others il 3,267 - (L] -
80,505 (14045 (eas 62

i Secunties are inchuded in financial investments measured at PYTOCH, financal nvestments measired at amoetised cost and
debit spcunites ssued

iy her hedged items ane incleded in due from banks and other financal institutions and repurchase agreements

() Netinvestment hedges

The Group's comsobdated statement of financial positien is affected by exchange differences between the functional
cureéncy of the Bank and functional curiencies of its branches and subsickaries. The Group hedges such exchange exposunes
under certarn cicumstances. Hedging s underfaken by using customer deposits taken i the same currencies as the
functional currencies of refated branches and subsidianes which are accounted for as hedges of cerlain net investments in
foreign operations.

A5 at 31 December 2024, an accumulated net losses from the hedging instrument of AMB1,.587 million was recognised
in other comgrehensae income (31 December 2023 accumulated net losses of RMB1,002 milhon). There was no
ineffectivensss in profit or kods that anses from the net investrment hedges in 2024 and 2023
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{d) Offsetting of financial instruments

In accordance with the principle of offsetting financial imstrements, the Group offsats certain derivative fimancial asseds,
derivative financial lisbeities and vanation margin and presents the net amounts after olfsetting in the fmancual statements

31 Detember 2024 31 December 2023
Gross amounis Nat amounts  Gross amounts Net amounts
Derwative financal assets B340 25,144 71,381 24,048
Derwative finamcial labilities 83197 17,845 12,958 26,E84

(e) Counterparty cradit risk-weighted assets of derivative financial instruments

The credit risk-weighted assets in respect of the above devivatives of the Group as at the end of the repartng pericd are as
follows:

311 December 31 Decomber

2024 2023

Counterparty credi! default nsk-wesghted asiets 117,495 BB,521
Including: Mon-netting settled credit defaull risk-weighted assels 69,662 48,975
Metnng settied credit defoult nsk-wenphted assets 47 B33 37,546

Credit value adpustment nsk-weighted assets azi12 36,563
Central countorparties credit msk-weighted assets 3667 4678
163,274 127,762

22. REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

31 December 31 December

2024 2023
Measured at amortised cost:
Aewerse repurchase agreemants-bills 188,935 109,077
Aeverse repurchase agreements-securities 1,000,277 1,073,854
Accrued intenast 21 ]
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (33) 97
1.189.900 1,183,743
Measured at PUTPL
Rewverse repurchase agreements-securities and cash advanced as collateral on
securities borrewing 20,317 40,514
1,210,217 1,224,257
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23. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

23.1Loans and advances to customers by type of measurement:

11 Decemnbar 31 Decembar

2024 2023
Measured at amortised cost:

Comporate loans and advances 17,460,342 16,128,752

— Losars 17,289,308 15,040,237
~Finance lease 170,944 188,515
Personal loans 8957720 8,653,621
Descounted bills 1.351 2,755
Acorued inferest 56,447 56,117

26,475,860 24,841,245

Less: Allowance for impairment losses on koans and advances to customsars

misasuted &t amartised eou (Nate 23 2(al (815,072) {756,001)
25,660,788 24,085,244
SR T e e
Codporate lnans and advances
= Lgwans 16,876 10,348
Duscounted bills 1,930,935 1,284,907
Aconued interest 177 335
1,947 988 1,205,585
Measured at FVTPL:
Corporate loans and advances
— Loan 5,005 6,104
27,613,781 25,386,933

Az al 31 Decomber 2024, the Group's allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances to customers measured at
PTOC was RMBA2S million (31 December 2023 RMBI90 milllion), refer 1o Note 23.2{b).
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23.2 Allowance for impairment losses an loans and advances

fa) Movements of the alfowance for impairment losses on foans and advances fo customers
measured at amortised cost are as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Balance at 1 January 2024 343,730 156,240 257,031 756,001
Transfer;
— 1o stage 1 20,221 {16.982) (3,239) -
= o stage 2 111.518) 15,804 (4, 2E6) -
=t stage 3 {5,101) 124,28%) 29,383 -
Charge for the year 6,808 21,323 04,312 122,443
Winte-ofis and transfer out - - (85,127} (B5,127)
Recoverias of loans and advonces
previously witten off - - 13,856 13,856
Other movements 943 4,399 1.557 7,899
Balance atl 31 December 2024 354,083 156,502 304 487 B15,072
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance a1 1 January 2023 278,715 141,586 251,923 672,224
Transfer:
—fo stage 1 46,568 (42,004) 14, 564) =
— R0 sLage & {7,253) 12,411 {5,158} =
=t stage 3 {2,596) {44,930) A7.526 -
Charge for the year 27,041 89,529 26,736 143,306
Whiite-offs and transfer out - - (72,721} (72,321)
Recovories of loans and advances
previously wntten off - - 14,915 14915
Other movements 255 (357} {1,626} (1,723
Balance at 31 Decembes 2023 342,730 156,240 257,031 T56,001
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{h) Movements of the allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances fo customers
measured at FYTOC! are as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Balance at 1 January 2024 361 - i) 350
Transter:
— 1o stage 1 - - - -
=10 stage 2 (4 a4 - -
=10 stage 3 - - - -
(Reverselicharge for the year {1 46 =11 36
Write-offs and transfer can - - — ~
Other movements {3 1 1 1]
Balance at 31 December 2024 353 51 21 a5
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balamce &t 1 January 2023 510 - 28 538
Transtar:
=10 stage 1 - - - -
=10 stage 2 - - - -
=10 stage 3 (E1] - 4B -
(Reverselcharge for the yeas (108) - 224 116
Write-offs and transfer cant - - {270} (270)
Other movemants L - 1 6
Balance at 31 December 2023 ELA - 29 390

In 2024, the changes of gross carrpng amounts of loans and advances to cusiomens with a significant impact on the
Group’s impairment allowance were maindy resulled from the credit business in Chinese masnland, inchuding: the gross
carrying amount ol domestic branches loans and advances 1o customers transferred from Stage 1 to Stage 2 was
RMBE235,49 million (2023: AMB436,289 million); the gross carrying amount of domestic branches loans transferred from
Stage 2 to Stage 3 was AMBES 453 million (2023 AMB101,522 million); the gross carrying amount of domests: branches
loans transierred from Stage 2 to Stage 1 was RMB74, 229 million (2023 AMB223,294 million). The changes of impairment
allewance resultng from leans tramsferred froem Stage 1 to Stage 3, Stage 3 to Stage 1 and Stage 3 to Stage 2 were not
significant (2023 not significant).

24, FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

31 December 31 December

20324 20323

Fnancial irvestments measured at FYTRL {ah 1,010,439 B11,957
Fenancial investments measured at PYTOCH [L3}] 3,291,152 2,230,862
Fonancial imvestments measured at amortised cost {eh 0,851,085 8,806,840
14,153,576 11,849 668
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{2} Financial investments measured at FYTPL

i December 31 December

Joda 2023
Financial investments held for trading
Debt secunties (analysed by type of siuers)
Governments and ceniral banks 95,728 186,993
Policy bankcs 27272 21,338
Banks and other financial institutions 73,431 64,517
Corparate entities 67721 E4.3032
564,152 357,150
Equity investments 18,048 14,650
582,200 371,800
Financial investments designated as at FVTPL
Debt securitios. (analysed by type of msuers)
Governments and central banks 6,504 312
Banks and other finanoal institutions 184 181
Corparate entities 653 222
7. ]
Funds and ether investments 34,735 42 868
4 ATE 43,643
Othar financial investments measured at FVTPL
Debt securities (analysed by type of msuers)
Policy banks BAMG 13,037
Banks and other Tinancial institulion 156,979 166,690
Corporate entities 1,683 2517
167 OEE 1EZ, 244
Equity invessirments 83,719 90,396
Funds and oiher investments 124 956 123,874
385,763 ¥26,514
1,010,439 B11,957
Analysed into:
Dbt securities
Listed in Hong Kong S4R 4,375 3,204
Listed outside Hong Kang SAR 29,237 20,629
Unlisted 105,379 516,336
738,981 540,169
Anpual Report 2024 207

363/483



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 n(Eess?)
Oooooooa

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iIn BARER millions, unbess othersise stated)

31 December 31 December

2024 023
Equity investments:

Listed in Hong Kong SAR 3,582 2,937
Listed outside Hong Kong SAR 24,348 27,168
Unisted 83,837 74921
111,767 105,046

Funds and oiher investments:
Listed in Hang Kong SAR 4,013 3,353
Listed outside Hong Kong 5AR 5.7 2393
Unbisted 148,987 160,996
150,691 166,742
1,010,428 811,957

{b) Financial investments measured at FVTOCI

3 Decembar 31 Decembar

024 2023
Debt securitees (anabysed by type of auers):
Governments and central banks 1,673,679 1,076,460
Palicy bariks 51241 184,168
Banks and other financial mstitutsons 398,174 203,463
Cofporale eniiies 588,449 566,527
Acoued interest 27,18t 22,099
3,200,500 2042 652
Othes chebt imvestments 5,426 5421
Equity imvestments 85,226 B2.789
I C 32010% 2230882
Analysed into:
Debt securities
Lsted in Hong Kong SAR 146,519 123,348
Listed outside Hong Kong SAR 185,928 339324
Unirsted 2,664,053 1.679,980
3,200,500 2042 652
Othes debt investments:
Unfsted 5426 5421
Equity investments:
Listed mn Hong Kong SAR 11,308 5,681
Listed cutside Hong Kong SAR 4 899 4,363
Unlsied 68,979 72,745
85,226 B2, 789
3,291,152 1,230 B&2
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As at 31 December 2024, the accumulated unrealized profit of the Group's debt secuntios and other deb? mwvestments
measured at FVTOCH was AMB92,821 million and AMB31 milkon (31 December 2023: the accumulated unrealized profin of
AME 19,296 mallion and AMBES million)

The Group designates certain non-trading equity investments as fmancial ivestrments measured at FVTOCL As at 31
Decembes 2024, the cumulated fair value floating profit of equity investments was RMBB, 184 mallion (31 December 2023;
AKB4A. 267 million), In 2024, dwidend income from sech equity mwestments was RMB3,067 million (2023 RMES,020
million), There was RMB314 milkon dvidend income from egasty invesimenis derecognised (2023 RMBES4 million],
The value of equity investmenis disposed of was RMBT,816 million (2023 AMB20,496 million) and the oumulative gains
trapsterred into retasned eamings from ather comprehensive income after disposal was RMBETS million (2023, AMEBEIGE
rmillign.

Allewance for impairment losses on Tinancial investments measured a1 FYTOC 1s recognised i ather comprehensive moame
without decreasing the carrying amount of financial irvestments presented in the consolidated statement of financiad
pasition, and any impalrment gam or loss is recognised in the prodi or loss. Movements of the sowance for impasment
losses on financial investments measured at FVTOC! are as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Balance at 1 January 2024 4,835 D64 3,769 9,568
Transfar:
= 1o stage 1 - - - -
— 1o stage 2 - - - -
=i stage 3 - - - -
Aeverse {or the year (277} 1355} {43} (673)
Other movements T 26 ] 132
Balance at 31 December 2024 4,565 635 3,825 9,005
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Balance at 1 Januaey 2023 4,754 1,009 3,527 5,330
Transder:
— 1t stage 1 a (a0 - -
=12 stage 2 £ ] 49 - -
—1o stage 3 - - - -
(Revarselicharge for the year E (78} 659 SRE
Othed movemisils 63 24 ma (330}
Balance at 31 December 2023 4 835 BG4 3,768 R
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{c) Financial investments measured at amortised cost
31 December 31 December
2024 023
Debt securities {analysed by type of issuers)
Governments and central barks () 8,379,953 7.529,154
Policy banks 549,266 593,513
Banks and other financial mstitutsons (i) 771,30 542 365
Corporaie enidses 68,060 68,061
Agcrund interest 104,906 08,590
9,473,405 8,831,683
Other nvastmants (iil) 16,877 13,868
Accrued interest 16 16
16,803 13,885
9,890,388 8,845 568
Liwss: Allwance Tor imgairment [osges {38.403) {38,719}
9,851,985 8,806,849
Analysed into:
Debt securities:
Listed in Hong Kong SAR 36,281 8B4z
Listed cutside Hang Kang SAR 233,832 200,976
Unisted &,568,021 8,555 776
9,838,134 8,795,595
Other mwestments
Unisted 13,851 11254
13,851 11,254
9,851,985 8,806,849
Market vadue of listod secumtios 269 046 236, 487

1]

i

Lty

21

This includes a special governmen bond, which s a non-negatioble bond with @ nomanal value of RMEES 000 million (31
December 2023 RMBES,00) milon) Bsued by the Manistry of Finance of the People®s Republc of China (the “B0F") to the
Bank in 1998. The band will mature in 2028 and bears interest at a foed rate of 2.25% per annum.

This includes Huarong bonds of AMBS0,309 milien (31 December 2023; RMBS0, 309 million), Huatong bonds are a sedies of
jang-tesm bonds meued by the former Chins Huarong Asset Management Co., Lid. {“Huamng®] in the year of 2000 and 2001
to the Bank, with an aggregate amount of RMB312,996 million. The proceeds from the ksuance of the bonds were used o
purchase non-performing loans of the Bank The bonds are non-negotisble, with a tenure of 10 years and bear nlerest a1 a
fied rate of 2.25% per annum,. The MOF provdes funding support far the repayment of princpal and interest of the bonds.
In 2010, the Bank recerved a natice from the MOF that the maturity dates of the Huarong bonds were extended l'or ten years
In 2020, the Bank recesved a notice from the MOF o adjust the nterest rate of the Huarong bonds, starting from 1 lanuary
2020, Interest rate would be determined an a yearly basis with reference 1o the average level of five-year government band
yield in the previcus year, In Januasy 2021, the Bank received a notice from the MOF that the maturity dates of Husrong
bornds were further extended for ten years. A a1 31 December 2024, the Bank had received accurmulated early nepapments
amaunting to RMBI22,687 million (31 Decembier 2023: RM82.12,687 millign),

Driker irvestments include debt investment plans, asiet management plans and trust plans with fixed or determinabile
payments. They will matire from May 2025 1o August 2039 and bear interest rates ranging from 2.84% to 6.08% per annum.
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Movamants of the allowance for impairment lesses on fmancial investments measured at amortised cost are as Tollows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance at 1 lanuary 2024 36,000 1n 2,699 38,7149
Transfer:
—fio stage 1 - - - -
— o stage 2 - - = -
=i stage 3 - - - -
Reverse for the year (507} - - (507)
Crther movements L - 153 19
Balance a1 31 December 2024 35,540 n 2852 38,403
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance at 1 January 2023 28,613 3 2,699 3,335
Transfer;
—to stage 1 b} (g - -
=0 stage 2 2} Z - -
=t stage 3 = - = -
Charge fof the year T.385 4 - 7,389
Other movements (&} 1 - (5]
Balance at 31 December 2023 35,009 " 2,699 /719

25, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

31 December 31 December

2024 2023
Listed mwestments, at oost 2,12 2012
Unlisted investments, at cost 160571 160571
163,283 163,283
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{In RME millions, unbess othersdise stated)

Particulars of the Group's prinopal subsicharies as al the end of the reparting peviod are a3 Tollows:

Nominal waive of
irund el Fce of

Percectagn ol equity it & puindtn tapital dnmet rpmamanan!

¥ Deceecbar 31 Decamber 11 Decenber imeesad regiiraton Hrincipal
Kirs b ] i nu by the husk ind Speriton it
indrerial e Cormeoral Bk of i 100 W DM @nde WD THEmio ooy AL the C  Commeal busing
(gl Lt {'ICBC o)
CHC Intetiona ok Lmetnd 100 00 HEDSSEnden  HOSMIndon  HongRongSALthe ML bentmant baiing
(KR iberrationdl|
Il e Cormmernaal Bank of (g Kt [ EE] WO milicn  MAOP1L DM mailion bacaz S8 the HC Commecil baning
(Wit Lorsed {“DCRC Macas)
F1 Bk B ncoresy Al A DROME, 100 milice (5D millon I ndoees  Commennl aning
Incirngd e Coevmerrial Bl of Chena 1od L] AvREd s Wi e s g Wslan Commennl Banling
Nt Borha
Il el Ceevmensial Barlk of Chena L] TS THEDD Y el THEIL L e Borghol, Mualend Commenisl bariling
{Thal Publc Company Limied ("ICBC That")
el vl ormsmercial ek of Chiet 100 0 T e T3 it Mimaty Cmabaion  Commmecial haviing
) o Shock Compary
syl e Commerial ek of Ol 100 L] NREAA i NP mlor  Aockled hew felend Commerlberking
e Tesnd) Lot {“ICBC Niew Deland)
sl e Commerial ek of o et} S0 100 e FLMH] s FLRMET mion lowetiey  Commeral baling
ICEC [londan) AC M L \S0E0) paiion ST reilt  (oncioe, Uited G Commential bavilng
JCRE Scandird Bank PLC ["Stancnd Bask ') [ & U018 milln USO8 ko Loncon, Uinited Gk Sy
Bk KB ot sock rompuny) [l WE REIRAH milen FUEHA11 milcn Moo, furia. Commerial bariig
ICEC Ty Baek Anores Sl 18 M LT e A0 il b, Tfiyy  Commenial basking
ICEC fustri Rk G m B0 R FUEI0 el Veer Aoty Comeral et
Ibriial ol Cormmnrial Bunk of Chena 1154 W4 L] & U5035] e DME mlen New'od, Uninditiim  Commercil baiing
Il ee] Cormmmpecial Bunk of Chara 111} e 1U505] reificn DS Fimibon  Delavaw ad New Sk, Ercber Jeaier nd
Frueddl Sermm LU Umied i rurgn badg
Iuretrial ] Cormeperial B of Chara (Canadi] L] ] AN riicn CADTE 58 miln Tornly, Doy Comvmerai bl
PN Conads™)
irduririal and Cormmivrial Bank of Chora Mz A L] W06 WO 57 relien M 547 milion Memon Oty Mente  Commencial baniing
vl e Cormewermial Bark of Cherg (Bl A 111} L] LR Beal 1) milign 50 Faie, Bl Commenl fariting
Indiinal arel Cormmeral Bk of O Chogerinad . ] 00 ARSI o IS0 o Buemct Mows, Arpeniva  Commeal bavin
KCBE Pees Bunk 0 0 1750120 raificn 1501 ilice Limw, e Commenial Bankng
B Crndit Suie dsnet Marasgernardt (o, 104 ] B e AL e Beng e AL Fund maragement
WCAC Fraancial Lo o Ui * (OB L) W 100 000 rlen BN 000 b Tuirge, thi- FE Lieuring
IR gy Ca, D (R0 &l W WIS mbn RLIET 6] it Sangha, the FIL i
ICBC Frareial At bevestrnt (o, od* ] B RMETOMmlion  EMEIT000 melion Marjeg the FRC Feancial st
KEC bvvesimen 7| iverren]
ICEC Woealh Wit o, 1l * 100 B BMDEO el EMIEN0 relion By, the PEC Vonath masagment
Traiang Pghe ICB Rurdl Bt (o, 101 # & BEXinde 281 nlon Dy e A Commeralbasing
Cheryrng Bebun C3C RuralBark o, L4 * 100 BE R0 e AElmde Chogep e MC  Commevliwning

* These subsidiaries inooeporated in Chinese mainland ase al imited lability companaes,

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, vating rights of the subsidearies of the Group were in line with the
Group’s equity interests

The above table [mts the pronopal subsidianes of the Bank. To give details of other subsidianes would, in the opinion of the
management, result i pariculars of excessie kength.

There was no subsidsry af the Group which had matenal non-controling imterests dunng the reparting penod.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

26. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

11 December 31 December

2024 2023

Interests o Associales n.org 61,568
Interests m poent veniures 21.285 2910
73,357 54,778

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

Share al nel assels 59 428 50,973
Goodhwil 14,448 14,324
TIETE 65,297

Less: ABowance for impairment losses. (5149) {519
73,357 64,778

(a) Carrying value of the Group’s associates and jeint ventures are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

Standard Rank 26,946 25,394
Othess 46411 30,384
73,357 G4 TTE

Standard Bank < a listed commercial bank registered in Johannesburg, the Republic of South Africa with an ssued capitad
of ZAR166 million and a strategsc partner of the Group. As at 31 December 2024, the Group's equity interest and volmg
rights in Standard Bank were both 19.59% (31 Decemnber 2023 19.39%),

The accounting palices of Standard Bank are consistent with those of the Group. Its fmancial information is significant to
the Group and swnmansed as followa:

As at/year ended  As at/year ended
31 Pecember 2024 31 Decomber 2023

The associate
Assiets 1,271,730 1,174,552
Liabilities 1,157,852 1,068 458
Met assets 113,838 106,064
Prafit from continuing operations 17,009 17129
Equity method of the associate
Mt assets of the associate attrbutable to the parent companyg 97422 o062
Group's effective interest 19.59% 19.39%
Group's share of net assets of the associate 19,085 17,657
Goodwill B0 BOES
Clesing balance of the Group's intedest in Standard Bank i the
conzolidated statermant of financal position 27,154 15,742
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(b) Movements of associates and joint ventures investments of the Group are as follows:
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Ireeitmerd
isoama Eatance ol
tagrhed Dtlired zminee ot
Rslanin ot ueder Dt dirbation of Mlarcewt  irmairean
ey Irveiimest  bmdireert the gty comprihptivy  cnh dvidend e ol aand ol
ol ey e o] wiied ircane & profitu (thar thie ywar o
ot vt 158 - 1 [l 14 1] 15 -
A
Yo bl N = = 1% L [1F 4] 11 N 4
e B 15,068 B3 155 . 115531 {1117} i (¥
Sbiotd B3 15,05 ] L 147] B431) 58 ns G
Tl B 1505 B5T 4509 ¥ 3478 [LEI) 1180 Ll
27. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Qi
Fropertet equpmen] Rireraly
and Constrection Leaheld vl vatoe and
bueldings inpogress  improvements wekicles wetnely Tatal
Cmt
AT Laeuary N1 1.3 17.Mé 14335 338 1945 504,580
Additery 59 1954 75l 560 1355 s
CIF fransler mfout] isd 105 5 L} ] 4545 -
Deipasals and cther mawments 2418 L] (F6I LEE (328 13,3041
A 31 December 1013 and | Jasuary 3030 LK, ] FLir 14580 B3,75 i A
Addtory 1383 0448 LAY (ALY 7. 11 4B
CF tateler ot inml (1,085 = H] Legt -
Daposaiy and cther mowenmts e A i) o.4n 3939 (12,7461
A2 30 Deveeber 224 14T 11,15 15,704 E7 £ Nim PN
Arrervaated depreciation and ahowance for
A | Ly 1023 B.V55 kL 12358 B, 151 53 18083
Dpoedation change for the year 1 - B LIR GEN i)
Impdiemeet charge for the year - - - - L 1287
Deposay and cther mavements (1.5 - L1 L¥IL (4,145 18552
A 30 Deceober 120 e | Loy 204 LR ] 13510 6.1 316 11355
Depeeciation charge or the year 15 - o] 145 108 138
Irgarngat change dor the year - - - - :1) ;i
Depass and other movemerss LM 1 13 .06 {16681 s
#4131 Devember 2004 b EH] EEH ] TL53% 56 14m
Corrpg amorary.
AL31 December 023 W76k 14165 1860 15608 183,457 o
A2 30 Deceeter 2004 g a7 LETS 15584 15455 02387
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

As at 31 Decomber 2024, the process of obtaining the legal titles for the Group's properties and bulldmgs with an
apgregate cammyang amount of AMES.404 mdlion (31 December 2023 RMEB,421 millicn) was still in progress. Management
is el the view that the aoresaid matter would neither affect the rights of the Group to these assets nor have any significant

impact on the business operation of the Graup,

As ot 21 December 2024, the carying amoumnt of aircralt and vessels leased out by the Group under operating leases was
AMEB 154,596 million (31 December 2023: AMB149,457 mélion)

As st 31 Decomber 2024, the carrying amount of aireraft and vessels owned by the Group that have been pledged as
coltateral for liabilities due 1o banks and other financial instrtutions was AMB28,043 milkon (31 December 2023; RMB72,257

millian),

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of aircraft and vessel construction in progress was RMB14,699 million (31

December 2023 RMB17.670 milkgn)

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(2) Analysed by nature

Deferrad tax assets

31 December 2024 11 December 2023
Deductiblel Deferred Deductible Deferred
Itl:ublul tax It.u.n ahle) tax
temporary assels temporary assets/
differences (Habilities) differences (Habilities)
Allewance lor empairment losies 474,566 117,835 450,033 111,767
Change in fair vabue of financial mstruments
reasured at FYTPL 40,7073 (10,183 (16,762} (4.221)
Change in fair value of financial mstruments
measurad at FVTOC| 112,174) {28,101} (35,609} (9,222)
Accrued staff costs 45,935 11,477 46,59 11,623
Others (3,861) 1) (21,244} (5,278
363,755 90,047 AZ2. Q4T 104,669
Deferred tax labikties:
11 Decembar 2024 31 Decombaer 2023
Taxahble/ Deferred Taxabile/ Deferred
(deductible) tax (deductible) tax
temporary liabilities! temporary liabilities/
differances {assets) differences [assets)
Allowance Tor snpairment losses (90) (23) (109} (38)
Change in fair vafue of financisl mstrurments
measured at FYTIL 1.573 1.693 11289 1,701
Chjng' i Bair value ol financial sdtruments
measured at FWTOC) {333) &) (146} 6
Othors 10,733 2,683 B.912 2,203
17,883 4,278 16,386 3,930
Anpual Report 2024 2158
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{b) Movementis of deferraed income tax

Deferred tax assets:
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Recognised
in ather
1 lanuary Recognised in - comprehensive 11 December
2024 profit or lois Intame 2024
Allowance for impairment losses 111,767 6,058 - 117,825
Changa in fair value of finarial instrsments
measured at FYTRL 4,221) (5,962) = {10,183}
Change in fair valye of finarcial instruments
measured at FYTOCH 10,222) - {18,879} {28,100
Becrued stalf costs. 11,623 [146) - 11,477
Others {5.278) [715) 5,022 [irall
104,66 [TE5) (13,857) 50,047
Dolerred tax liabslities:
Recognised
in other
1 lanuary Recognised in - comprehensive 11 December
2024 profit or loss incame 1024
Allwarice for impairment losses (38} 15 - (FE]
Change im fair value of financial instrements
measured at FYTPL 1.7 [i:1] - 1,663
Change in fair value of financial instruments
measured at FYTOC) il - (145) 81y
Others 1,203 248 238 2,689
3,930 255 43 4,178
Deferred tax assets:
Recognised
in ather
1 January Recognised in - comprehensive 11 Decomber
2023 prfit or loss Incame 2023
Allgwanca for impairment losses 99753 12,014 - 111,767
Change in fair value of financal instrumants
meazured at FYTFL {1,194 {3,027 = {4,221}
Change in Lalr value of financial instruments
measured at FYTOCH (2449 - 6,773) {9,222}
Accrued stall costs 10,83% T4 - 1,623
Ohers {5,832) [942) 1,456 15, 278)
T 84828 [5.277) 104, 569
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

Deferrad tax labibties:

Recognised
Recognised in other
1 January in  compreheniive 11 December
FirE] profit or loss Intama 2023
AScwance for impairment losses [156) 158 - (38
Change in fair value of fmancial mtrumenis
measured at FUTPL 1,845 (144} - 1,701
Change in fair varlue of Tinancial mstruments
measured at FTOCI 110 - [{=217] 54
Others 1.591 612 - 2,203
3,950 626 [{=2157] 3930

As at 31 Decernber 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Group déd not have significant unrecognised defered tax assets.

29. OTHER ASSETS

31 Decembor 31 Dacombar

2024 2023

Settlement and dlearing balances 238,962 213,951
Precious matak 208,907 140,230
Fight-of-use assets {a) 24 466 28,538
Land usa rights 12,960 14,438
Good will i) 19,566 9,357
Advance payments 1,157 7.034
Repossessed assots e 6. 1EE 6,502
Imterest receivable 3,684 3425
Othors 110,303 121,963
B2T.231 545 438

Less: Allowance for impairment losses (13,9498) (11,891)
613,233 533,547
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iIn BARER millions, unbess othersise stated)

{a) Right-of-use assets
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Alrcrafi DOffice
Praperties and  equipment and
and buildings wessals motor vehicles Total
Coal
At 1 January 2023 ATE37 20418 395 58,650
Additions 6231 1106 162 7,499
Dispersals and ather movemants 87T (6873 1,051 {40,659
At 31 December 2023 and 1 lanesry 2024 LR 14,651 1608 55,450
Adaditians 6,983 - 13 6,905
Dispasals and ather movements {2,587 (3,888) (1,162} 7,817}
At 31 December 2024 43,607 10,763 4549 54 829
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2023 21,156 1516 325 24,997
Deprecation charge for the year 6730 GES 95 1514
Di!.npmdll.arld ather movermenis 4,327 {1,414y 136 15,593}
At 31 December 2023 ardl 1 fanary 2024 23,585 2091 556 26,912
Depreciation tharge lor the year 6410 536 74 7,020
Disposals and ather movermenis {2.508) (845} [216) 3.569)
AL 31 December 2024 27,467 1482 484 30,363
Abowance for mmparment loses
At 1 January 2023 35 as5 - 8590
Othes mavements i (325} - {324}
A1 31 Decermber 2023 and 1 Janwary H24 36 530 = 566
Other mavesments 1 {89 = 11
At 31 December 2024 ar a4 - 48
Cannying amount:
At 31 Decerber 2023 15,590 11,330 1,052 17872
At 31 December 2024 16,103 7840 45 23,988
{b) Goodwill
2024 2023
At 1 lanuary o 357 3,13
Additions 9.961 -
Exchange defference 248 176
Subiotal 19,566 9,357
Less: Allowance for impairment ksses 4oy (390}
19,165 8967

The goodedll b attributable 1o the expected iyhergies arsing from acqussition of several subsidiaries. Goodwill arsing from
business combinatons has been reasonably allocated 1o the CGU, which i not larger than the repartable segment af the Group,
for impairment testng. The recoverable amount of the CGU is delefmaned based on the ducounted fulure cash flows of the CGU
The cash flow projections are based on finanoal forecasts approved by mansgement of the subsdianes. The average growth rates
are projected bated on the similar rates which do not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business in which the
CGU operates in. The discount rale & the before-tax rale and reflects the spealic nik msocated with the CGU. Accordng 1o the
impairment teat, the sbave goodwill has not been impased during the current year, mevements in provision lor empaimment of
goodwill was the etlect of exchange rate dhanges in 2024,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

{c} Repossessed assets

2024 2023
Properties. and buildings 5,604 5,878
Oaher 5A2 B2d
Subtotal 6.185 6,502
Leas: Allswance fof impairment kases (2,974) {3,118)
3z 3,386
30. IMPAIRMENT ALLOVWANCE
Write-offy Recoverias
At Charge/ ] of At
1 lanuary [reversa) transfer pravious 31 December
2024  for the year outl write-offs Dthers 024
Due from banks and otber

financial institutions 3,560 586 - - 201 4,347
Rervirsn repunchase agreements a7 (64} - - - 13
Loans and advances 1o Customess 756,391 122,479 {85,127 13,856 7.698 B15.497
Financad invesiments 483287 {1, 182) 157) - 380 AT 428

Irvestmenits in associates and
jaint veritunes 519 - - - - 518
Property and equipment 11,522 B9 - - 88 12,802
Credit commitments 24,185 630 - B 84 25,159
Others 29,691 3263 {1,495 = 98 41,553
Tatal B84,252 126,663 [86,683) 13,856 5,250 847,338
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Write-offs Recoveries
At Chargel and of At
1 January [reverss) transfer Previous 11 December
2023 for the year et write-olis Oihers 2023
Due From banks and other
financial msEutiong 1,500 2,040 - - 20 3,560
Feverse repurchase agreements 475 {37} - - a a7
Loans and advances to cusiomers BT 762 143422 (72.591) 14,915 nmn7a 756,391
Financial investmants 40,665 T.957 {563) - 128 48,287
Irvestmaents i associabes and
paint ventures 365 154 - - - 519
Proparty and equipmernt 13,685 1,297 12,619 - 159 11,522
Credit commibments 27,640 3,585) - - 130 24,185
Ohers 40,159 {821 11,298} 126 [0 39,651
Total 797251 !sn,ETé [?E,d?_l} 15,141 485} BME
31. DUE TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
11 Decemnber 31 Decembor
2024 2023
Deposits:
Banks snd ather financial msdituisons opetating in Chenese mainland 3,841,081 2.698821
Banks and other financial mstitutsons operatng outside Chinese masnland 143,455 138,308
Acoruad interest 36,001 4,156
4,020,537 2.B41 3E5
Momey market takings:
Banks and other fingncial mstuisons operatmg n Chanesr mainland 273,806 218,733
Banks and other financial mstitutions operatmg outside Chinese masnland 283,602 2B8,BEB3
Accrued inferest 8.020 10,857
570,428 528473
4,590,965 3,369,858
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

32. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

11 December 31 December

2024 2023
Financial habdities related 1o preciols metals
and account-based imvestment products () 61,362 51,843
Dbt securities swued (i) 10,562 5,647
Orthers 4132 5,364
- T 52,859

(it Financial liabilities related to precicus metals and account-based yestment products, and certain msued debt seourities
have been matched with precious metaks or derivatives of the Group as part of a documented ik management strategy to
mitigate market risk. &n accounting mismatch would anse i these financial liabilities were accounted for at amortsed cos,
whereas the related precious metals o derivatees were measused al fair value with movements in Fair vahie taken throoegh the
statement of profit or loss. By desgnating these fmancial Babslities a1 FYTPL, the mowement in their fair values o recorded in
the statement of peofit or loss. As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the diferance betwean the Tair values of the
fimaricial lisbiities related to precious metals, sccount-based investment products and sswed debt securities and the amounts
that the Group would be contractually required to pay to the holders of the financial liabilities related o precious metals,
account-hated investiment products and Riued debt securities upon maturity was not significant.

In 2024 and 2023, there were no significant changes in the credit spread of the Group and therefore the amounts of
changes in fasr value of the financial liabilities anseg Trom changes m the credit sk and the accurmulated amounts as at the
end of the respective years were not significant. The changes in fair value of the financial liabdities were mainly attributable
to changes in other market factoss

33. REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

31 December 31 December

2024 023
Measured st amaortised cost:
Repurchaie agreements-bills 12,006 11,738
Repurchase agreements-securities 1,493,317 968,339
Accrued intenest 17427 9,855
Subtotal 1,522,840 Q80,932
Measured at FYTPL
Repurchase agreements-securities and cash receved a5 collateral on Seoumilies
lending 75 28,174
Total 1,523,555 1,018,106

34. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

Certificates of deposit issued by certain of the Bank's overseas branches and subsidianes are measured at amortised cost.
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35. DUE TO CUSTOMERS
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31 Decemnbar 31 December
2024 2023

Demand deposits:
Cofporale cusiomers 1,158,295 7.366,691
Personal customerns 6,463,845 6,083,841
13,622,140 13,450,532

Time deposis:

Conporale cuslomens £,349,110 8,843,237
Personal customers 12,077,665 10,481,727
20426775 19,324,964
Others 228,71 210,185
Acorued interest 558,337 535,493
34,836,973 33521104

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's pledged deposits included in above amounited to RMB142,531 mdlion {31 December

2023; RMB171,113 mallion)

36. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

31 December 31 December
2024 2023
Subordinated bands, tier 2 capstal bonds and 1otal loss-absorbing
capacity eligble non-capital bands
kssued by the Bank 732,588 682,184
hisued by subsidanes 6,058 9,543
Aconued nterest 10,617 12,402
749,261 704129
Other debt securites
lsued by the Bank 1,192,573 554,931
sued by subsidiaries 84,843 108,393
Aconued Interest 2,045 23M4
- 1,279,461 565,648
2,028,722 1,369,777

As 3t 31 Decernber 2024, the amoant of debt securities issued that were dwe within one year was RMB1,1 14,660 million (31

Decombaor 2023, AMBA76.234 million),

In 2024, the Group has not had any defaults in respect of payments of principal or interest or other breaches with respect

1o the bonds (2023 Nil)
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{ln ARAR millions, unless otherwise stated)

{a) Subordinated bonds, tier 2 capital bonds and total loss-absorbing capacity eligible
non-capital bonds

The Bank:

As approved by the PEOC and the NFRA, the Bank issued callable subordinated bonds, tier 2 capitsd bonds and 1o0%al loss
absoebing capacity ebgible non-capital bonds (TLAC nen-capital Bonds) in the Natonal Imerbank Bond Market throwgh
open markel bidding. Thew subordinated bonds, tior 2 capital bonds and TLAC non-capital Bonds were traded on the
Mational Interank Bond Market The relevant information is set out below:

haued and

lage price  nominal amount  Cagpan Value Matusity Circulation
Name I3 date {in AMS) [ RMB milicn) rate date date date
T1RCRC 01 29062011 100 ¥uan 36,000 5.55% NOAT0IT - 300A0 Jooeaon
19 KCBC 02 Tier 2 Bond PG 100 ¥uan 10,000 451% 00N ISUIA0M P
19 RCBE 04 Tier 2 Bond WAL 100 Yuan 10,000 I65%  JGTATO0ID JETAO0M JRNME
MR 01 Tier 2 Bond 28020 100 Yuan 0,000 420% MOANR0 2aTRH) TR0
200CBC 02 Tier 2 Bond 112029 100 Yusn 30,000 415% 6113020 161172030 1neeza
I CBE 03 Tier 2 Bond 12113020 100 Yuan 10,000 445% &1 VR 12035 R0
21 BCBC 01 Tier 3 Bond 13012001 100 Yusn 30,000 4% amao 21 221208
21 BB 02 Ties 2 Bond 13122021 100 ¥uan 50,000 JaE% 15 a2 151 12031 AN 220
T1BCBC 03 Ther 2 Bond 131230 100 Yan 10,0040 114% LET 15127036 1612900
2XHCBE 01 Tier 2 Bond 18012022 100 fdan 35,000 % WO 000 TR0
12 WCHC 02 T 7 Bend 18017022 100 Yoan 5,000 g% 0T 0ANAnET FALIL e
22 0CRC 03 Tier 7 Bond 121042027 100 Yusn 45,000 5% LT 147042032 1504905
22 ICEC 04 Tier 2 Bond 12042022 100 Yuan 5000 IT4% TAnen0ey FARA0AT 1504082
12 ICBC 04 Ther-] Capral Bonds L:Le el iy 100 Yan 30,000 1% RMATF 2R PELL i)
22 WCBE DB Tier-2 Capiial Bords IBDERN22 100 uan 10,000 13% 0MATIEE JANERNIT 02
22 ICEC DAA Tier-2 Capital Bonds [ Ty 100 Yiaan 50,000 100% 0113022 g e
L2 ICEC 046 Tier-2 Capriat Bonds oar 12082 100 Yuan 10,000 1% o iz o e ez
11 CBC 05A Tier-] Capital Bonds AN 100 Yuan 5,000 % NATNE Gananm NI
23 B O5B Tier-2 Capital Bonds 206112022 100 uan 5,000 IS JNTRGERR  JANME ANy
23 BCBC O1A Tier2 Capial Bonds T ] 100 Yiaan 35,000 145% A0 120 LELC A FE]
23 ICBC 018 Tier-2 Capital Bonds 10042023 100 Yaan 30,000 158% 104003 12odanaE FELC LA RS
3 ICBC (24 Tien 2 Capital Bonds. FLUL Rl 100 uan 30,000 0% IDATHNI 300ER033 EIL L]
13 ICBC O7E Tier-d Caprlal Bonds PR 100 Yuin 15,000 118% NOATMNI  I00EN0E eI
MBS 014 TLAC Hon-capital Bond 15052004 100 Yuan 30,000 115% 11052024 I Tes20rE 0059004
JAWCBC DVBTLAC Nomcaprial Bond 1SAIS200 100 Yiuan 10,000 135% TSG04 (L] TS0
4 CRC THCBOVA 1M0R204 100 Yiaan &3 004 1M MO 2000 IVDE M
14 ICBC TICRDIB ITOET04 100 Yuan B.000 140%  IGURTOMA  DRNER0H IR0
M ICEC TICHR 2810200 100 Yuan &0 0040 13M% WI0T0M 280070 20702024
4 I8 TLACENCGROT(BL) TR0 100 Yaan 10,000 1.76% 191 57024 1anaenze 0NL20H

The Bank has the option 1o medeem theso bonds in whobe or m port on spocific dates at par value o future upon the
approval of the relevant regulatory authorities.
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n 2015, the Bank msed tier 2 capital bonds denominated in USD. The bonds were approved for listing and deabing by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The relevant information is 581 cut below

tvurd L] Lrafirg
ir AffsE Balanre
i coriginal
i oviginsd urrrhiy] [in RN} Coopon
Mamg bauedits  Comency Ty (GRS {million| rai® Valundite ity date Cirulation datw
Vi
T 2 castal bareh palc k] 1.0 LN 1000 1500 4415 TS Pl et 21

The bonds cannot be redeemed before matunty

Subsidianes:

On 23 Masch 2018, ICBC Thai issued a tier 2 capital bond with an sggregate nominal amoant of THBS. 000 mallon, beanng
a fixed mterest rate of 3.5%. The bond will mature on 23 Septembser 2028

On 15 March 2022, ICBC-AXA msued o capital supplementary bond with an sggregate nominad amount of RMBS,000
million, bearwg an initial fed interest rate of 3,7%. The bond will mature on 17 March 2032, The sswer has an option to
redeern the capital supplementary bond in whole or in part a1 par value at the end of the filth interest-beanng year. If the
nsuer does nol exercise the redemption option, the coupon rate would increase 1o 4.7% from the sinth Interest-baasing
pear.

The above ter 2 capital Bonds are separately traded on the That Bond Marke! and the National interbank Bond Market.

{b) Other debt securities issuad

The Bank:

(i) Head Office issued debt securities and interbank certificates of deposit, denorminated in RME at fixed interest rates
amguning to AR 081 604 million i total with matunties botwesn 2025 and 2027, The coupon rates range frem
0% 1o 2.70%

() Sydmey Branch issued debt securities and imerbank certficates of deposit, denominated in AUD and USD an fied or
floating interest rates amounting to an eguivalent of RMBG 241 million i total with maturities between 2025 and
2027, The coupon rates range from 1.08% to 5.41%.;

(i} Singapore Branch isued debt secuntios denominated in AME and USD at fixed or floating interest rates amounting 1o
an equivalent of AMB24.412 million in total with maturities between 2025 and 2027, The coupon rates range from
1.20% to 5.24%,.

{v)  Mew York Branch mswed debt sequrities and notes denominated in USD at fixed mterest rates amounting 1o an
equivalent of RMB7,632 milkon in lotal with matunties between 2025 and 2027, The coupon rates range from 0% to
3.54%;

(v)  Luxemboutg Branch ssued debl securities denominated m EUR at fised interest rates amounting 1o an equivalent af
AMBEZ, 260 milkan in total that wall mature in 2026, The coupan rate {3 4,13%.

fw)  Dubai [DFC) Branch issued debt securities denomanated in RMB and USD at fixed or floating interest rates amounting
o an equivalent of AMB12,583 malion in total with matuntics between 2025 and 2027, The coupon rates range from
2.70% to 542%

{wi) Hong Kong Branch lssued debt securities dencminated m USD at fized or floating serest rates amounting to an
equivalent of RMB39,3T1 million in total with matuenties between 2025 and 2027, The coupon rates range from
1.20% to 537 %,

{viii) London Branch mswed notes denominated in GBF, USD and EUR at foed or floatng inferest rates amoamnting 1o an
equivatent of RMB15,821 million in total with matwities bebween 2025 and 2027, The coupon rates range from
1.63% to 537 %.

f)  Macau Branch issued debt securitios denominated in USD and MOP at fixed or floating mterest rates amounting o an
equivalent of RME2, 550 milllon in total wath matunities between 2025 and 2027. The coupon rates range fram 4. 70%
e 5,15%
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Subgdiaries:

{iy  ICBC Asia issued debt securities and interbank certificales of deposit denominated i RMB and USD at ficed interest
rates amounting 1o an equivalent of AMBE, 370 million in total with matuntes between 2025 and 2027, The coupon
rates range from 2.05% 1o 4 .90%

{iy  IEBC Leasing tssued debt securities denomnated ;n RMEB and UASD a1 Tixed or floating mterest rates amounteng to
an squrvalent of RMBA4 ABE million in total with matunbies bebaeen 2025 and 2031, The coupan rates range from
1.75% 1o 6.00%.

(i) ICBC Thai issued debt securities denomenated in THE at fized intevest rates arfmounting 1o an equivalent of RMBT 521
million in tatal with matunties between 2025 and 2027, The coupon rates range from 1.52% 10 3 70%

(v} ICBC International issued debt securities denommated i AME and USD at fised interest rates amounting fo an
equivalent of RLBE, 246 mallion in tatal wath maturites bobween 2025 and 2027. The coupan rales range from 1.70%
to 5.40%

(v ICBC MNew Zealand issued debt securities denominated i NZD, AME and USD at fixed or floating interest rates
amounting 1o an equivalent of AMB2, 160 million in total with maturiies between 2025 and 2079 The coupon rales
range from 2.93% to 5.78%.

{wid  ICBC Imvestment mswed debt securities denominated in RS at fixed interest rates amounting to RAE10,000 million
in tatal that will mature in 2025, The coupon rates range from 2.20% 10 2.50%,

(wi) ICBC Canada wmsued interbank certificates of deposit denominated in CAD at ficed nterest mates amountng 1o
RMBTS3 méilion in tatad that wall mature in 2025 The coupon rates range from 3.30% to 3.56%.

v} ICBC Macau msued debt secunbes dencminmted in KMB a1 fived interest rates amounieng 1o RbB2.989 million n total
that wall mature in 2026. The coupon rate ts 3.09%.

{id ICBC Argentina bsued debt securites denominated in ARS at fixed intersdt rates amounting fo AMBINE milien m
total that will matwre in 2025, The coupon rate is 5.00%

37. OTHER LIABILITIES

31 Decembor 31 December

2024 2023

Settlament and clearing balances 374,545 296,443
Insuramce business Babilites 304,959 177321
Salaries, bonuses, aowances and subsidies payables {a} 45,260 44,768
Provishons for credit commitments {b) 25,159 24,185
Lease labilities (ch 20,983 24,849
Sundry tax payables 15,974 15,941
Promissorny notes 1,239 1,716
Early retirement benefits 7 12
Others 140,680 133,407
020, 215 B18,642

fal  There were no overdee payments for staff salaries, bonuses, allowances and subsidies payable as ai 31 Decembes
2024 31 Decomber 2023: Nil)

(by  Prowisions for credit commitments

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance at 1 January 2024 17,897 5634 G54 24,185
Trarsfer:
~tastage 1 113 Rk = Z
— 1o stage 2 (204 204 - -
=to stage 3 (78) {7 a3 -
Chargefreverse) for the year 17N (528) (553} 690
Caher movements 14 54 (B4} 284
Balance a1 31 December 2024 19,815 5244 100 25,159
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance at 1 lanuary 2023 20,783 BB 246 17,640
Trangder
~fto stage 1 ERL (241} - -
—1o stage 2 {301) 01 - -
=fo stage 3 [EA)] may 184 -
(Reverelicharge for the year (2.953) (B5S) 223 (3,585)
Orther movements L £l 1 130
Balance at 31 December 2023 17,897 5,634 654 24,185

(el Lease habilities

31 Decomber 11 Detambar

2024 2023
Less than one year 6741 8,073
Oine o two years 5515 6,109
T to thiree years 3913 4,689
Theee 1o fre years A 5441
More than Tre years 2,145 3,023
Unidscounted bease kabilities 12,758 27,335
Cloning balance of kease labilities 20,583 24,849
3B. SHARE CAPITAL
31 December 2024 3 December 2023

Number Number
of shares Nominal of shares Mominal
[millians) value {millions) wilue

bssued amd fully pasd

H shanes of AMBT Yuan eadh 86,795 85,795 86,705 BG, 705
A shaned of AME1 Yuan each 269,612 269612 269,612 269,612
356,407 356,407 356,407 356,407

Except for the desdonds ol H shares which are payable In Hong Kang dollass, all of the ardinary A shates and H shases rank
jpari passu with each other in respect of divdends on cedanary shares.
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39. OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
{1) Prefarence shares

fa) Preference shares (“Preference Shares”) outstanding:

Imocel I crigead

Firancial iriiramieny hinoariag Drwadin L] oy nid Lasweion
L] lwe iy danrfobn uH i price purm| [mlie]  |miiee) Materty e ]
Detchome Frefgece

Trares

(4] O By 1% N 145 250 15TH fere Maredstoey L]
Do Predetescs

.

BEMIS IS gty L o ] &0 fere Medsiory L]

BENIS 1500 By 1% B mn o] e ferw Waredstoey L]
[ ] [5LTH

fh} Main clavses and basic information
{i) Dividend

Offshore and domestic dividonds are paid annually,

Offshare and domestic dividends are set at a fixed rate for 5 years after ssuance and are reset every 5 yaars thereafter
to the sum of the benchmark rate and the fed spread. The feed weead 5 equal 10 the spread between the initial
offshore and domestic dividend rate and the benchmark rate at the time of issuance. The fived spread remains unchanged
throughout the term of the Preference Shares.

{ii} Conditions to distribution of dividends

The Bank can pay offshore arad domestic dividends when it has distribuable after-tax profit after making up previous yeass'
losses, contnbuting to the statutory reserve and making general provisions, and the Bank's capital adequacy ratios mest
regulatory requirements. Preference shareholders of the Bank are senior to the ordinary shareholders in raspect of the right
to dividends. The order of payment of domestic drvidends 5 equal 1o affdhore dvidends. The Bank may ehect to cancel all
or part of offshore and domestic dividends and this shall not constitute a default for any purpose, but such cancefllation will
require a shareholder's resolution to be passed,

{iii) Dividend stopper and setting mechanism

For Cifshore and Domestsc Preference Shares, if the Bank cancels all or part of the dwvidends 1o the Preference Shares, the
Bank shall not make any dividend ditnbution 1o srdinary shareholders before the Bank pays the dividends to the prefersnce
shaneholders in full {or the current dividend poriod

Mon-cumulative divedend 1s a8 dvidend on Offshone and Domestic Preference Shares which does not curmulate upon omisson
of payment and the passed or emited divdend of one year & nol carried to the followang year. After receiving a drvidend
at the agreed dividend rate, preference shareholders af the Bank will not participate in the distnbution of residual profits
with ordenary shareholders.

The Bank shall distribute devidends for Offshore and Domestic Preference Shares in cash, based on the ligusdation preference
amaunt foe the lvsued and outstanding Offshare Prefesence Shares or total amount of ksued and outstanding Domestsc
Preference Shares during the cormesponding pessod (e, the product of the ssue poce of Preference Shares and the nembes
of the issued and outstanding Preference Shares)
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{iv) Order of distribution and liquidation method

The offshore preference shareholders and domestic preference shaseholders will rank equally for payment The preference
sharehofders will be subordinated 1o the deposttors, genesal creditoes and holders of convertible bonds, holders of
subordinated debts, holders of tier 2 capital bonds and holders of other tier 2 capétal instrements of the Bank but will be
senior to the ordinary shareholders of the Bank.

(v} Mandatory conversion trigger events

For OHshore Preferonce Shares, upon the occumence of any Mon-Viabildy Trigger Event. the Bank shall have the nght
1o irrevocably and compubionly convert all or part of the cutstanding Offshore Preference Shares into H shares, under
the cansen of the NFRA bat without the need for the consent of the offshore preference shareholders or the ordinary
sharcholders. If the Offshone Prefesence Shanes were convened mto H shares, they cannat be converted 1o Preference
Shares again undes any cireumitances

Far Domestic Prelerence Shares, upon the accummence of an Additional Tier 1 Capstal Trigger Event (Common Equaty Tier
1 Capatal Adequacy Ratio of the Bank Taling 1o 5. 125% of below), the Bank shall have the right without the need for the
consent of the domestic preference shareholders ta comvert all or part af the outstanding face value of Domestic Preflerence
Shares into A shares, i order 1o redtone the Common Bquity Teer 1 Capetal Adeguacy Ratio of the Bank 1o above 5.125%. If
Domestic Preference Shares were converted into A shares, they cannot be comerted 1o Preference Shares again under anmy
arcumstances Upon the ecourrence af a Ter 2 Capital Trgger Event, the Bank shall have the rght without the need for the
consent of the domestc preference shareholders to convert all the outstanding face walue of Domestic Preference Shares
wnito A shares. If Domestic Preference Shares were converted into A share, they cannot be converted to Preference Shares
again under amy crcumstances.

The mitiad mandatory comwersion prices are HEDS.73 per H share for Ofishore Preference Shares, RMB3 44 for Domestic
2015 Preference Shares and RMBS A3 for Domestic 2019 Preference Shases. In case of stock dividends destribartion of H or
A shares of the Bank or other crcumstances, the Bank will make cumulative adjustrment (o the compubiory comersion price
(LRI

(vi) Redemption conditions

Subject to obtaning the approval of the NFRA and satisfying the conditions of redemption, the Bank has the right to
redeem all or part of the Offshore Preference Shares at the first call date and any subsequent dividend payment date.
Redemption price of Offshore Proferance Sharas s equal to liguidatson preference price plus any declared bul unpaid
drvidend in current period, The fint redernption date of Offshore Prefesonce Shares is foie years after ssuance,

Uneber the premise af obtaining the approval of the NFRA and compliance with relevant requirements, the Bank has the
right to redeem Al o part of Domestic Prefesence Shares, after frve years since the date of isuancedthe date of clesing. The
mdemplion period of Domeste Prelarence Shares i3 from the start date of redemption to the date of full redemption or
comersion, Redemption pooe of Domestic Preference Shares ix equal to book value plus any declored but unpasd dividend
i the current porod,
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{c) Changes in preference shares outstanding

| dasaiary MO Blzwrmanl durng th par 11 Comamibes 24
kot In originad Aroure e oeigaral Angami I origimal

Frarcal erittarwesy Imdin Ty n INE |milien i) i M (hihgy ey 1]
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The camying amount of Preference Shares isswed by the Bank, net of related issuance fees, was RMB134,614 million as a1
31 December 2024 (31 December 2023 RMBE134,614 million],

{2) Perpatual bonds
fa) Perpetual bonds outstanding

Ieitisl kmsce I origind
Fruzdal istramenty Beioafity il [mlhen gy I INE Caevering
ritandiag ity alnsfiobon iy e i L] Preian) |mdlion) Matunty congition  [omewrtion
Doy
L0 Perpetual bond Wl Eraaty 1% tae Wh 6160 kb ] (] Merg L
[omats
FAEIET Perpetual boed
G 0| Eruty 404% B0 n e el fiera L] ]
FNEINIE| Perpedus bond
el WL Eaty 165% HDOLRe n 000 Eeln ] hers Nore i
NS Perpetual bond
e 1 hloaning Eqaty 15% MO 5 oo 5 fiors Mo L
Totat L

i} Oftshore USD Perpetual Bond was issued in specific denaomination of USD200,000 and intégral multiple of USD1,000 in excess
thereof at an ssue price of 100%.
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{b) Main clauses and basic information

With the approvals of relevant regulatory suthenties, the Bank iaued RMBT0.000 milken, RMBZ0,000 million, amd
RAB50,000 mellion of undated capitad bonds on 4 June 2021, 24 November 2021 and 10 fuly 2024 (hereinafter referred
1o & “2021 Domestic Perpetuad Band Seres 17, ° 2021 Domestic Pedpetual Bond Series 2° and ° 2024 Dornestic Perpatual
Bond Series 17 respecively, collectively Domestic Perpetual Bonds) in the National interbank Bond Market

The Bank issued USDE, 160 million of undmed capital bonds (hereinalter referred to as “Offshane Perpetual Bond”) on The
Stock EBxchange of Hong Kong Liméited on 24 September 2021,

The funds rased by the Bank from the bonds were used to supplement additronal ter 1 capital of the Bank m accondance
with The relevant laws and approvals by regulatory authosities,

With the approvals of relevant regulatory authorities, the Bank fully redeemed undated capnal bond issued in 2019 at July
2024,

(i} Interest

Each Domestic Perpetual Bond has a par value of RMB100, and the interest rate of the bonds for the first five years are
4.04% for 2021 Domestic Perpetual Bond Series 1, 3.65% for 2021 Domestic Perpetusl Bond Seres 2, and 2.35% for
2024 Domestic Perpetual Bond Seres 1, resetting every 5 years, The rates are determined by a benchmark rate phus a
fiwed spread. The mitial fiaed spreads are the difference betaeen the interest rate and the benchmark rate as detesmined
at the tme of issuvance. The fized spread will not be adjusted once determined during the duration period. The interest of
Domestic Pempetual Bonds shall be pasd annually

The interest rate of Offshore Perpetual Bond for the first five years is 3.20%, resetting every 5 years. The rate 15 determined
by a benchrmark rate plus a fised spread, and the fwed spread will remasin unchanged during the duration penod. The
dividend shall be paid semi-annually

{ii) Interest stopper and setting mechanism

The interest payment for both the Domestic Perpetual Bonds and Offshore Perpetual Bond is non-cumadative. The Bank
shall hawve the nght to cancel, in whole o in part, divinbutions on the interest payment and any such cancellation shall
not constitute an event of default. The Bank may, at its sole discretson, use the proceeds from the cancelled distributions
1o mest other obligations as they fall due. Howewer, the Bank shall not distibute profits 1o ordinary shareholders wntil
resumption of full mierest payment.

(i} Order of distribution and liquidation method

The claims in respect of Domestic Perpotual Bonds will be subordinated 1o clsms of depositors, general credstors, and
subordinated indebtedness that rank senior to Domestic Perpetual Bonds, and will rank in priority to all classes of shares
haold by shareholders ol the Bank. The claims m respect of Offshore Perpatual Bond will be subordinated to clarms of
depositors, general creditors, ter 2 capital bond holders and subordinated indebtedness that rank senior to the Offshore
Perpiiual Bond, and wall rank in priogity 1o all disses of shanes held by shareholders of the Bank. Domestic Perpotual
Bonds and Offshore Perpetual Bond will rank pari passu with the dams in respect of any other Additional Teer 1 Capital
irvstrumments of the Bank that rank pan passu with the peepotual bonds
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{iv] Write down conditions

For 2021 Domedtic Perpeiual Bond Senes 1, 2021 Domestic Perpetusl Bond Seros 2, and 2024 Domestic Pespetusl Band
Senes 1 upon the oocumence of a Non-Veabilty Trigger Event, the Bank has the nght to wiite down all or part of the
namina amount of the outstanding perpetual bonds withaut the noed Tor the condent of the bond halders

For Offshore Perpetual Bond, upon the occurrence of a Mon-Viability Trigger Event, the Bank has the right to write down all
of part of the perpetusl bands ssusd and eutitanding at that tirme up ta the tatsl nomanal value without the need for the
consent of the bond holders

{v} Redemption conditions

The duration of the Domestic Perpetual Bonds and Offshore Perpetual Bond is the same as the continuing operaton of
the Bank. Five years alter the issuance date of the Domestic Perpetual Bonds and Ofshore Perpetual Bond, the Bank shall
have the right to redeem them in whole of in part en each detnbution payment date Encuding the fifth destnbuton
paymiant date since the isuance), In the event that the perpetual bonds ate not dassified as additional tier 1 copstal due
1o ungredicted changes in regulations, the Bank sha® have the mght to redeem Domestic Perpetual Bonds and Offshore
Perpetual Bond fully instead of partly.

fe)  Changes in perpetual bonds outstanding

1 by T Waptmet urmg the yew 11 Deeesber 231
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The carmying amount of perpetual bond lsued by the Bank, net af related issuance fees, was HMB189,730 milion as at 31
December 2024 {31 Decernber 2023: RMB219.717 million]

{3) Interests attributable to equity instruments’ holders

31 Decamber 1 December

Hema 1004 P
L Total equity attributable to equily holders of the parent comparry 3,569 841 3756887
{1} Equity attribustable to ardnary shartholdars of the parend company 3645457 3,407,555

(2) Equity attributable to other equity instrument holders of the parent company 324,344 354331

1 Tatal equity attributable to non=controlling interests 17,415 19,700
(1) Eqinty attribunable 1o ordeary shareholders of non-contrelling miterests 16,553 18,701

{2} Equity atributable o other equity instrumend holders of non-gontrolling inferests a7 -
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40. RESERVES
{a) Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainky mchudes share premivm arsing from the issuance of ney shares a1 prces 0 excess of par value.

(k) Surplus reserves
(i) Statutory surplus reserve

The Bank i4 required to appropriste 10% of s profit for the year, & delermsned wnder the Accounting Standards Tor
Business Enterpnses and other relevant reguirements ("PRC GAAPT), purssant to the Company Law of the PRC and the
Articles ol the Bank 10 the slatutory suiplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of d4 regrtered capital.

Subject 1o the approval of the shareholders, the statutory surplus reserve may be used to offset accumulated losses of the
Bank, i any, and may also be converted ine capital of the Bank, provided that the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
after such capitalisation is not bess than 25% of the registered capital immediately before capstalizatson,

Pursuant 1o the resolution of the board of directors’ meeting held on 28 March 2025, the total appropnation 1o surplus
reserve of the Bank was RMB34.769 mllion (2023 RMB34,931 millionl, among which an appropriation of 10% of
the profit of the Bank for the year determined under the PRC GAAF to the statutory surplus resesce, in the amount of
hB34,67 1 million (2023 AMBIA.B63 milion), was approved and 4 tolal surphes reserve appropriated by overseas branches
was RMBSE million (2023: RMB112 millian).

(i) Discretionary surplus reserve

Alter makmg the appropriation to the statutory surplus resene, the Bank rmay akio appropoate its prafit for the year
dajermined under the PRC GAAP fo the discrétionary surplus resarve upon approval by the shamholders in a general
meeting. Subject to the approval of the shareholders, the discretonary surphe reserve may be used 1o offser accumulated
fosses of the Bank, if any, and may be converted info capital

(i) Other surplus reserves

The Bank's overseas entitses appropriate thedr profits to other surplus reserves of stalutody reserve in accordance with the
lewant laws and regud promudgated by the local regulatony bodies,

(¢} Genearal reserve

In accordance with the ~Administrative Measures for the Provision of Reserves of Financial Enterprises”™ (Cai Jin [2012] No.
20} issued by the MOF, the Bank malntains a general resence within equity, through the appropration of profit fee the year,
which should not be less than 1.5% of the year-end balance of its risk assets, 1o partially cover unidentified possible losses.

Thee Bank's subsidiaries appropeiate thes profits 1o the general reserve accordng (o the applicable local requlations,

Pursuant 1o the resclubion of the board of directors’ meeting held on 28 March 2025, the total appropnation to genaral
reserve of the Bank was RMB52 251 million (2023; RBES, 264 milkon). The general reserve balance of the Bank as at 31
December 2024 amounted 10 RMBSS6,800 millian, which reached 1.50% of the year-end balance of the Bank's rsk asets

{d} Investment revaluation reserve

The investiment revaluation reserve records the fair value changes and impairmant previion of financial investments
measured at PVTOCH
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{e) Foreign currency translation reserve

Thie foreign currency transkation resenve is used to record exchange differenices arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the subsidsaries and branches mcorporated outside Chinese mainland,

{f) Cash flow hedging reserve

The cash fiow hedging resarve compnses the effectve portion of the gams or losses an the hedging instrumants.

{g) Other reserves

Other reserves represent resenves other than the items lsted above, including other comprehensve income recognesed
under the equity method.

{h) Distributable profits

The Bank's dutributable profn is based on ns setained profits as determined wndar PRC GAAR and IFRSs, whichever i
lowwer, The amount that the Bank's subsidiaries can legally distribute is determined by referring 1o theie profits as reflected
in their fimancial stalements prepared in sccordance with the accounting regulations and principles promulgated by the
lecal regulatory bodies. These profits may differ from these dealt wath in these financial statements, whech are prepared in
sccordarce with [FRSS

41. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Other comprehensive income attributable to equity holders of the parent company in
the consolidated statement of financial position

Foreign

Investmant currancy

revaluation translation
FESEIVE resane Othars Tatal
1 lanuary 2023 2,343 (17.240) (B, E5E) (23,756)
Movement during the year 21,704 1,633 {3,659} 19678
31 Decernber 2023 and 1 lanuary 2024 24,047 {15.608) (12,517} 4.078)
Movement during the year 52,918 9516 (10,661} E1.773
11 Decernber 2024 76,965 (6,002) (23,178} 47,695
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{b) Other comprehensive income in the consclidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

2024 W23
Rems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
() Changes n fair value of equity instruments desgnated o a1 FYTOCI 4,088 1,748
Less: Income tax effect (319) (218}
3,769 1530
(i) Oher comprehensse income recognised under the equity method a3 44
{iil}  Crhers 4 (28}
Rerms that may be reclassified subsequently 1o profil o boss,
iy Changes in fair value of debt instruments measured at FYTOCI 715927 30,515
Less: Amsount transfermed to profit o loss from other comprehensve incoeme (2,490 (3,503}
Less: Incodme tax effect {18,923) {5,618)
54,514 21,104
(i) Credht lesses of debt instruments measuned at FVTOCH (a6a) og
Less: Income tax effect 100 o7
(265 205
(i) Cash flow hedging reserve:
Gain during the year (1,445) 126
Less: Incomie tax effect 13 (@b
1.332) 17
(v Other comprehensag income recognined under 1he eguty method (58} (37
{v) Foresgn currency translation reserve 8,744 1,823
(vl Crhaers {15.246) {5,145}
51,189 19,227

42. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 Decemnber 31 December

2024 023
Cach on hand 72,0659 66,609
Balances with cemtral banks ather than restricted deposits 393112 953,050

Deposits with banks and other financial institutkons with onginal maturity of three
months o led 402,017 331 464

Macements with banks and other financial institutions with onginal maturity of
thres months of less 125,554 272,302
Heverse repurchase agreements with ariginal maturity of three months or less 1,097,652 1,133,217
2,290, 404 2,755,732
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43. INTERESTS IN STRUCTURED ENTITIES

{a) Structured entities sponsarad by third party institutions in which the Group holds an
interest

The Group holds an imerest in some structured entities sponscred by third party institutions through investments in the
products issued by these structured entities. Such structured entitios mclede mvestment funds, asset management plans
and asset-backed secunities, and trust plans and the Group dees not consobdate these struciused entitees. The nature and
purpsse af these structured entities are 1o generate fees from manasging assets on behall of westors and are financed
through the issuance of investment products 10 iwestors

The lollcaving table sets out an analysis of the carrying emounis and maximum esposure of interests held by the Group in
the structured entities sponscred by third party institutions

31 Decomber 2024 31 Decernbor 2023
Carrylng Maximum Carrying Maximum
Amaunt EHPESUTE amount EXNpOSUrE
Irpestrmienit furds 36,587 36,587 a4 |41

Asset management plans and

assel-backed secunties 74,943 74,9423 85,277 B5,277
Trust plans 10,476 30,476 35,859 35859
142,006 142,006 158,557 158,557

Thit macimum |oss expasures in the above investment funds, assel management plans and adsol-backed securtios, and
trust plans are the carrying amounts which are measured at amortised cost, of the fair value of the investments held by the
Group a3 a1 the mporing date,

The following tables set out an analysis of the line items in the consckdated statement of fmancial position In which assets
wete recognived relating 16 the Group's inténests in trectured entities sponsamd by third party indtitutions:

31 December 2024

Financial Fimancial Financial
investments nvestments Investments
measured at measured at measured st

FWTPL FVTOC! amartised cost
Investrnent funds 36,450 137 -
Asset management plans and asset-backed securities 27.821 n.nr 15,705
Trust plans 7.143 10,419 3414
71,504 51.373 19,119

31 December 2023

Financial Fimancial Financial
investments investments investmants
measured at measured at measured at

FUTRL FWTOC  amortised cost
Irvosterent fiands 3840 - -
Aszset management plans and asset-backed securities 30,606 26,619 27,842
Trust plans 15,511 19.576 i
B4.538 d6,405 28,614
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{(b) Structured entities sponsored by the Graup in which the Group does not consalidate
but holds an interest

The types of unconsohdated structured entites spomnscred by the Group include non-poncpal-guaranteed wealth
management products and investment funds. The nature and purpose of these structured entities are to generate fees from
managing assets on behall of mvestors. These structured entithes are financed throwgh the ssuance af investment products
1o investors. Interest held by the Group incudes investments in the products sued by these unconsolidated structured
entities and fees charged for provideng management sendces, As at 31 December 2024 and 31 Decermber 2023, the canying
amaunts of the imvestments in the products issued by these struectured entities and fee recesvables being recognised were
nol ugnificant in the conswolidated financial staterments. Mansgement fee income eamed by the Geoup wos included in fee
and commission income of personal wealth management and private banking services and corporate wealth management
services Lot out in Nate 7.

A5 at 31 December 2024, the balance of the uncomsalidated non-principal-guaranteed wealth management products and
imvestrment funds, which are sponsored by the Group, were EMB2, 121,075 milkon (31 December 2023 RME1.857.05%6
million) and AMB2.111,149 milon (31 Decemnber 2023: RMB1, 756,215 millian),

In 2024, there were no financing Wansactons through placements and reverse repurchase agreements from the Group with
naneprincipal-guaranteed wealth management products sponsared by the Group, (2023 average expoture: RMB386 million)
The transactsons were conducted in the cedinary course of business under normal terms. and conditions and at market rates.

(¢} Consolidated structured entities

The comsolelated structured entities of the Growp are pamanly the cerain imvestrment funds, asset-backed securities and
assat management plans isswed of initiated and invested by the Group or purchased due to regulatory requivements related
1o wealth management business. The Group controls these entities because the Group has power over, & expoted 1o, or
has nghts to variable returns from its mwohement with these entities and has the abiity to use its power over these entities
1o affect the amount of the Group’s variable returms,

44, TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into transactions in the erdinary course of baniness by which it transfers recognsed financal mseis to
hird parties or special purpose enfites. In some cases, these transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of the
financsal assets concerned. In ather cases where the transferred assets do not qualify for derecognitian as the Group has
refained substantially all the risks and rewards of these assets, the Group continues to recognise the transferred assets in
the statement of financial position

Repurchase transactions and securities lending transactions

Tramsferred financial assets that do not quality for derecognition mainly include debt securities held by counterparties as
collaterad under repurchase agreements and debt secunties lent to counterparties under secunties lending agreements. The
counterparties are allowed 1o sell of repledge those secumities in the absence of default by the Group but has an obligation
1o return the securties at the maturity of the contract For securitles lent out, if the secusities increase or decrease in
value, the Group may n cerfain crcumstances require additional cash coflateral from counterparties or retem part of
the cash collateral to counterpartes. The Group has determined that it retains sobstantiafly all the risks and reswards of
these securities and therefore has not derecognised them. In addition, i1 recognises a financial liability for cash received as
collatera,
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Securitisation transactions

The Group transfers credit assets o struclured entities which issue assel-backed securities to nvestors. The Group may
acquire some asset-backed secunties at the subordnated tranche level and accordingly, moy retan parts of the mks and
rawards of the transferred credit assets: The Group would detesmine whether to derecognise the associaled credit assets by
evaluating the extent to which it retains the rsks and ninwards of the assets

For those in which the Group has neither transferred nos retained substantially all the ks and rewards of the tramsferred
credit assets, and retasned comtrol of the credit assets, the Group recognises the assets on the consolidated statement
of financial position to the extent of the Group's continuing invalvement and the rest is derecognised. The extent of the
Group's coninuing involkemsant 5 the extentl of the risks and rewards undertaken by the Group with value changes of the
transferred financial assets. As at 31 Decernber 2024, loams with an original carrying amount of AMBEZ? B57 mallion al
the time of transfer {31 December 2023: AMEBE2T 857 million) have been securitised by the Group under arrangements m
which the Group retained a contmuing involvement in such assets. The carrymg amount of assets that the Group confinues
1o recegaie on the coneldated staternent of financlal position was RMBZE.T23 millon a5 at 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023 RMBT3,786 milkon)

As-at 31 December 2004, the carrying amount of asset-backed securities held by the Group i securibsation transactions
that ware gualfied for derecognitien was AMEE40 million (31 December 2023; RMBTS millian), and s maximuem sposure
approzimated to the carrying amount.

With respect to the securitisation of financial assets that do not qualily for desecognition, the relevant financial assets are
not derecagnesed, and the consideraton recetved is recorded as a financiad hability. As a1 31 December 2024, transferred
credit assets that were not qualdied for derecogniticn of the Group amounted to RKE132 million at the time of transfer (31
Decemnber 2023 RMB132 million).

45. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

The Group's collaterals for labilities or contimgent labilitses include financial sacets such a5 securities and bills, which mainky
serve as collaterals for repurchase agreements, securities borrowing, denwatives, or local statutory requirements. As at
31 December 2024, the par value af the financial assets of the Group pledged as collateral amounted to approcmately
AMB2, 202, 44T million (31 December 2023: approwimalely RMB1 474 556 milkon),

46. SHARE APPRECIATION RIGHTS PLAN

The Bank's share apprecation rights plan was approved in 2006, which allows share appreciation rights to be granted to
eligible participants including directors, supervisors, senior management and other key personnel designated by the board
of derectors. The share appreciation eghts will be granted and exercised based on the price of the Bank's H shares and wall
be walicd for 10 years. As a1 the approval date of these financial statements, no share appreciation rights have been granted,

Anpual Report 2024 237

393/483



Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iIn RME millions, unbess otheranse stated)

47. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
{a) Capital commitmeants

At the end of 1he reporting penad, the Group had capital commitments as follows:
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31 December 31 December
2024 2023
Contracted but not provided fod 19,469 26,804

{b) Credit commitments

The Group has outstanding commitments to extend credil inchuding approved loans and undrawn credit card lemits,

The Group provides ketters of credit and financial guarantees to guarantee the performance of customers to third parties.

Bank acceptances comprise undertakings by the Group to pay bills of exchange drvwn on customers. The Group expects

most acceptances 1o be sattled simultaneously with the reimbursement from the cusiomers.

The contractual amounts of credit commitments by categany are set out below. The amounits doclosed In respect of loan
commitments and wndrawn credit card limits are under the assumption that the amounts will be fully advanced. The
amounts for bank acceptances, etters of credit and guarantess represent the maximum potential losses that would be

recognised at the end of the reporting period had the counterparties failed to perform as contracted.

11 December 31 December

2024 023

Bank acceptances 908,973 804,061

Guaraniees issued

—Fancing letters of guarantees 40,259 32,048

= Non-finanang letiers of guarantees 625,887 540,709

Sight letters of credn 51.318 53,090

Usance letters of credit 151,732 148,803
Loan commitments

=With an ceiginal maturity of under one year 43,586 3484

=With an osiginal maturity of ane year or over 415,557 443,749

Undrawn credst card limits 1,166,166 1,126,670

3403478 3,184,180

Credit nsk-weighted assets of credit commitments 1,180,347 1,158,695
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{c) Operating leases

The Group acts as a lessor principally through operating leases undertaken by its subsideary ICBC Leasing. Under irmevacable
operating lase contracts, the expected undiscounted minimum lease payments recevable by the Group in the fulue period
amounted to:

11 December 31 Docember

2024 2023

Within one year 16,846 18,228
Ower ane year but within two years 15,033 16,037
Ower two years but within three years 13,230 14878
Ower three years but within five years 22993 13,914
Ot oy yorars b 5ED 51,414
112,680 124,41

{d) Legal proceedings and arbitrations

The Group is invebved in lawsuns and arbstrations during its nermal course of operations, A+ a1 31 December 2024, there
were 8 number of legal procesdings and arbitrations outstanding against the Bank andior its subskdaries with a total
claimed amount of RMES,E55 milkan (31 Decornber 2023: RMEE, 659 million).

In the opimon of management, the Group has made adequate allowance for any probable losses based on the current facts
and circumstances, and the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits and arbitrations will net have any significant impact an the
fmancial position or operations. of the Growp,

(8) Redemption commitments of government bonds and securities undernwriting
commitments

As an underwriting agent of the MOF, the Bank underwrites certain PRC governmint bonds and sells the bonds to the
geneval public. The Bank s obliged to redeem these bonds at the discretion of the holders at any time peior to matunty. The
redevmption price for the bonds is based on the nominal value of the bonds plus any interest socrued up to the redempton
date. The MOF will not provide funding for the early redemption of these PRC government bonds on a back-1o0-back basis
biit & abliged to repay the principal and the respective interes! upon malurity. The redempteon obligations, which repreent
the nomenal value of government bonds undenavitten and sofd by the Group, but not yet matured as at 31 December 2024
were AMBS3.445 mellion (31 December 2023; RMBST, 256 milkon), Management expects that the redemption obligations of
these PRC government bonds by the Bank prior to matunty will not be material

As at Decernber 31, 2024, the Group's oulitanding bond underwiling commitments ameamted to RMBA00 millon
(Decembeer 31, 2023: nil)

(f) Designated funds and loans

31 Decembar 31 Decamber

2024 2023
Designated funds 4,586,796 3,857,252
Designated loans 4 586,664 3E57.046

The designated funds represent the funding that the trustors have instructod the Group 10 wie to make loans o therd
parties &5 designated by them. The credit risk remains with the trustors

The desgnated loans represent the loans granted to specific borrowers designated by the trustors en thewr behalf accondang
10 the entrst agreements signed by the Group and the trustors. The Group does not bear any sk,
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(g) Fiduciary activities

The Group provides oustody. trust and asset management sendces to thind parties. Revenue from such activitees is included
w “net fee and commisson meome” se1 out in Note 7. Thowe assets held mnoa fiduciary capacity are not included n the
Group’s consolidated statemant of financial position

48. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

in addition 1o the transactions detaded elsewhere in these consolidated fimancial staternents, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the reporting year:

{a) The MOF

The MOF 5 a ministry under the State Coundl of the PRC, pnmanly responsible foe, among others, state fiscal revenues,
expenses and taxation polices, A at 31 December 2024, the MOF deectly owned appeoximately 31.14% (31 December
2023 approwimately 31.14%) of the issued share capital of the Bank. The Group entered into bankmg transactions with
the MOF i s ordinary course of busness. Details of the major transactions are as follmea:

31 December 31 December

2034 2023

Balances a1 end of the year
The PRC government bonds and the specal government bond 1,325,998 2,365,572
2024 023

Transactions during the year
Interest income on the govemment bonds 64,747 53,525

Other related party transactions between the Group and enterprises under the control or joint contral of the MOF are
disclosed in Mote AB() “Transacthons with state-owned entities in the PRAC "

(b) Central Huijin Investment Ltd.

Central Hulpn Invesiment Lid, (“Hugin®} is a whollp-owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, and i accondance
with the authorisation of the S1ate Government, Hufjin makes equity investments in magor state-owned financial enterprises,
and shall, to the extent of its capital contribution, exercis the rights and perlorm the obligations as an mvestor on bohall
af the State Government in accordance with applicable Laws, 1o achieve the goal of preserving and enhancing the value of
state-cwned financial sxsets. Huijin does not conduct any other busnesses or commercal acivities nor intenvene in the day-
{o-day business operations of the financial entenprises in which it invests, Huijm was established on 16 December 2003 with
a total regrtered and paid-in capital of RMBSZE,209 million. As at 31 Decornber 2024, Huijin dircctly owned approximately
34.79% (31 December X023: approximately 34 T9%) of the tssued share capatal of the Bank.

As at 31 December 2024, bonds issued by Huljin (*the Huljin Bonds™) held by the Group were of an aggregate face value
of AMBSE BAT milkon (31 December 2023 RMBAD 427 million), with terms ranging from two to thirty years and coupon
rates ranging from 1.90% 10 4.98%. The Huljm Bonds are government-backed bonds, short-term bills and medium-term
naotes, The Group's subscription of the Huijin Bonds was conducted in the ordinary course of baminess, in compliance with
selevant rogulatory and the corporate governance requirements of the Group
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The Group enterad inte banking transactions with Huijin in the ordmary course of business under normal commarcial tems
and the fransactions were priced based on market rates. Detals of the major transactions are as folows:

31 Decamber 31 Decamber
2024 2023

Balances at end of the year
Diebt securities purchasad 53,573 41,036
Loans and advances to customers 68,132 12,009
Due 1o cusiomerns 35,642 19,304
2024 2023

Transactions dusing the year:
Interest income an debt securities purchased 13717 1,397
Interest income an loans and advances to cusiomens 2,074 421
Interest expense on amounis due 10 customers 381 o

Humpn holds equity interests in certain other banks and financial institutions under the direction of the State Governmaent.
Thie Group entered mto transactions with these banks and financial matitvteons in the ordinary course of business unders
nosmal commarcial terms and the fransactions ‘wese priced based on market rates, Managemeni considers that these banks
and fmancial matitutbons are competitors of the Group, Details of magor ransactions conducted with these banks and
financial institutions are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2024 2023
Balances at end of the year:
Debt secuntios purchased 1,153,794 821,752
Due from banks and other financial instituticns 273,219 212,218
Rewerse repurchase agreemaents B4, 7R3 79,687
Loans and advances o customers 2,544 3,240
Derivatrve financial assets 6206 8,058
Due 1o banks and ather financial instnutions 396,947 336,930
Repurchase agreaments 3400 3,400
Denvative financial kabiirties n4s 7,583
Due 1o customerns 12,947 10,420
Credit commitmants 7914 7,026
2024 1023
Transactions dusing the year:
Interet incorme on debil securities purchaiod 27,655 27,819
Interest income on amounts due from banks and other financial institutions 2649 1,554
Interest income an reverse repurchase agreements 15 87
Interest income an loams and advances to customens T4 10
Interest expense on amounis due 1o banks and other financial institutsons 5,004 2,539
Interest expense on repurchase agreemenis 4 a
Interest expense on amounis due to customers 118 123
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{¢) Mational Council for Social Security Fund of the People’s Republic of China
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Mational Counal for Social Sacurity Fund (the "55F7) s a public institution managed by the BMOF. it is the managemeant and
operating organssation of the national social secunty fund. A3 g1 31 Decernber 2024, the 55F held approomately 5.31%
{31 December 2023 approximately 5 38%) of the Bank's issued share capital The Group entered into banking transactions
waith the 55F in the ordenary course of business under normal commercial terms and the transactons were priced based on

market rates. Details of the major transactions are as follows;

31 Decemnbor 31 Decembar
2034 023
Balances a1 end of the year;

Dupe to customens 75,360 64,000
2024 2023

Transactions during the year
Enforeil oxpense on amoants due 1o customors 2.560 2,306

{d) Subsidiaries
11 Decembor 31 Decembaor
024 2023
Balances at end of the year:

Financial investments 39,768 41,126
D from banks and other financial mestitutiens 366,583 330,455
Raverse repurchase agreements 7.398 12,002
Loans and advances 10 customers 90,772 108,761
Derivative fmancial assets 5.8M 4,003
D to banks and ather fimanchal institutions 487,000 171,189
Repurchase agreements 2,924 1,804
Darivative financial liabslities 9,303 B.EXT
Credil commitments 26,354 42,500
2034 2023

Trarsactions dunng the yoar:
Interest income on fnancial imvestments 2,054 2,048
Interest income on amounts due from banks and other financial institutions 2,685 3,054
Interest income on revesse repurchase agresments 5 12
Interest income on loans and advances 1o customars 3.746 Jon
Interest experse on amomends due 1o Banks and other financial instiutions 6,171 3,737
Enterest expense on repurchase agresments 1 &0
For and commijsion inceme 1,788 4611

Thie magor balances and transactions with subsidiaries have been elimsnated i the consolidated financial staternents
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i1 December 31 December
2024 2023
Balances at end of the year:
Debt securities purchased - 11,279
Due from banks and other financial institutions s 6,066
Reverse repurchase agreements 1,837 3,264
Loans and advances to customears 4 Ead 4278
Dervateve flinancial assets 1,825 2436
Due to banks and other financial insttutions 2,554 4,120
Due to cusiomers 2,968 1,089
Dervatrve financial linbilnes 1,587 22T
Credit commitments 8,293 4,293
2024 2023
Transactions dusing the year:

Interest income an debt securities purchased 133 274

Interest incormi an amounts due from banks and
other financial institutions 12 S0
Interest income on reverse repurchase agresments - 1
Interest income an loans and advances to cusiomers 237 174

Interest mpense on amounts due 1o banks and

other financial institutions a7 d
Interest expense on amounis due 1o customers Frs 46

Transactions between the Group and the aforementioned parties were conducted under noemal commercial terms and

condstions and priced based on market rates

{f} Joint ventures and affiliates

11 December 31 December
2024 20213

Balances at end of the year
Loans and advances to customers 27 249
Due 1o banks and other financial instiutions Ba3 ]
Due to customerns 139 3z
2024 2013

Transactions dusing the year:
frrerest income on loans and advances 1o cuslomens 7 17

Interest expense on amounis due 10 banks and other financial Institutsons

Interest expense on amounis due 1o customars 3 L]

Tramsactions between the Group and the alorementioned parties were conducted in the ordinary cowse of business under
nasmal terms and conditions and priced based on market rates.
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(g} Key management personnel

The key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility to plan, direct and control the
actnters af the Group, directly or indirectly, including members of the board of directors and the board of sugennsors, and
axecutive otficers.

The aggregate compensation of key management personnel is as Tollows:

024 023
In RMB'00D In RME‘OBO
Safaries and bensafits 12,972 17,152

The above remunaration before tax payable 1o key management personnel for 2023 represents the total amount of their
annual remunerations, which mcludes the amount disclosed in the 2023 annual report,

The total compansation packages for the Chairman of the Board of Directors, President, Executive Directors, and other
Semor Managemen! members have nod been finalsed in accordance with the regulations of the PRC relevant authorities
The total remuneration not yel accrued is not expecied to have a significant impact on the Group's 2024 consoldated
frmancial statements, The total compensation packages will be further disclosed when determaned by the refevant
authorities,

Related parties of the Group include key management personnel of the Group and thew dose relatives, as well as
companies controlled, jgently controlled o significantly influenced by key management personngl ar their clode mlatives

In 2024, there were no matenial ransacthons and balances with key management personnel indivdually o in the aggregate
{2023; Immateral), The Group entered into banking transactions with key management personnel i the ardinary counse of
barsiness.

The aggregate balance ol boans and credit card overdralts 1o the persons whao are comtidered a8 related parties according 1o
the refevant rules of Shanghas Stock Exchange was RMB0.23 millson as at 31 December 2024 (31 Decernber 2023 RMBD.21
millign],

The Bank's aggregate balance of loans and credit card owerdrafts to the persons who are considered as refated parties
according 1o the relevant rules af the NFRA was RMEBE113.31 milbon as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023
RABG. 24 million),

The vansactons between the Group and the alorermentoned parties were conducted in the ordenary course of basiness
under normal terms and conditions and priced based on market rates.
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(h) Annuity fund

Apart frem the obligations for defined contributions to the annuity fund established by the Bank, annuity fund held A
shares of the Bank with market value o RMB42.43 million as a1 31 December 1024 (31 December 2023: RMB38.14
million), and bonds issued by the Bank of AMBENS. 16 million as at 31 December 2024 (31 Decernber 2023: RMB292.72
rmillin),

{i} Transactions with state-owned entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic emvironmaent predominated by enterprises direcily or indirecily owned andior eontiolled
by the Govermment through its authorities, affiliates or other organsations {coBectively the “state-owned entities”™ ). During
the reporting year, the Group entered inlo extenive banking tramsactions with these state-owned entites including, bt
not Emited to, lending and depasit taking, 1aking and placing of interbank balances, entrusted lending and the provision of
intermediary senaces, the sale, purchase, undenwriting and redemption of bonds msued by other state-owned entities, and
the sale, purchase, and leasing of properties and ather assets

The tramsactions with state-owned entities are activits conductad in the ondinay course of business under normal terms
and conditicns and priced based on market rates, and the dealings of the Group have not been significantly or unduly
affectod by the fact that the Group and those state-owned ontithes are ultimately controlled or owned by the Governmaent,
The Group has ako established pricing policies for products and services and such pricing policies do not depend on
whether or not the customers are state-cwned entites

(i} Proportion of major related party transactions

The magar balances and transactions with subiidianes hive been eliminated in the consolidatid nancal statemants, When
caleulating the progartion of related party transactions, transactions with the subsidiarees are excluded.

31 December 2024 31 Decomber 2023

Balance Parcentage Balance Percentage
Financial insestments 4,539,365 32.07% 3,239,639 27.30%
Due from banks and other finandal institutions 273,941 22.46% HB.284 19.55%
Reverse mopurchise agreemants 86,600 T.16% B2.951 6.78%
Loans and adwances to customers 7o 7ed4 0.27% 19,776 0.0B%
Dervative financlal awets 8,031 161% 10,494 13.93%
Due to banks and other fmancial instiutions 400,144 871% 341,658 10.14%
Repurchase agreaments 3.400 0.22% 3,400 0.33%
Derivate financial Nabikties 33,006 16.69% 9.E53 12.93%
Due to customers 127.056 0.36% 94915 0.28%
Credit commitments 16,217 0.48% 11,319 0.36%

2024 2023

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Interest incorme 949,230 6.95% B85, 3949 6.0B%
Interest expense B.503 1.08% 513 0.68%
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49, SEGMENT INFORMATION
{a) Operating segmeants

The Group @ organised into different opevating segments, namely corporate banking, personal banking and treasury
operations, based on internal organisation structure, management requirements and intemal reporting system

Corporate banking

The corporate banking segment covers the provigon of financial products and seraoes 1o coporations, government
agencies and financial nstitutions. The products and services include corporate loans, trade fnancing, deposit-taking
activitees, corporate woalth management wervices, curlady sctivities and various types of cedparate intesmediory services,

Personal banking

The persanal banking segment covers the provision of financial products and services o mdividua! customens. The products
and services include personal loans, deposit-taking acteities, card business, personal wealth management services and
various types of personal intermedeary services

Treasury operations

The treasury operations segment covers the Grouwp's treasury operations which indude money market transactions,
svestrment secutities, foreign exchange transactions and the holdng of dervative podinons for S own accounls of on
behall of customers

Others

This segment covers the Group’s assets, habilities; income and espenses that are not directly attributable or cannot be
allecated 1o a segment on a reasonable basis

MManasgerment monitors the operating redults of the Grean's operaling segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment informatson is prepared in conformity with the
accountmg policied adopted lar preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Group.

Transactions between segments maink represent the provision of funding to and from individual segments, The intemal
wransfer pricing af these transactions B determined with reference to the market rates and have been reflected in the
performance of each segment. Net interest income and expense ansing on internal fund transfer are referred to as “internal
nat interedt incame of sapense” MNel interest ncome and expense relating to thied parties are referred to as "external net
interest moome of expense”

Segment revenues, expenses, results, assets and liabllities include Rer directly attributable to a segment a5 well a3 these
that can be allocated on a reasonable bass. The basis for allocation is manly based on occupation of o contribution to
resources. Income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not dlocaled to aperating segrmenis.
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034
Corporate Ferional Treasury

banking banking operations Othan Total

Eatisrnal rat e intome #/NT 480 761 109 = 37,405

Internal nel nterest lEepersalingome [43, 2800 243,001 [t99.721) - -

et feer and commasion mcome B6,600 41,715 1,070 - 109,397

Oaher income, net &) 7,850 513 16,927 364 k]

(perating ncome 382 309 ELRE: BRETS EL 185126

Dpeetating eapenies 128,394 |FERE (15,230 4,053 [242,135)

Impairment (lossesgains on asets fi} 139,043 7,536 15312 (L5718 (126 663

Opnbngpott 244850 9,710 a7 (1564 e

Share of resulls of associates and joint verdumes = - - 4518 4519

Profit before toation 244,857 Sg.mo 15,170 1555 A0 83X

Ineama lax sapense [54,B21)

Peafit for the year 366,545
Other sogrment infoemation

Depreciation and amortisaton 10,902 12,730 1,581 m: 26,145

Capral gxpendilure 0,102 14473 5,534 n: 50,32

31 Decersber 1024
Corporate Persanal Treasury

bankang banking operationy Othen Tota

Segment sty 19,463,926 9,029,477 0,083,673 154,523 48,731,699

Including: Isvestmients in ssociates and fnt ventures - - - 13357 BT

Property and equipimiant HecH-4] 140,572 30,283 1313 EFLE

Oithaet nan-gusrent sssetd (i) 3EH10 20,360 6,161 FiRkr BE 303

Unadocated assets 0,047

Total asuaty 4B 821,746

Segrment kabdilies 16ANE 18T 19,534, T80 B84 636 158 693 44,198,332

Unalocated Rabsines 35,158

Total kabiktey a4 B34 450
(Orher segment infeemation:

Credit commitmesnts 1,236 406 1,165,072 = = 3,403 478

fil  Inchudes net trading income, net gairs on financial nvestments snd other net operating expees.
(i) Inchudes credit mmpainment losses and impasment losses on other assets.
(i} Inchudes intangible asiers, goodwall, lang-term defered expénses, nght-of-me asets and other non-curent assets
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23
Corparate Personal Traasury

barking banking operationt Gthers Tatal

Exbernal net imerest intome 301 507 £ 285 B0EN - 655,013
Inbeenal mat mieedl incomes peperis) 137 M {211,408 - -
Met {ee and commssEon income 11556 46,060 141 - 119,357
Other incormeexpense), et (| 7619 (2363 1,464 5,268 31,088
Ciperating ingome 351914 317,556 101,450 5,268 806450
Cparatry o (98,158 (120,750 (5581] 3913 (23,698
imparment lnsseaigains on assets 5 (36811 (46 g (& 374) 1,014 {150,816
l:h'rﬂ.rl;piﬂ 18 Qa6 150,474 ELALH L350 416,984
Share of teuses of sisnciates and pant verunes = ~ = s.022 S8
Profit before tazation 186,545 150474 T1.165 7.3 41 5ib
Intome tax egerae (Ba 850
Profn for the year 5,116

{ther segment infeemation:

Depriciation and ametaslion 11,08 13,138 1En 108 27009

Capilal expenditue 17,386 21,01 445 173 43033

11 December 1073
Corparate Personal Treasuary

barking bariking operatinns Hhers Tatal

Sogement avets 17,203,589 B 583035 1338557 177,163 44 557 410

Inchuding: Imestments in assaciates and joint ventues | = - = 64778 64,778

Peopesty and equipmant 108,123 137,558 man 15,280 98 878

Other non-gument et (i | 47,654 18,808 3487 8549 76.43¢

Unaliocated assets 104,669
Total avets K

Seqment Habdtes 16,569,759 17,454 497 6,216,481 162A47E 40,553,239

Unaliccated Rabiities 67,252

Total abdties s

Cnher sagment information:
Credit commitments 108577 1135803 - - 3184180

i} Includes net trading income, net gains on financial ivestments and other net cperating income and expenses
iy Includes credit impairment kosses and mpairment losses on other assets,
{iii} Inchdes mtangibie assets, goodwill, long-term deferred expenses, nght-of-use asets and other non-cunrent assets
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(b) Geographical infarmation

The Group operates principally in Chinese mainland, and also has branches or subsidianes operating outside Chinese
miaintand. The ditntution of the geographscal areas i a3 follows,

Chinese mainfand (Head Office and domestic branches)

Head Office (*HO"k the HO business divisions (ncluding institutions directly mamaged by the HO and its offices);
Yangize River Delta: including Shanghail, Jangsy, Zhejang and Nngbao,

Pearl River Delta: including Guangdong, Shenzhen, Fujian and Xiamen;

Bohai Rim: including Bedjing, Tianjin, Hebes, Shandong and Qingdao;

Central Ching: including Shanx, Henan, Hubs, Hunan, Anhui, kanga and Hainarm,

Western China: including Chongging, Sachuan, Guizhow, Yunnan, Guangei, Shaanx, Gansu, Cinghal, Ningxia,

Minjrang, innér Mangola and Tibet, and
Maorthaastern China: intluding Liaoning, Heilongjiang, Nin and Dalian.
Owerseas and others

Branches lecated outside Chineie mainland, domestic and owerseds subsidiarss, and Imeeitmints @ aisoaates and jgent
VERLLIES.

i
[ maerd ] e dames bt
el Fegue P (=] Lt Mt Werfares Dyl

o el Bl ] {ina L] Dmi  sivhen Pt Tatal

el ! e T el nm A #in & Rl 6173 plac) it ] - B15
1 T P BT B e 1S 11358 14 M7 & A = =
et b o oprre i E 1] e AL Wi im L] " 1 13 ERH
e ruzmeiperse!, e d L] . L] L = L] & L) 158 A
Qpsuring oo bl g TN (0 ] ke 1L B ] a3 M
Dpstitr] spiee ] [ e W fBe  @mBY N 3] R o
| imparmed i) on et £k ] [ ] piL A 1] i LI - D
Dpweztng o i B il 6 £n 1 i1} e (TR ]
T o i o a0 I et s d = = r o 2 = A5l r L
Pt b (e FrE ] L] Liing ¢ 1] BN TED il ] & nwm
Fire e nine B
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i} Includes net trading income, net gasns on financial investments and other net operating expenses.
(b Includes credit impaitment kbises and impairment losues on olher sie1s,
tiil} Includes ntangible asets, goodwill, long-term deforred expenses. nght-of-use assats and other non-cunment assets.
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(i} Inchudes net trading income, net gains on financal mvestments and other net operating income and expenses.
(i) Inchudes credit impairment keises and impairmen? keies on other assets
(i Includes intangible assets, goodwil, long-term deferred expenses, nght-ofase assets and other non-curent assets.

50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The board of directoes (the "Board™) has the ultimate responsibilty for risk management and owversees the Group's risk
managrment systern through the Rsk Management Committee and the Audst Committes of the Board,

The President supervises risk managemeni and reporis directly to the Board He chairs twio management committess
inchiding the Risk Managemenl Committee and the Asset and Liabdity Management Commates, which et the mk
management strategees and appetite, evaluate and formulate rsk management policies and procedures, and make
recommendations through the President 1o the Risk Management Committee of the Boasd, The Chiel Rk Officer assists
the President to supenmse the Bank’s risk management and make decisions.

The Group has clearly delmed the rofes of each departrent in monttonng fmancial fsks withan the Group The Creda
Management Department monitors credit risk, the Rsk Management Depariment together with the Asset and Liability
Management Departrment monstor market and bguidity mks, and the Internal Coniral and Compliance Depariment
monitors operational risk. The Risk Management Department is primarily responsible for establishing and coordinating a
comprehensive risk management framesweork, preparing comsobdated reports on eredit sk, market risk and operational nsk
and reporting directly to the Chief Risk Officer,

The Barnk maintasns a dualreporting rsk management structure at the branch level Under this structure, the mk

management departmant of the branches report to both the Group Rk Management Department and the management o
the branches,
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{a] Credit risk
Definition and scope

Credit risk 5 the risk of loss areng from a borrower or counterpany's fallure to perform its obligations. Operational fadures
which result in unauthorsed or inappropriste guaraniees, financlal commitments o investments by the Group may alio
give e to credit msk. The Group's credit risk & mainly atbributable to its credit assets, due from banks and other financial
istitutrons and hinanceal investments.

The Group & also exposed 1o credit msk in other areas. The credit nsk arsng from dervatve fimancial instruments o mited
1o derivative financial asels recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position. In addition, the Group provides
guarantees for customers and may therefore be required to make payments on their behalf. These payments would be
recovered from customers in accordance wath the terms of the agreement. Therefore, the Group assumes a credit risk
similar to that arsing from loans and applies the same risk control procedures and polcies to reduce nsks.

Credit risk assessment method
Staging of financial instruments

The Group dassfies: financal instruments into three stages and makes provisions for expecied credit loss accordingly,
depending on whether credit risk on that financal instrument has increased significantly since inidial recognition and
whather the assats have been oredit-impaired. Refer fo Note 4(10} Impairment of financial assets for the definition of the
three sages

Classification of credit risk exposures

Thie Group dassifies cedit risk exposures of expected credit Iosses with suffsgent information by conssderng factors such
as internal ratings-based (“IHB") segmentation, praduct types, custemes typess, industry risk characteristics, and responie 1o
macro-eoenamic changes,

Significant increase in credit risk

The assessment of significant increase in credit risk since mitial recognition s perfosmed at least on a guarierly basis for
fimancial instruments beld by the Group, The Group takes eie comsideration all ressonable and supportable infesmation
fincludeng forwasd-looking information) that reflects significant change in credit risk for the purposes of staging of financial
instruments. The main condiderations are regulitesy and operating enviconment, internal and edternal eredit sk rating,
debi-senacing capacity, operatng capabilities, contractual terms, and repayment behaviour and willingness. The Group
compares the risk of default of a single fmancial imtument or & portlolio of financial matruments with similar credit ik
charactenstics as at the end of the reparting period and its nisk of default at the date of initial recognition to determine
changes in the mk of defladt over the expected lifetime af a financial instrument or a portfolio of fmanclal instuments
In determining whether credit risk of a Tnandial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
considers factor indicating whether the probabdity of default has risen above threshold, the background for financing
have been authenticated, the financial instrument has been past due for more than 30 days, the loan has been modified in
payrmant term of principal o0 interest, any significant negatne msue has beon ansen and any other indicators af increase in
risk have been noticed.
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Definition of default

The Group defmes a corparate borrawer a3 in default when it meets one or more of the Tollowing criteria:
iy The principal or interest of any credit business is past due more than 50 days {not indhsive) to the Group;

fiy  The corporate bomower s unliely to pay its credit obligations to the Growp in full, wathout recourse by the Group to
actan such as hquidation against collateral; or

(i) The corporate barrewer has the matters refer toin (1) or (=) above in other finanaal institutions.

The Group dedines a retad business borrower as i dedaull when any single oredit asset of a borrower meets one o more of
the following criteria:

fiy  The principal o interest of loan is past due more than 90 days (nol inchusivel;
{iy  Wiite-nifs of loan; or

(i) The retad busness bofrower is unbkely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Groasp 1o actions such as liqudation agamst collateval

Impairment assessment
A financial asset is generally considered to be oredit-impasred i
= it has been overdue for moane than 90 days (not inclusive),

= in light of economic, legal or other taclors, the Group has made concessions 10 a bosrower in financial difficulties,
which would atherwise have been impossible under normal creumstances,

= it is probable that the borrowss will be insalvent o carry out other financeal restructunngs.
—  due to senous financial difficulties, the financial asset cannot continue to be traded in an active masrket; and

= there are other objectve evidences that indicate the financlal asset i impaired,

Parameters, assumptions and estimation technigues

Lows allowance for a financial instrument is measuned at an amount equal to 12-month ECL o lifetime ECL depending on
whether a ssgnificant increase in credit risk on that financial instrument has ocowred since initial recognition and whether
an asut i considerod to be credit-mpaited. ECL for loam and sdvances to customars, other than thow corparate lsans
and advance to customers which are credit-impaired, s measured using the risk parametne modelling method. The key
parametirs include Probability of Dafault (*PD"), Loss Given Dafault {"LGD"), and Expodure a1 Default (“EAD"), considering
the time value of rmoney

PO is the postibility that a custemer will default on its obiigation within a certain poriod of tme in light of forward-looking
information. The Group's PD Is adjusted based on the results of the IRB approach under the New Basel Capital Acoord,
takmg the forward-locking infesmation inte sceount and deducting the prudental adjustment to reflect the debtor's paint-
in-time PD under the current Macro-economic environmaent.

LGD i the magnitude of the likely loss if these is o defoult m light of forward-loaking mformation. LGD depends on the
type of counterparty, the method and prionty of the recourse, and the type of collatesal, taking the forward-lookng
adjustmaents in1e sccount.

EAD refars o the total amount of on- and off-balance sheet exposures in the event of default and is determined based on
the histarical repayment recards.

The assumpticns undestying the ECL calculation, such as how the PDs and LGDs of ditferent matwity peofiles change are
monitored and reviewed on 8 quartesly basis by the Group.
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The calculation of impairment kess on credit-impaired corporate loans and advance to customers applies the decounted
cash flow method. If there is objectve evidence that an impasment loss on a loan or advance has incurred, the ameount of
the loss 5 measured as the difference between the aset’s gross carmying amount and the presem value of estimated future
cash {lows discounted at the asset's effective interest rate. The allowance for mmpairment loss is deducted in the camying
amaount, The empairment boss is recognised in the consobdated staterment of prafit of loss In determining allowances, the
fallowing factors are considered

= fthe sustamabildy of the borrower's busmess plan;

—  the borrower's ability to improve performance when a financial difficulty arises;

—  the estimated recoverabde cash flows from projects and liquidation;

= the availabiity of other fmancial support and the realisable value of collatoral; and
=  the timing of the expected cash flows

It may not be possible 1o identify a single, or discrete events that result in the impairment, but it may be posshble to
mdentify impairment through the combined effect of several eventy The impairment losses are evaluated at the end of each
reparting period unless thera ase other unforesean circumstances.

Forward-fooking information contained in ECL

The assessment of wgmificant mcrease in credit rsk and the calculation af ECL inconporate forward-looking information. The
Group has perforrmied historical data analysis and identified Gross Domestic Product ("GDP"), Consumer Price Indix (7 CPR7),
Broad Money Supply ("M27), Consumer Confidence Index and other macro-economic indecators as impacting the ECL for
eirch portfofio, The smpact of theie econome variables on the PO and LGD has been determined by perfarmang statistical
regression analysis to undarstand the correlations among the histoecal changes of the economic variables, FD and LGD. The
impact of these economse variables en the PD and LGD varies according to different types of busnéss. Forecaits ol these
economic variables are carried out at beast guarterly by the Group to provide the best estemate view of the economy over
the next year.

When calculabng the wesghted average ECL proviion, the Group determines the opbmistic, neutral and pesssmistic
scenariod and their weightlings through & combination of macro-stalntical analyss and expert udgemnent. The aptimetic and
pessimishic scenarios are of comparable weightings, of which, the weighting of neutral scenaro is shghtly higher than that
of the ather two scenarsos. The weightings of the scenarios are consstent with those as at 31 December 2023,

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has taken into account different macro-economic scenanos, combmed with the impact
af factors such as elfect of poor period base data on economic devielopment trends, and made forsward-looking ferecasts
of macro-sconomsc indicators, Of which, the year-creyoar GDP growth raie wed to estmate ECL under neutral sconario s
about 5%, and forecasts under optimistic scenario and pessimistic scenanio are formed by floating up and down a certain
fovel rospectively on the basis of the forecast under newtral scenario

The Group has carned oul sensitivity analysis of macro-economic mdicalon used in fonward-looking measurement  As at 31
Docember 2024, when the key economec indicatont in the neutral seenano moved up o down by 10%, the ECL changad by
na more than no moe than 5% (31 Decemiser 2023 mo more than 5%)

Financial assets contract modification

The Group maght modsly the terms of kean with a custemer based on eommarcial renegotiations, or when the custamer i
in financial difficufty, with a veew to maximising the recovery of loan,

Such moditications inchede restructunng the koan to provide extended payment term arrangemnents, payment hobdays or
payment forgiveness. Restructurng policies and practices are based on ndecators or criteria which, in the judgement of
management, indicote that payment will most likely continue, and these palicies and peactices are reviswed regularly. Such
restructures are especially common for medium-term and long-term loans.

During the year, in accordance with the requirements of ihe [ntiative on Bateh Adjustment of the Intoress Rate of
QOutstanding Howsing Loans issued by the Market Interest Rate Prong Setf-Regulatory Mechanism guided by the People's
Bank of China, the Group imgdernonted batch adjustment of the mbterest rate of eligible cutstanding residental mortgages
{inchuding those for the first, second and above houses). For the accounting polsces of the Group on relevant adjusiments,
pease refer o Note 4 (11) Modfication of Financial Asset Contracts in the financial report

The following table includes carrying amount of rescheduled lnans and advance to customers

31 Decembear 31 Decembaer

2024 2023
Rescheduled loans and advances 1o cusioeness 139,086 82,723
Inclueding: Impasred loans and advances to customers 41,81 15,607
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depend on the assessment of credit risk of the counterparty. Guedelines are in
place specifying the types of coflateral and valuation parameters which can be accepted

Reverse repanchase business is mainky collateralised by bills and marketabde secunties. As part of certain roverse repurchase
agreaments, the Group has roceived collateral that it w allowed 1o ssll o repledge i the absence of default by thew
TS

Comporate loans and discounted bils are mainky collatesalised by properties or other assets. As at 31 December 2024, the
Qrods carrying amount of corporate loans and discounted bélls amounted to AMB19,414,508 milon (31 December 2073;
AMB17,432 861 million), of which credit exposure covored by collateral amounted to RME4,779 598 million (31 December
2023:RMES, 344 849 million]

Persanal loans are mainty collmeralised by residentiad properties. As at 31 December 2024, the gross carrpng amount of
perional loam amounted to AMBE, 957,720 millon (31 December 2023: AMBR.653,621 millon), af which credit exposure
cereiried by colloterad amounbed o RMB7,590,566 millon (31 Decembser 2023: RMBT, 719,465 mablian),

The Group prefers more hgusd collateral with relatmely stable market value and does not accept collateral that s Wliguid,
with difficulties » registration or high flucteations in market value. The value of collateral should be appraised and
confumed by the Group or valuation agences engaged by the Group. The value of collateral should adequately cover
the outstanding balance of loans. The Group takes into consideration the types of collateral, state of condition, Eguidity,
prace volatility and realsation cost to determine the loan-to-value ratio of collateral All collateral has to be registered in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The credit officers inspect the collateral and assess the changes in the
value of cofateral regularly,

The Group monitors the market value of the collateral and when needed, require additional collateral according to
agreements, The Group disposes of repossessed assets in an orderly manner

fi} Maximum exposure fo credit risk without taking into account of any collateral and other
credit emhancements

As at the end of the reparting penod, the makimum credit nsk exposure of the Group without taking i account any
coflateral and other credit enhancameants 5 w81 out below:

31 December 31 December

2024 20x3
Balancos wath contral banks 3750847 3,975,504
Due from banks and other financeal institutions 1. 219,876 1,016,717
Dervative financial assets 122,361 75,330
Revere repurchase agreemsants 1,210,217 1,224,257
Loans and advances to customers 27,613 7EY 25 386,933
Financial investments
Financial investmaents measured at FVTPL 770,192 578,595
Financial investments measured at P/TOCH 3,205,926 2. 148,073
Financial investments measured at amartised cost 5.851, 985 8,806,849
Othirs 131,680 107,719
47,476,860 43,420,076
Credit commitments 3403478 3,184,180
Maximum credit rak exposune 50,880,338 6,604,256

{ii} Risk concentrations

Credit risk s often greater when counterpartses are concentrated in one single industry or geogeaphic location o2
have comparable economic features. In addition, different geographic areas and industrial seclors have ther unigue
characteristics in termis of economic devebopment, and could present a different credit risk.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iIn BARER millions, unbess othersise stated)

{1} Loans and advances to customers

By geographical distribution

The compasition of the Group's gross loans and advances fo customers [excludng accrued interest) by geographical

distribution is as follows:

31 Dacember 2024 31 December 2023
Amount Percentage Amount Porcentage

Head Difice E74,284 308% 754,746 2.89%
Yangtre River Delta B, 182,636 21.78% 5,616,187 21.53%
Pearl River Dalta 4,348,121 15.33% 4,055,692 15.54%
Bohai Rim 4,677,575 16.49% 4,285,481 16.44%
Central China A416,409 1557% 4,064,415 15.58%
Waestern China 5,233,652 18 45% 4,786,575 18.37%
Mortheastarn China 1,158,000 4.08% 1,042,666 4.15%
Overseas and others 1,481,552 522% 1,460,720 §.60%
Total 28,372,229 100.00%: 26,086,482 100.00%

By industry

The compositon of the Group's gross loans and advances 1o customens (excluding sccrued interest) by mdustry i3 as follows

31 December 31 December

2014 2023
Transportation, slorage and postal senices 4,051,167 3,782,387
Manufacturing 2575716 2454 TEB
Leasing and commercial services 2,523,970 2,396,063
Water, ervironmient and public utility manasgement 1,863,449 1,742 614
Production and supply of electricity, heating, gas and water 1,868,505 1,690,911
Real ostate 1,110,747 1,014,138
Wholesale and retail 831,967 757,022
Fmance 842,033 635,529
Constructon 516,972 462957
Science, education, culture and sanitation 426,677 410,202
Runeng 374,330 340,350
Others 496,689 458,345
;;hl'm-:l far carparate loan 1?.4:!h2‘:;1;§h 15.5;1"5:2'64
Persanal mortgage and busness loans 1,761,161 1.635,604
Others 1,196,559 1008017
Subtatal for persanal lsans 895770 8653621
Descounted hills 1,932,286 1,287,657
“Total for loans and advances 10 customers 28,372,229 26,086,482
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

By collateral

The compaosition of the Group's gross loans and advances to customers (excheding aocrued Interest) by collateral s as
follows:

31 December 31 December

2024 023
Unsecured loans 11,078.420 9,947 491
Guaranteed loans 1.708 BOE 2,715,345
Loans secused by mortgages 10,787 880 10444, 304
Pledaged loans 3,797,121 2,979,347
Total 2837200 26,086,482

Overdue loans

The compoution of the Group's gross overdue loans (eecdeding accrued interest) by collateral is as follows:

11 December 2024

Owerdue Owerdue for Owerdue Owerdus

for 110 91 days to for 110 for ovar
90 days 1 year 3 years 3 years Tatal
Unsecwed loans 35,138 40,223 37,036 13,542 125,968
Guaranteed loans gz 17,125 23,011 G611 56,459
Loans secused by morgages T6.542 61,971 B1,143 17,870 27528
Pledged loans 968 1,260 3456 1,081 6,765
Tatsl 122,360 120,579 124,646 30,754 406,730

o 31 Dacambaer 2023 .
Overdue Overdue for Ovardue Overdue

for 1 to 91 days 1o for 1 10 far aver

90 days 1 yoar 1 yoars 3 years Total
Unsecused loans 31,5287 33,514 29,897 7,368 102,766
Guaranteed loans 13,780 19,151 16,805 11,400 61,146
Loars secured by mortgages 58,876 48,272 37285 14,4259 158,862
Pledged loans 2.5E3 952 3,13 QEd 7,650
Total 107,236 101,885 BT. V1B 3408 F30.424
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{2) Debt securities investments

By [ssuers
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The following tables present an analysis of the Group's debt securities investments (excluding accrued interest) by types of

msuers and imvestments

31 December 2024

Financial Financial Financial

Investments imvestments Investments

measured at measdred af measured at
FWTPL FWTOCI amortised cast Tatal
Goveiniments and certral banks 402 632 1,673,679 8,346,596 10,422 907
Falicy barks 35,688 alz4an 549,026 1,097,125
Barks and ather financial imtiutom 230,594 39B,174 769,838 1,308,606
Corporate entities 70,067 S8E. 449 67,758 726,184
T38.981 3,172,13 9,733,218 13,644,922

31 Decamber 2023

: Finamncial an'u:r;| B FI;Ilﬂl:lll

Investments imvestments inyestments

meoasured at measured at measured at
FWTPL F¥TOC  amortised cost Tatal
Govesniments and centeal banks 187,365 1,076,400 7455472 8,759,237
Palicy banks 3375 164,168 593,403 B11,946
Banks and other firancial instifutions 231,388 293 483 L4, 296 1,065,147
Corporate entities 7041 566,522 67,834 721,397
540,160 2,120,553 8,657,005 11,357,727

By rating

The Group adopts a credit rating appeoach to manage the credit risk of the debt secusities poetiolio held. The ratings are
obtainad from Bloombery Composite, or major rating agencies in the countries where the issoers of debt securites are
located. The carrying amounts of debt securities investments (excluding accrued interest analysed by rating as at the end of

e reporting penocd are as follows:
31 December 2024

Unirated AAA AR A Below A Tatal
Govemments and central banks 3,330,132 BE25ETT 124,512 17,560 B4,626 10,422,907
Palicy banks G2367T1 To.gar 7,269 55,629 459 1,067,125
Baris and ather financial irstiutiars B11.520 380,105 68,488 119,349 115,144 1,398, 606
Corparate entites 181,918 3TB17E 11,880 119,431 34,597 726,284
5047241 71,663,857 242,129 472,565 219,126 13,644,922
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

31 December 2023
Unrated AN .. A Balow A Total
Gowesniments and central banks 2481,141 6,138,412 63,270 32,834 42,530 B.759.237
Palicy banks 732,015 55,943 B934 11,754 3,300 B11,946
Bands and ather Financial
institutiang 409, E50 3B0. 700 47,841 173,791 52,865 1,065,147
Carparate entities 159,202 391,268 5943 121,625 43,359 721,397
3,762,208 6,967,323 126,088 359994 142114 11,357,727
{ifi} Three-stage analysis of financial instruments’ risk exposure
The Group's credit risk stages of financial mstruments are as Tollows:
3% Becember 2024
Gross catrying amoiant Prawision for ECL
Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Financial assets measured
at amortiied cost
Cash ard halances with central
banks 2irran - = 33naMm - - - -
Due from banks and cther
linancial indriutions 1,224,065 - 158 124313 {4, 189] - [158) [4,347)
Reverse repurchase agreements 1,189,933 - ER ALk 33 - - 33
Leans and adwances 1o
CUSIDmen 15,300,817 745,620 A2 26 4TS EED (354083) (1565020 (3044870 (@507
Finantial mvesiments 9EBS 410 1,838 1147 GBSO R (75,5400 1 {2,651 [38,403)
Tatsl £1923,136 77456 38R 400335 (B93EeB) (156513  @O7A0)  BESTESY)
Financial assets measured
st RTOo0
Lians and adeances 1o
cuslemen 1847015 93k LA T (353) 1) rif} 142%5)
Financial imesiments EBL IR 9,203 400 3,205,906 (8, 565) (635} 13,8250 (3,005
Total 5143336 10,141 47 515194 (4918 (6a&} 13,8463 3,430
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31 December 2023
Grods carrying amount = Prowition for ECL
Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 3 Tatal Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal

Financial assets measured

At amartised eost
Cash and balances weth central

birks 4043 393 = - dpap a3 = = = =
Due from banks and ather

firaercaal instituteoe 1,120,116 = 181 030377 3,399} = (161) (3,560)
Reverse repurchane agreements 1,183,840 - SR A5 E o7 = = &
Loans and advances ta

Customens 23,773,666 T4 I5I465  4B41.245 GArT0) (1562400 [57.037) (7SR001)
Fnancial investrmaents 840,215 FiFiL] 1018 EB45568 136,009 ) 2,699 gamna
Total 38,960,130 116,328 356,765 40033173 GE2235) (15625  [59.891) (93T
Financial assets measared

at AToa
Loans and advances ta

Cuslomen 1,295,548 =+ I 1295585 {361} = 9 (390
Finanoad investmants 1,136,289 11,509 s L4807 (4835} (G564 3,765 (3,568
Total 3431 837 11,509 M 3443658 {5,196) (964} 3,798 (9,958)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, credil nsk exposures of cred commitments wesre mainky dasufed in Stage 1

(b) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds wall not be sufficient or rassed 1 a reasonable cost m a tmely manner to maet the need
of assel growth or repayment of debts due. although the Group remains sobvent. Thes may arise from amount or maturity
mismatches of assets and Habilities

The Group manages its [squedity nsk through the Asset and Liabdity Management Department and aims at:

P

oplimiung the structure of assets and Habdities;

maintaining the stability of the deposit base,

projecting cash flows and evaluating the level of current assets; and

miairtaining an efficient internal fund transfer mechanism to ensure sufficiont liquidaty at branch kevel,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{ln ARAR millions, unless otherwise stated)

{1} Maturity analysis of assets and labilities

The tables bebow semmarise the maturity profide of the Group's assets and labilities. The sctusl romaining maturity of
the Group’s financal instruments may vary significantly from the following analyss. For example, demand deposits: from
customers ane expected to maintan a stable o intreaung balance although they have been claisified & repayable on
demand in the foffowing tables.

31 Dwcmmiber M
[ Caeis Three
IR Lt tham fim  mondnio Crm b Ot Urdatrd
ademand ote menth manti e Ear e yrany Tive jum ] Tatal
Aueic
Cch anef o wih el burihy 15 11087 E i 1419 - 1A anan
Dot Feorm bl e ot Franral vt ) RS 14100 ik MM 435 - - 143
Derngeve el auen = 4035 %3 T T L H 55 = PHE 1
Lowem i iehant e o fuitameny 0 401,73 1321 S ULE O LULEIF S L
Francal s
Fancil vttt seiod A FTTL W51 1o s s MaE mis 1H T8 e
Feancidl imestmenty megmed 1 FVEOC) - L 1 LT a8 TERS5E B35 PR
Francial ewerirest measend 1 acrtned ol - 111488 1080 1467655 EEL L L5 4 RASLIE
ek ) s et vertate - - - - - - 135 bt )
Fropaerty and gt - - - - - - num Ak
Dby i M L] 7240 g ) (11 1
et e 13307 By LENME  REMME  103MSM 1AHEEY EECHE U ik
Liohiiter:
Dot bz vl buasn - LR LAl il = - = L
Do e iy ad v il estionn ) LT s 1 157087 1% B - EIMEN
Finarscial ool mecried 2 YT ALY 145 o 4515 156 L - M5
Tt i i = 4404 a5 L 153 i = HLT
Cortficstes of cepenst - 5548 1518 Eralii ] i - - s
Dt fo customens RERL L IS LTEE 15T B g 1 - WX
Dbt spurites, i - jLEE: 138 18 T Frocn BB TS - 1T
(s 645 168,11 T HEA 1E5 848 65173
ot it 168034 EFEAE Y IFGT  wenma 3603 Ui = WEE
Nt Ity g8 A5 NT T FT I 1% U BT SE4l BAMERM 140400 380006

[} Inchudes reverse repurchase agreements.

(i} Inchudes repurchase agreemants

(i} Undated loans and advandes to customens and financal investments. afe impaired of nat impaired but everdue for more than
ane manth,
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11 December 121
et Qeain Theme
reaapatie Lets thae B meatula Dne 3¢ Dwer Undated
ondemind e panit L] £ i frve yman Fivt phary ] Tatal
Aseis:
Lt o balances with cesiedl backy 1,153 50 1] L L] 5086 - M aam
[ freem bunl ared sthes Fruncal mbtatens &) T LN I AL s Bn 'l - 110
Desvate francial aurty . 55 (TR E 1184 [ - Tn
s e e 1 cattomen AN LEREE M0 JEEEN LTI LETS (I % L
Francial nwetiments
Frurddl mveteent messeed l VTR i Ll o) L6 i 156428 Pl 105,148 1t
Frargal imvestrents reasnd af FVTO0 - 13296 E 42581 min B LR 1305
rupcil ety metated at o] o - (1SR ¥ 5.1 RS 1. A B AKEAE
Ivestent i msnciates and ot et - - - - - - b ] B
Frapety andd pumant = S y = 2 = AT AN
(b nsan man s B e kL] Huy K EIT 3214
Toal ety 136407 EAE T 1 LR JAEME TR FLELLUN
Lisbiltaes:
[a b cendl bari - E54% L8 T8 1 - = - I
Don bz by am b Ermecial o ) LEEATH IR Bam ¥ M 5508 - LECUE
Freamcial habsines measamd 9l FTRL Lk w 1 it} Ly kil - Lol
Dervitoot {rancial babsiibn, 7% NET 18 it ] T - Te250
Coraficaes of depust - 5.3 12E% k] Hen s - g
Thee b0 furomens 13,681,543 L LI5SE  RMOEN aEmIn 15189 = HELM
Debt st s - (111 106,167 il L ¥ LI - b
Cthers iRl 1113 LR 161455 {1428 z) ]
o ity BOEM  LEIMT 1A M QNS B - ws
et ity g T - BT, 1 T O - S VL S T . /1

{ih  Includes reverse repurchase agreements.

il Includes repurchase agreements,

(il Uindated loans and advanoes fo oustoeers and financial imvestments are impaired or not impased but overdae for mare than

one month,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

{if) Maturity analysis of undiscounted contractual cash flows

The tables below summariwe the maturidly prafile of the Group's financial instruments based on the undiscounted
contractual cash flows. The balances of some items in the tables below are different from the balances in the consolidated
statemaent al financial position as the tables incarporate all cash Tlews relating 10 bath principal and interest. The Group's
actuad cash fiows on these instruments may vary significanily from the followang analysis. For example, demand deposits
from customers are expected to maintain a stable or Increasing balance although they have been classilied as repayable on
demand in the fofiowing tables.

1 Dycomber 3134
Owertue [ 1 Thiee
mpapakhe  Lessthan e meedune =211 H] O Unéuted
sndimand  gsemanth manthy s fmper fmyen [l Tatal
Neorr-dethistive cath flowy:
Finuncial amts:
L e ot wifh coniral by LD 12,14 L1 7586 14 - 1EWE LERCfo ]
[ Fromm bt and ather francal isitutons ) e AN RN itRI L - = MsIE
it e achant o curtiornest ) S8 LAnsT 1SRIN O B0RIN O STNGS . 1S1E0N Qe NEER
Frarcial rwamerns
Francal rvmimest miiiowd ot FER, 115, 10% 1345 R T 1Bl 5 nesE LLE L I o i
Feanclal wemesty megned 1 AT - ahpa men Lol R L FiL384 BN s
Firaincial investmued madsonid of seortiond st - 127 B IBIEE UHM 5T FACHEY )
e 17547 nigE nut %] I B5= = SHEN
LR 3 TAEME GDeRSEr  IIAAEE.  BOEME 0 LMETM SLILTR
Frundal fabiities:
D 19 comnal bk = it 4418 114666 - - - e
Dogr b bk ] e Srsgrca stitutiors i) HRf M35 Ay 1EEER nip EMI - GHEAED
Trarwc bbbt e 2 PYTRL 06,154 150 18 2515 bk m & Tisa
Cirtificaties of depost E as A ¥ 5 - - B
Dot B cnsieers [AEsEs0 10658 MR PERIE 075N 1453 - BIMEN
Tt socurtes mnaed - el EHE0 L N W T = LM
B - o] 15 18658 Hen 1w - L]
(15 1 PE 1] IBNIL WEMER ST S35 - MBS
Dermvative canks flown:
Dernirtve fruncal sedraments setied on nel boss - (e i1k (73,658 i a - | o o
Toeraove finarscal mstraments sevied on grass bass.
roging (it olom - 1aaE LRLEE U R ] 498 i RO )L F 1
Lk atfow - dMiEE  nSgiE A 30N A5 - [N
4121 nar (1511 [ 8] Lt - NEIm

(it Includes reverse repurchase agreements
(i) The maturity profile of the rescheduled Ipard” wndiscounted contraciual cash flows is determined according 1o the negotiated
termis

(i} Ineludes repurchase agresmanis.

(n)  Undated loans and advances to customers and financial investments. ame impaired od nat impaired but owerdue for more than
ane month.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iIn BARER millions, unbess othersise stated)

11 Corember 11
Detdund Dnt fa Thees
epayable e thun thewe oo by Qenln e Unadyid
mdenund  ome perh et sy fmpin  fepn il Fatal
Fon-derfuntive cash lawac
Fraecial amrts
Cih ae balnces with ceatl busk (AL 4EM 4R 19 LA 4] S i B VL
Dhee From ek st Firurial imatitations §) pidic 1 461,855 1555 e adm i . L3508
Loderi ded bt 30 it () o 135380 15HI0 SAMAD ESMDE MRERUW R
Frangal nvesimen
Frursl evnteenty mevierd o VIR BliE 53 20 Pl e HnE 108,263 il
Frurad svestments measoed ot V00 - ms W L3 Lot el CLE R L
Frarnd imvestmanty meuiend ol smosted ! . 1B mm (ELAE5 SR 1 S 11 3 N e
Cthens 16,0 18564 nig TR G 518 - Lo
LT 88 LMIAR  BOMIN I MANE IMEI RINSH
Frunrcal lubiie:
[hae b cetraf bunks = £S5 580 T - - - m
Dot o b wed ity framcial iStsions ) LEESTE S I HiTm SHLET THT ST
Feancial kabiien mesneed ot ATR E W 165 (] LT3 m - (KD ]
Coisficaien of depersd. = = bHERH 17 Lo - - B4
[hat 1o fuslormers 1 EES T 1 £31.542 IMEA TOEE flmau 18,184 - BEm@
Dbt seriien aed ] jLF Ik -] LA EERL T i 5 10N
[then = bt .0 HiR Hea 5a - 3044
WA DRI I  BMIEG REINE B3 -
Deriwative cath Bows:
Derwatve: fingncial resrumenes seied on ret bast - o 1558 (1256 i3 &N - i
Dot feancial rsruments settied on pass b
kb Cich o ~ 1,335,428 Sisn 1 RiIE HildR g58 - A%
{Ciash outfiow - [LIymn L ET T R 1 anng ETEG = WM
M em e om g - W

i Includes reverse repuchase agreements

iy The matuniy profile of the rescheduled loans’ undiscounted contractual cash flows 5 determined acooeding to the negotiated
Tefma.

G} Includes repurchase agréemaents.

(v} Undited loans and advances fo customers and financial imvestments. sre impaired or not impaired but everdae (o more than
ore moenih,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

(i) Analysis of credit commitments by contractual expiry date

Banagoement does rot expect all of the commitments to be diawn down befone the eapiry of the commitmants,

31 Detember 2024
Cne to Three:
Bepayahle Less than thiee manths i Ot 1o Ower
pndemand one month manihs one yea Five yoas Frve yeam Total
Coecil commitments: 1,150,483 197,571 441,314 0¥ = 130,628 3403478
1 December 2523
Oine ta Thene
Repayable Leas than three manths to One ta Cher
on demand ona manth manihe ane year five years Tiwe yeary Tetal
Coedit comemitrents 137041 145,807 355,067 80,830 510,386 1578 3,584,120

{c) Market risk

Market rigk s the risk of loss, m respect of the Group™s on- and off-balance shest actvities, artsing from advene movements
in markat rates inciuding interest rates, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and stock prices. Market risk arises from
bath the Group's trading and non-trading businesses

The Group s prmanly exposed 1o structural interest rate risk arising from commercial banking and inferest rate risk arising
from treadury busness poslthons Intersst rate ridk is inherent in many of fs buainesses and Largely arises from mismatches
batwesan the repricing dates of interest-generating assets and interest-bearing ltabilitses, The analysis of the interest rate risk
in the banking boak & disclosed in Note S04d}),

The Geoup's currency risk mainly results from the risk arising from exchange rate fluctuations on its foreign exchange
expouses. Foreign exchange exposures nclude the foreign exchange exposures arsing from currency structural imbalance
batwesn foreign currency assets and labidities, and off-balance sheet foreign exchange exposures arising from currency
derivatie Iransactions

The Group considevs the market sk arising from stock peice fluctuations in respect of its imvestmont portfolics 190 be
immatesial

Senaitivity anakein, interest rate regniang gap analysis and foresgn exchange nsk concentration analysis are the mage
market risk management tools used by the Group. The Bank monitors market sk separately in respect of trading and other
nodetrading poctiolos. The Value-at-Risk (VaR) analysis is & major tool used by the Bank 1o meaure and monitor the maket
risk of its trading portfolos. The following sections include a Value-at-Risk (VaR) analysis by rsk type of the Geoup's tradng
partfclios and a sonsitivity anakysis based on the Group™s curtency risk sxposure and interest rate risk exposure (both tradng
and non-trading portfolios).
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(i) VaR

VaR iz a meature index which estimates the potential madmurm loues that could occur on sk positions taken due to
movements in interest rates, fofeign exchange rates or peces over a specifed time horizon and at a specified level of
canfidence, The Bank adopti a histoncal umulation method te caleulate and monadar the VaRs of trading portfalios with
250 days' historical market data {with a 99% confidence level, and cne-day holding pencd) on a daily basis,

A summary of Vaits of trading book by sk type is a8 follows

2024
End of year Average Maximum Minimum
Inferest rate risk El]| 17 336 B3
Cusrency risk 305 279 ATS 124
Commaodity risk 22 19 40 1
Total portfolio Val 466 nw 470 232
2023
End of year Average Maximum Minimum
Interest rate nsk BY 112 209 43
Cusrency risk 258 256 406 k]
Commadily risk iz a7 A 26
Total portfolo Vak 245 nz anz 180

WaR for each risk factor &5 the derived largest polentiad loss due to fluctuations solely n that nisk factor. As these is a
deversification effect due 1o the correlation amangst the Hik Tactars, the indsadual VaRs do not add up to the 1otal parifolia
Wah.

Althowgh VaR & an imponant toal for measuring market risk wnder nosmal market envitanment, the assumplions o which
the model is kased do give rise to some limitations, mainly includng the following:

{17 VaR does not reflect biguidity nsk. In the VaR model, a one-day holding period assumes that it is possiile to hedge
or disporse of positions within that pemod withoul restriction, the price of the financial instrurments wall Tluctuato in
the specified range, and the comelation between these madket prices will remain basically unchanged. This may not
fully reflect the market risk arising a1 times of severe illiquiddy, when a one-day holding period may be insufficient to
hedge or dispose of all positions fully,

(2] Even though positions may change throughout the doy, VaR only represents the risk of the portfolios at the close of
each business day, and it does not account for any losses that may occur beyond the 99% confidence level; and

3] VaR refis hoavily on hatoncal data to provide information and may not cleardy predict the futue changes and
mipdifications of the risk factors, especally those of an exceptional nature due 1o significant market moves.
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{if) Currency risk

The Group conducts ity Businesses mainly in RME, with cerfain fransactions denominated n USD, HED, and ather currencies
1z a lesser extent. The exchange rate of RME to USD is managed under a floating exchange rate system. The HED exchange
rate hins been poegged to the USD and therelore the exchange rate of RME ta HED has luctuated in line wath thie changes
in the exchange rate of RME to USD, Transactions in foresgn currencies mainly arise from the Group's foresgn currency
treasury operatbons, commissioned (oreign exchange dealings for clients and overseas mvestments

The Group manages its currency sk exposwre through vanous methods, indluding limit management and risk hedging to
hedge cuffency risk, and perfoarms currency ridk sensitivity analysic and Liiess 1estng regularly.

The 1ables below indicate a sensitivity anabrsis of exchange rate changes of the main foresgn currencies to which the Group
had significant on- and eff-balance sheet exposure on i3 monetary assets and Kabilities and s estimated future cash
fiows, The analysis caloulates the eMect of a reasonably possible movernent i the currency rates against RMEB, with a
other variables held constant, on profit before taxation and equity, The impact on equity only includes the impact on other
comprehenave moome, A negatve amount m the table reflects a potential net reduction in profit before taxation or equity,
while a positive amount reflects a potential net increase. While the table below indecates the efiect on profit before tasation
and equity of & 1% depreciation of USD and HKD against AMB, there will be an opposite effect with the same amount
If the currencies appreciate by the same percentage. This effect, hawever, is based on the assumption that the Group®s
foreign exchange exposusnes a5 at the end of the reporting penod are kept unchanged and, therefore, has not incorporated
actions that would be taken by the Group 1o mitigate the adverse impact of this currency risk

Effact on profit

before taxation Effect on equity
Change in 31 December 31 De b 31 Decemb 31 December
Curremcy oxuchange rate 2024 2023 2024 2023
usp 1% (3210 267 [F0E} 629
HED 1% 74 27 {1,565 (1,443)
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A bivakdown of the assets and liabslities analysed by currency is as Tollows:

31 December 2024

usp HKD Other Tatal
{in AME {in RME {in RMB fimn RME
RME  equivalent) equivalent]) equivalent) puivalent)
Assets:
Cash and balances with central banks 3,008,110 181,040 9,580 12318 3z
Biue Fram banks and ether financial instautans (1) 1,562,443 AT AT 65,538 224935 2,430,083
Derriative financial assets 170,31 23,754 11,813 16,493 222,381
Loans and advances to customens 26,304,262 651,996 315.362 342,161 21.613.781
Firancial investments.
Financial investments measured at FYTPL 563,589 17444 11,105 18,301 1,010,439
Financial imvestments measured at FYTOCI 27154 411,742 47,393 116,541 3,281,152
Financial invesiments measured at amorised cost 9,505,735 203,064 4.5 117,755 9,851,985
Irvestments i associates and paint ventures A4, 465 1,511 146 27,235 13,357
Propety and pquipmant 132,927 166,466 677 237 302,387
Others 344,105 135,107 24,565 199,503 703,280
Ftal assets a4, Taz 408 1,380,301 510,715 1,188,422 48,821,746
Linbilities:
Diuee £ central banis 169,622 - - - 169,622
Due to banks and athes financial institutions (i} 5,278,640 524278 65,604 245,708 6,114,520
Financial liabdfities measured at FVTFL 5408 2440 2 63,116 76,056
Derrvative financial liabdities 145,146 13,089 10,841 ang 197,795
Certidicates af depasit 140,187 110,006 58,705 26,931 445,418
D bo customers 33,146,425 945,302 380,181 365,061 34,836,973
Debt securities asued 1,659,351 142,352 = 7,019 2,028,722
Dhers BDG 682 126,336 8,693 13602 965,373
Total habilties CAVSSISSS 1992863 523906 T6156 44834480
Het long/shart) posstion 3,190,853 367,338 {13,191} 422 266 3,987,266
Credit commitments 1686750 468,537 50,373 157,813 3403478

) Inclisdes reverse repurchase agreements
Gy Includes repurchase agreements.
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31 December 2023
uso HKD Other Tatal

{in RME {in RMB {im RME {in RME
RME  equivalent) equivalent) equivalent)  equivalent)

Assets:
Cash and balances with central banks 3741187 168210 B133 124,763 4,042,293
Duie from banks and ather financal institutians (i) 1,612,535 427 598 39,685 61,176 2,340,974
Derwvative financial assets 30533 5973 1455 1,378 15,339
Loars and sdvances 1o customers 23,937,134 690,350 345,152 52,637 15,386,933
Financiad investments

Finaneisl investmends measuned at FYTPL 761 B4 30,975 10,632 B,266 B11,957

Financial invesiments measured at PUTOC! 1,736,925 356,118 3897 95 648 2,230,862

Financisl imesiments memuned at amoetived cost BL450363 192,730 36,996 126,760 B.EOGBAD
Irvestments in associates and joint veniures 36,804 1096 196 25,682 L
Property and equipment 134,199 161,870 74 2,135 J9E.E7E
Others 333,577 174,586 5,658 124,395 B3E.216
Total assets 40,835,801 2,233,506 494,732 1133040 44,607,079
I.I;thiﬁ;
Due ta gentral banks 230,246 - - 1128 231,374
Due io banks and ather financial mstitutions {iik 3588038 487 444 73,509 143,973 4,387 064
Financial hialslites measured at FYTRL 4,537 2,150 4 55,668 62,859
Derivative financial liabilities 26,563 29,765 8627 8,196 76,251
Cenificates of depensit 103,347 208,441 40,857 32,553 385,198
Due bo customers 31,837,835 871,815 434,579 F76.40 33500,174
Dt securites issued 1,150,601 187,762 2,058 29,356 1,365,777
Oithers 569,117 FAENT]] 24,334 18,302 EBSEI4
Tatal liabities 7,512,684 1,895,622 583,968 EIBIT 40.920,49:_
Net longishon) pasitian 3323117 237,834 (89,236) 04823 3,776,588
Credit commitments 1.52541% 426,002 45,065 183,704 3,784,180

(i} Indudes reverse repurchase agreements.
[ii) Inchudes repurchase agreements,

{d} Interest rate risk in the banking book

Interest rate rak in the banking book s defined as the risk of loss i the overall retum and the sconomic value of the
banking book arising from adverse movements in interest rate and term structure. This type of nsk may coour in the
follanving situations:

the repricing period of different fancial instruments are different when the interest rate changes;

despite the similanties in matenty penods, changes in the benchmark interest rate vary among of- and off-balance
shaet barsiness in the banking book with different pricing benchmark interest rates;

the Bank of the counterparty can elect to change the kevel or the matunty of luture cash flows of financia
instruments when the Bank holds option derivatives or when there are embedded option terms or implad options m
the on- and off-balance theet businesses in the banking book; and

due 1o changes in expected dofault levels or market liquidity, the madket's assomment of the credit quality of financial
instruments changes, leading to changes in credit spreads.
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The Group manages the interest rate muk in the banking book through the Asset and Liability Managemant Depariment,
and the fellowing methods have been adopted:

- interest rate prediction: analysmg the macro-economic factors that may impact the PBOC benchmark interest rates
and market interest rates;

= duration management: oplirmisng the differences m timing between contraciual répacing (or matunties) of intesest-
generating assets and interest-beanng labilties,

- prcmg managemenl. managing the dewation ol the prong of interest-gendrating assets and nlerest-beanng
liabilities from the benchmark interest rates or market interest rates;

- limit management: optimsing the posibons of interest-generating assets and interest-beanng labikties and controling
the impact on profit o lois and equity, and

- hedging: using inerest rate derivatves for hedging management n a timely manner.

The Growp measures interest rate msk mainly by anabysing the senstvity of projected nat interest mcome undor vanous
interest rate movements (scenario amalysis), The Group aims to mitkgate the impact of prospective interest rate movements
which might reduce future net interest income, while balancing the cost of hedging on the curmnt revenue,

The following tables demonstrate the sensiwity to a reasonably possible change in inferest rate, with all other variables held
canslant, on the Group's nel interest incarme and equity.

The effact on net interest income is the impact of the assumed changes in intarest rates on the net interast income, arising
from the fmancial assets and financial liailities held at the end of the reporting pencd that ane subject to repricing within
the coming year, including the effect of hadging instruments. The effect on equty is the impact of the assumed changes in
mnberest rates on other comprebensive meome, calculated by revaluing fixed rate financial assets measured a1 FYTOC! held at
the end of the reporting pesicd, Including the effect of any associated hedging instrumenss

3 December 2034
Increased by 100 basis poanta Dwcreaned by 100 basiy poirh
Eifect on net Effect on Effect on rat Elfect an
Currency Enterest ingome equity infenesd income: equity
AMB (26,5500 (102539 26,560 121,349
s 1,108 {8,208} 1.109) 4259
HED 13 72 (249 L
L LERLL] 11.70) 3497
Total (24,1210 (VRA613) 2110 134282
1 December 2023
__ Incruased by 100 basts poinis Decreated by 100 basis poiets
Effect en net Effect on Effect on ret Effect on
Currency lnresl imtame Uity interest Incama ey
RME (14,921 13,258 14302 B4
5D (13 {5456} 1420 GR35
HED (1439 i) 1439 %
(Othen 1,008 204 {1,008 L]
Toldl (46,673) [P9873) 16,673 91,766
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The interest rate sendithatios set out in the tables above are for illustration only and are based on simplified scenarios. The
fugures represent the estimaled movements in net interest mcome and equity based on the projected yield curve scenarios
and the Group's current interest rate risk profile. The effect, however, doss not micorporate actions other than hedging that
would be taken by management to mitigate the impact of interest rate risk. The projections above also assume that interest
rates of all maturities move by the same degree and, therefare, do not reflect the potential impact on net Interest mcome
and equaty i the case where some rates change while sthers remain unchanged.

The tables below summarise the contractual repricing or matunty dates, whichever 5 eardier, of the Group's assets and
luabilithes

31 December 2024

Less than Thres Non-
three  months to One 10 Ower interest-
manths one year five yoars five years baaring Total
Assets
Cash ard balances with cenitral banks 2,921,951 6,865 S0 - 394,245 3322911
Due from banks and ather financial
Instiutin () 2,041,613 311,924 41,914 - 24,587 2430093
Derwatve financad assets - - - - 212,361 122,361
Loans and advances ta customers 10,976,981 16,188,046 255,342 138,400 §5012  ATE13TAM
Financial investments
Fancal investments measised
at FYTRL 44,028 275,562 247,340 209,389 234,120 1010435
Financial investments measuned
at FWTOC! 379,404 611,783 1417981 ThE.B56 113118 3,291,152
Financial investments measured
4t amofised cost 344,569 1,449,893 3,328,729 4623451 105,343 9,851,985
Irveestments in assaciates and joint
VEniLTEL - - - - 13,357 13,357
Property and equipment - - - - 302,387 302,387
Othess 1,986 6,273 17,876 3,556 673,449 703,280
Total assets 16,710,532 18,850,206 5319332 5733662 2196004 45,821,746
Liabilities:
Diue fir ceritral banks 56,043 113,573 - - & 169,622
Due 1o barks and other financial
Instiuticing (o) 4,052,089 1,711,979 254,138 B75 95,639 6,114,520
Finanoial listulities measured at PYTPL 55213 4615 1.668 254 62,995 76,056
Derwvatioe financal lisbilities - - - - 197,795 197,795
Certificates of deposit 193,076 2170042 33266 - 3,035 445415
Duie 16 eusbamers 18323925 1.503.276 8213196 11,738 TITIE 34836973
Dbt securities ssued 311,004 826,952 193297 684,797 12,662 2028722
Cithers 3,540 10,328 30,765 1413 913317 55,373
Tertal labdties 12956210 10,387,765 8725331 704,947 2,060,227 44,834,480
Interest fate exposuse [6,245678) 8472441 (3405999 5008715 M MA

[} Inchudes reverse repurchase agreements.
fii) Includes repurchake agresments,

The data se1 out in the above table includes trading book data,
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31 December 2023
Less than Thres MNon-
three months to One to Over interest-
manths onE year five years five years bearing Tatal
Assets:
Cash and balanoes with central banks 3,707,044 1498 4,303 - 378,448 4,042,153
Due fram banks and ether financial
Irestitutions (i) 1846,472 33422 35,193 . 35,837 2,340,974
Derwvative financial assets - - - - 15,319 319
Loans ard advances to customens 5187465 15365942 528,802 245,909 4815 25,385,933
Financial invesiments
Financa! investments measured
w1 FVTRL i3I 134 428 125,924 194,507 123,376 811,957
Financial investments measured
a1 INTOCH 272,310 420,740 EQ3, 302 629,586 104,014 2,230,862
Financial invesimers measured
a4t amartised oot 580,348 845,538 3,198,040 4,079,638 99,037 B, 804,849
Irvestments in associates and oint
veriures - - - - 64,778 64,778
Property and equipment - - - - 298,678 293,878
Others 2457 1674 40,169 24,485 EERED 638,216
Total avsets 15729376 17,208,047 4735833 5174775  1,B4EE53 44,697,079
Liabilities:
Duee to contral banks 73225 158,143 - - - 731,374
Due to banks and other fmarcial
irtitutaans (&) 3415815 524,444 13,684 10 1o 4,387,964
Financial liabdities measured a1 FVTFL 3,647 B33 i 64T EAl 53416 62,859
Dermativg financial liabelities. - - - - 76,251 76,251
Certdicates af depasit 181,578 180,896 19.87E - 2B45 385,198
Due to cusiomers 17,501,563 BA43E11 B.G1B. 555 14,862 TAL5TE 3352104
Dl securitaes issued 172,151 311,141 193,484 BTB, 275 14,726 1,369,777
Others a9 12,526 54,530 29,349 T84, 797 BAS, B4
Total labildies 20,3537 E231.400 E505. 388 721812 1,708,620 40,920,431
Irtesteal rate pxposidne (5622,895)  BOTEB42  (4.169,555] 4 451,963 A N,

() Inclsdes reverse repurchase Aaresments.

Gy Includes repurchase agreements.

The data set out in the above table inchudes trading book data.
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(e) Capital management

The Group has set the following capital management objectives:

- maintatn sound capial adequacy 1o mest regulatary and policy requirements on capatal, keep stable capital base 1o
ensura the implementation of the Group’s business growth and strategic plans in order 1o achieve comprehensive,
balanced, and sustanable developrment;

=  adopt the advanced capital messurement approach, improve the mitermal capital adequacy assessment process
(PCAAR, publicly desclose information on capital management, cover all types of material risks, and ensure stable
aperations of the Group;

- lewverage on the results of gquantitatne assessments of material msks fully, establish a bank-wide value management
mechanism with a come of oconomic capital, impeove the aligned polickes, processes, and applications in business
management, strengthen the capital constraints and capatal incentives mechanism, enhance the abilities of produa
pricing and decision-making suppodt, and improve the capital allocation efficiency; and

- make effectrwe use of vasious capital instruments, continuously enhance capital strengths, refine the capital structure,
improve capital guality, reduce capatal costs, and maxemise shoreholders” netums.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the nsk
profiles of s business eperations. In order to mamtan o adjust the capital siructune, the Group may adjust s proln
distribution palices, issue or repurchase its own shases, elupble additional tier 1 capital instruments, eligible tier 2 capital
instruments, of comvertible bonds

The Group maonitors the capital adeguacy ratios regularly based on regulations sswed by the NFRA. The required information
14 gquarterly filed with the NFRA by the Groug and the Bank

Sinte 1 January 2024, the Group commenced calculating the capital adequacy ratios in asccordance with the Regulation
Goverreng Capital of Commercial Banks and other relevant regulations, according 1o the scope of smplementing the
advanced capatal measurement approaches as approved by the regulatory authorities, an entorprise that meets the
regulatory requirements shall adopt the foundaton IRB appeoach for its corporate credit sk exposuzes, the advanced IRE
approach fee its ratail eredd fsk eapodures, the weghited appeoach for its credit msk uncovered by the MB approach, the
standardised approach mainly Tor its market risk exposures and the standardised appeoach for its operational risk exposures.

Accanding 1¢ Aegulation Goverming Capital of Commercial Banks, Meawres for the Assesement of Systemically Impartam
Banks, Additonal Regulatson of Systemically Important Banks (Provisional), and the capital surcharge applied to globad
systemically mmportant banks as requined by the Basel Committes on Banking Saporvision, the minimiem comman equity i
1 cagetal adequacy ratio, the ter 1 capital adequacy rateo and the capital adeguacy ratie of the Group shall not be lower
than %, 10% and 12% respectively. n adeition, overseas entities are dewcily regulated by local banking regulators, and
the required capitad adeguacy ratios differ by countries o regions:

The Group caleulates the fallowing comman equity Her 1 copral adequacy ratio, the tor 1 cagetal adequacy ratea and
the capital adequacy ratio in accordance with the Regulation Governing Capital of Commercial Banks and relevant
requirements. The requirements pursuant io these regulations may be different from those applicable in Hong Kong SAR
and other pumsdictaons.

The capital adequacy fatiod and related data of the Group are calculated based on the staluloey financial dtatements of
the Group prepared under the PRC GAAF, During the reporting year, the Group has compsied in full with all s externally
Imposed regulatodry capital requisements,
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The cemmen equity tier 1| capilal adequacy ratio, the tier 1 capital adeguacy ratio and the capslal adequacy ratio of the
Group calculated in accordance with the advanced capatal measurement approaches in the Rules on Capstal Management of
Commercial Banks are as follows, the comparative figures ase not restated

1 Decermnber 31 December

014 2023
Commaon equity tier 1 capital 3,648,963 3,404,032
Paid-in capital 156,407 55,407
‘alid portion of capital resenve 148,128 148, 164
Surplus resenve 463,951 428,007
Genetal reserve 614,426 561,303
Retained profits 2,007,203 1,905,968
Wakd portion of minanty mierests 4,0M 3623
Accumulated other comprehensive income 54777 [T
Others 1Y L]
Common equity tier 1 capital deductions 2461 22091
Goodwill 18,687 BAER
Other intangible assets other than land use rights 10,194 8,490
Cash flow hedging reserve that relates 1o the hedgang of toms that are not fair-
valued on the bakance sheet {4, 260) {2,B67)
Investments in comman equity 1er 1 capital instruments issued by fmancial
institutions that are under control but not subject 1o consolidation - 7880
Mat common equaty tier 1 capital 3,624,342 3,381,941
Additional ter 1 cageial 2511 354,978
Additional tier 1 capital instruments and related premiums 324 344 354,331
‘ald porbion of minority mierests T&7 647
ket tier 1 capital 3,949 453 3.736.919
Tier 2 capital 1,037,078 G70,181
Wabkd portion of tier 2 capital mstrurnents and related premiurms 632,917 635,672
Surplus provision for impairment 402,917 MaA
Surplus. provision for Ioan empasrmint HiA 333,382
Wald portion of minaniy mierests 1.244 1,127
Mt capital base 4,986,531 4,707,100
Aric-waighted assets () 25,710,855 24,641,631
Commaon equity tier 1 capital adeguacy ratio 14.10% 13.71%
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 15.36% 15.17%
Capital adequacy ratie 19.39% 19.10%

{l}  Feders 1o dsk-weighted atsets after the capital lloor and adjustments.

2

==
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51. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group has established policies and intesnal contrals with respect 1o the meawsement of fair values, specifically the
framework of fair vabue measurement of fnancal instruments, fair value measurement methodologies and operating
procedures. Fabi value measurerment methedologies specily valuatbon techniques, parameter selection and relevant concepts,
models and parameter-seeking mathods. Operating procedures specily measurement procedures, timing of valuation,
market parameler selection and corresponding sllocation of responsbdities. In the process of fair value measurement,
front office = responsible for daily transaction management. The France and Accounting Department plays a lead robe in
formulating accounting palickes of far value measurement, valuation methodologees and systern implementation, The Risk
Managemant Department is responsible {or veritying trade details and validating models.

Fair walue estemates are generally subjective in nature, and are made as of a spedfic pont in time based on the

characteristics of the financial mstruments. and refievant marke? information. The Group wes the following hiesarchy for
determining and dischesing the fair value of financial instruments

Leved 1 inputs quoted {unadjusted) prices in actree markets for identical assets or liabilines,

Leved 2 inputs: inputs other than guoted prices included withen Level 1 that are obsersable for the asset or liability, eithes
directly or indirectly; and

Levef 3 inputs: valuation technigques are used, for which certain inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fai
walue are not based on obsprvable market data.

The follewnng is a description of the fair value of financal instruments measured at fasr value which are determined using
valuation technigues. They incorparate the Group’s estimate of ssumptions that 8 market pastctpant would make when
valuing the instruments.

Financial investments

Financial investrments that use valuation technigues for their valuation include debt securitees, asset-backed securities,
investment funds, unlisted equity matrurments and ssset management plans, The Group walues swch imvestments by
incorporating either only observable data or both observable and unobservable data. Observable inputs include assumptions
regadding current mtorest rates wnobdervable mputs include Msumplons regarding expected default rates, prépayment
rates, discount rates and market Liguidity,

The majority of the debl secunties investments clasulied as level 2 are RMB bonds. The falr values of these bonds are
determined based on the valuation results provided by China Central Depository & Cleaning Co., Ltd,, which ase determined
based an a valuaton technigue for which all significant inputs are abiervable market data

Dernvatives

Derivatios that wie valuaton techniques with markaet observable inputs are mainly evlerest rate swops, curmency forwards,
swiaps and options. The maost frequently applied valuation technigues include discounted cash flow model and Black-Schobes
model. The models incorporate various inputs including foreign exchange spot and forward rates, foresgn exchange rate
volatility, interest rale yield ourves.

Structured dermatives are mainky valued using dealer's quatations

Loans and advances to customers

The loans and advarices to customars that wse valuation technigues for valuation are mainly the bills and dscounted cash
flow model B used, For bank acceptance bill, based on the different crednt risk of the acceploe, nterest rate yield curve s
set up using the actual market data. for commercial bill, based on the interbank offered rate, interest rate yield curve is
constructed, with spreads adjusted for credit risk and liquidity.
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For unguoted other liabilities at PYTPL, discounted cash flow model is used based on current yield curve appropeiate for
the remaining ferm 1o matunty sdjusted for market quiddy and credit spreads; and Heston model s apphed based on
parameters including yields, foreign eschange forward rates, foreign eschange rate volatilities, which are calibrated by
activie market quotes of standard Eurcpean ephion with the same underlying items.

(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value

31 December 2024

Lavel 1 Level 2 Leval 3 Tatal
Fimancial assats:
Derivative lnancial pssets 12111 210,185 58 222,381
Reverse repurchase agreements measured
at FVTPRL - 20,317 - 20,317
Loans and advances 1o customers measuned
al FVTPL - 4,929 L] 5,005
Loans and advances 10 customers measuned
at BVTOCH - 1,947 988 - 1.947 SE8
Fuancial investments measured at FYTPL
Diebt securities imvestments 17,498 718,558 2,925 738,981
Equuity imvestmants 13,736 1.003 87,028 111,767
Funds and other mvwestments 37.666 78,015 44,010 159,691
78,900 T97.576 133,963 1,010,439
Funancial irvestrments measured at FVTOC)
Dedt securities investmenis 301,020 2, 85%,480 - 3,200,500
Otheor dob mwastments - 5,426 - 5416
Equsty westments 13,793 5,730 65,703 85,226
314,813 2,910,636 65,703 3,291,152
405,824 5,891,641 199,797 6,497,262
Fimancial liabilities:
D tor cUstomers - 200,983 - F00.9E3
Repurchase agreements - 715 - s
Financial liabelitios moasured at FUTPL 150 73,584 2.312 76,056
Derivative financial liabelities 5,005 18%,651 139 197,795
8,155 464,933 2461 475,549
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

31 Decermnber 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Lawel 3 Tatal
Financial assets:
Dervatve financial asets 3.333 71491 515 7533
Aeverse repurchase agreements measured
at FVTPL - A0514 - 40,514
Loans and advances to customers measuted
at FvTPL - 5,950 1i4 6,104
Loans and advances to customers measueed
at FvToCl - 1,295,585 - 1,95 5B5
Financial imsestments measured at PYTPL
Dbt securiies imestments 21412 515,389 3,368 540,169
Equity imwestments 19,885 10,935 74,226 105,046
Fumds and ather investments 37,443 87.042 41,357 166,742
78,740 614,266 118,951 811,957
_ﬁrwncmd vestmaents measuned at FYTOC]
Debt securnties investments 338,551 1,804,101 - 2,142 652
Cther debt investments - AN - 5421
Equity Invesiments B, 761 33,556 40,472 B2,7849
347,312 1,843,078 40472 2,230,862
49,385 3,870,924 160,052 3,460,361
Financial liabilities:
Due to customerns - 202,976 - 202976
Repurchate sgreemants - 28174 - 28,174
Financial liabilities measured at FYTPL 1.462 54,559 1,838 62,859
Denvative financial kabikes 3,133 71,833 1,173 76,251
4,595 362 b4l 37 370,260
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iIn BARER millions, unbess othersise stated)

(b} Movement of level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

The following tables show the movemant of level 2 finandial assets and financial liabdlities maasured at fair value:

Totd  Total effects
o o) in ather Traswales
1 Jangary reonded i comprebeeaive Cruposalr and fouthingd 11 Decomber
MM profi o o Irnae Bddrtmrn seltimenty level § 1
Financial amste
Derrvative randial sty 515 8 - m 358 [1E: ] 5
Lo v achandes 15 Datbormens
meazred 2t VTR, 114 § - - HE - T
Frundal rwestmens mesiured at RTR
Dbt scurttes invetmint. k- ) - 2] (LY 1 155
Euly wetimesty T {151 - FLf R {1375 - b ]
Furaht and peher ewesimpels L1k T (i ] . 14514 (5.3 = Wi
Frunoal resmenty meeired af P00
Euity imwestmants a4 - 148 gL .40 FETSL 70
L5 (&3 150 T (D FAE 1797
Financial labdities:
Frnanaial kabdities e al FTR, 1E- ] {reli] - iy 458 - 3zn
Derrathve frucasl haetien {1,179 1M - - 1% bl 1380
3o (i::,1] - 1 sl Ha [L461]
Totd Tl elfecn
ganiifheal in pthar Tratder
1 Jasuiary ruvdedis  comprehesave Disgia aad fjourd] o H December
o] oo o e intome Additom siilyeswh el § nn
Firarcl mumts
Detwibwe trancadl tyety EBE m - o i1 14 11
Lioaret arel e 1 cutiomen,
menated #f VTR L " - - ] I
Franasl rwemnesh massred i R
Tebd securtny maimmiy AL ] an - m ] m 14
Tquty irvesirurn, i B4 = LEH {2 a3 Tk
Eynas g nter mwastrrty E k] i - e EES nm
Freantul et mesared it FTO0
et erurtes Eeninants B - - 1.7
Tty rerstmnty ol - 1455 1468 B - aam
156,343 - 1455 B 2% W bl
Frnarcal Rabiitas
Frranoal atsltes seziumed # TR {13 [15&) - i m - [iFE ]
Devatie Tranoad Libine R 1] (%] - m ] 12 1,1
a4 i - Luh [ H aam
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

Met gams of losses on level 3 financial mstruments of the Group ane et out below:

2024 2023

Realised 402) 391

Unrealised (826) 1,220
{1,228) 1611

{¢)} Transfers between levels

fi)  Transfers between lovel 1 and level 2

Due to changes in market conditions for certam securities, quoted prices in active markets were available for these
sequrities. Therelore, these secunties were transferred from lavel 2 to level 1 of the fair value hieraschy as at the end of the
reporting penod

Due to changes in market conditions for cerlain securibes, quoted prices in active markets were no longer available for
thase secunfies, However, there was sufficient information awailable to measure the fair values of these securities based on
observable market inputs. Therefore, these securities were transferred from level 1 to level 2 of the fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period,

In 2024 ard 2023, the transfers betwoen lavel 1 and level 2 of the fair value bierarchy for financisl assets and Babilities
measured at fair value of the Group were not significant.

{if) Transfers between level 2 and level 3

Ar the end of the reporting pesod, certasn flinancal instruments were transferred oul from level 2 to level 3 of the Tas
value hierarchy fior financal assets and kabilities when signeficant inputs used in their fair value measurements, which were
previously abservable became unobservable.

A1 the end of the reparting penad, certain financial mstruments were transferresd out from level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
for financial assets and liabdities, when sgnificant inputs used m thesr fair value measurements, which were previously
unohservable became observable, or when there was a changse in vaduation technigue,

{d} WValuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable inputs

Financial instruments valued with significant unchservable inputs primarily include certain structured finamcial derivatives,
msel-backed secunities, investment funds, unlivied equay matruments and assel management plans. These financial
instrurments are valued using dscounted cash flow model, net asset value method and market compaison appeoach. The
miodes incorporate vanious unobservable assumptions such as expected default rates, prepayment rates, discount rates and
rmiarket bguidity.

A5 at 31 Decornber 2024, the effects of changing the sgnificant unobservable assumpbons to reasonably possible
alternative assumptions were not signsficant (31 December 2023: not significant),
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{e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities not carried at fair value
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There are no sgnificant differences between the carrying amount and the fair value of financial assets and financial
habikties not measured at far value, except for the following tems:

31 December 2024

Carrying
amoisnt Fair value Lewvel 1 Level 2 Lewel 3
Financial assets
Financial irvestments measwred at amortised oost 9,851,985 10,531,041 43473 10,360,858 126,710
Financial liabilities
Subordinated bands, tier 2 capital bonds and TLAC
nan-captal Bands 749,261 718,648 - 718,648 -
B 31 December 2023
Carrying
amaunt Failr value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fimancial assets
Froancial imvestments measuned at amotred cost BL.E0G,B43 9,083,501 75,160 8,830,559 177,662
Financial liabilities
Sabordinated bands and tier I capital bonds ssued TO4,129 TO5. 809 - T05. 809 -

Subject 10 the oxstence of an active market, such as an authonsed $1ock exchange, the market value is the best reflection
of the fair value of a financial instrument. As there is no available market value for certain financial assets held and financial

Habiftios issued by the Group, dncounted cash fiow or ather vabuation methads desonbed bolow are adoptod 1o determing

the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities:

) The far vakues of financal mwestments measured a1 amornsed cost relatng to the restructunng af the Bank are
estimated on the bass of the staled interest rates and the consideration of the relevant special clauses of the
instruments evaluated in the absence of any other relevant observable markel data, and the fas values appraxirmate
to their carrying amounts. The fair values of fmancal investments measured at amortised cost evelevant to the
restructuring of the Bank are delermaned based on the available markel values M quoted maskel prices are nol
available, fair vakmes are estimated on the basis of prang models or discounted cash flows.

(i) The fas values of Suboedinated bonds, 1er 2 capital bonds and TLAC non-capital Bonds issued are determaned with
reference to the avadable market values.  gquoted markst prices are not avadable, fair values are estimated on the

basis of pricing models o discounted cash flows,

Al of the aforementioned assumplions and methods provide a consisten? basis for the calculation of the fair values of the
Group’s fnancial assets and fmancial labilites. Howeser, other institutions may use different assumptions and methods
Therelore, the fair values disclosed by differsnt financial institutions may not be enterely comparable.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF
THE BANK

The statement of financial position of the Bank is set out below

11 December 31 December

2024 2023
ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks 1,231,078 3083 898
Due from banks and other financeal institutions 1,268,833 1,208,201
Dervatve financial awiets 193,367 52,312
Hewise mepurchase agreements 1,148,303 1,144,948
Loans and advances o customers 76,789,370 24,618,384
Financial investments 13,184 522 11,011,574
Firnancial irvestmants measured ot FUTPL 693,738 504918
Financial investments measured at PYTOCH 2875432 1,913,887
Financial imvestments measured at amortised cost 9,615,352 8,592,769
Inyastments in subsidsaries 163,183 163,283
Impestments in associates .04 36,042
Praperty and equspment 13,025 123,642
Deferred tax assets B9, 322 103,196
Other assets 500,316 458,765
TOTAL ASSETS 46,724,361 42,505,245
LIABILITIES
Due to cenfral banks 169,622 231,349
Due to banks and other financial instiutions 4,711,602 3,250,269
Financial liabikties measured at FVTPL 62,195 52,304
Dervatree financial kabilies 169,959 51,234
Repurchase agreements 1,473,959 g 247
Certificates of deposit 428,929 370,623
Due 1o customers 33,425,710 32 621,398
Income tax payable 30,345 61,462
Dbt securities stued 1,936,857 1,250,558
Cibher habilities 530,327 465,975
TOTAL LIABILITIES 42,939,505 30,304,461
EQUATY
Share capital 356,407 356,407
DMhar equity instruments 334 344 I34,31
Preference shares 134,614 134,614
Perpetual bonds 189,730 87
Reserves 1,270,537 1,135,911
Retained profits 1,833,568 1.750,135
TOTAL EQUITY 3.7B4 B5G 3,600,784
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY a6, 724,361 2,505,245
Liag Lin Liu Jun Xu Zhisheng
Chairman Wice Chairman and Presedent Person in charge al Finance and

Accounting Department
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{In RME millions, unbess othersdise stated)

The statement of changes in equity of the Bank is set out below.
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{ih  Includes interim deodends on ondinary shares ol AMBS1,109 millien for 2024 @nd annual diadends on ordnany shares ol
RMBI10%.203 millicn for 2023,

{ily  Includes the appropriation made by overseas branches in the amount of AMESE mibon (2023: EMB1 12 million].
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{in AMAB millions, unlbess otherwse stated)

53. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The year-end cash desdends for ordinary shares of RMB1.646 (pre-tax) for each ten shares after the appropriation of
statutory surplus reserve and general reserve, was approved at the boand of directors’ meeting held on 28 March 2025, and
i% subject to the approval of the Bank's sharaholders a1 the forthcoming annual general mesting. Based on the number of
ordmary shares issued as at 31 Decernber 2024, the year-end cash dividends amounted to approssmately AMBSS, 664 millon
in {sal. The drvidend payable was not recognised as a hability in the conseldated finanoal statemants.

54. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certan comparatve amounts have been reclassified to conform 1o the current period’s presentation

55. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated fnancial statements were approved by the board of deectors on 28 March 2025
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
() 16.05 18.06 20.74 20.94 22.18
() 14.73 15.88 17.93 18.95 19.82
() 15.48 17.04 19.50 19.82 21.04
() 15.88 18.06 19.01 19.93 21.67

( )
UFJ
2024 12 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025
() 21.67 21.55 21.24 20.77 20.62 20.53
() 20.51 21.14 20.50 20.22 19.31 19.66
() 21.10 21.40 20.87 20.57 19.78 20.07
( )
UFJ
20.03 (2025 )
)
UFJ
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Industrial and Commercia Bank of China Limited:
(Incorporated in the People’ s Republic of Chinawith limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (the
“Bank”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group™) set out on pages 159 to 283, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financia statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financia position
of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS") issued by the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financia statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowance for impairment |osses on |oans and advances to customers measured at amortised cost

Significant judgments and assumptions are involved
in the measurement of alowance for impairment
losses on loans and advances to customers measured
at amortised cost, for example:

— Significant increasein credit risk — Criteriafor
determining whether significant increase in credit
risk has occurred are highly judgmental and may
have a significant impact on the expected credit
losses for loans and advances to customers
measured at amortised cost with alonger
outstanding maturities;

Models and parameters — Complex models,
numerous parameters and inputs, including
probability of default, loss given default, exposure
at default, and risk grouping, are used to measure
expected credit losses, involving plenty of
management judgments and assumptions;

Forward-looking information-M acroeconomic
forecasts are developed, and impacts on expected
credit losses are considered for multiple
probability- weighted macroeconomic scenarios;

Whether financial assets are credit-impaired — The
determination of credit impairment requires
consideration of multiple factors, and
measurement of expected credit losses depends on
estimates of future cash flows.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls over credit granting,
post approval credit management, loan credit rating
system, collateral management as well as
management, implementation and monitoring of
expected credit |osses approach, including:

— With the support of our IT audit experts, we
evaluated and tested the data and processes used
to determine expected credit losses, including loan
business data, internal credit rating data,
macroeconomic data, as well as the computational
logic, inputs and system interfaces of the
impairment assessment system;

— We evaluated and tested related internal controls
over the management, implementation and
monitoring of expected credit |osses approach,
including approval of management system,
important policies, important models, key
parameters and their adjustments, ongoing
monitoring of model performance, model
validation, monitoring and parameter calibration.

We adopted a risk-based sampling approach in our
loan review procedures, focusing on loans granted to
industries affected by macroeconomic changes and
to real estate enterprises with bond defaults and
negative news coverage. We assessed the debtors
repayment capacity and evaluated the Group’s
judgment in rating loans, taking into consideration
post-lending inspection reports, debtors financial
information, collateral valuation reports and other
available information.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowance for impairment |osses on |oans and advances to customers measured at amortised cost

(continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’ s balance of
loans and advances to customers measured at
amortised cost was RMB26,475,860 million, and the
related impairment provision was RMB815,072
million. As the measurement of expected credit
losses involves many significant judgments and
assumptions, we consider expected credit losses for
loans and advances to customers measured at
amortised cost akey audit matter.

Refer to Note 4 (10), Note 5, Note 14, Note 23.1,
Note 23.2(a) and Note 50(a) to the consolidated
financial statements for relevant disclosures.

With the support of our modelling experts, we
evaluated and tested the expected credit 1oss model
methodology, key parameters, and management’s
significant judgments and assumptions, mainly
focusing on the following aspects:

— Taking into account macroeconomic changes,
industry risk factors, and results of validation,
reassessment and update of ECL model, we
assessed the reasonableness of ECL model
methodology and related parameters, including
probability of default, loss given default, exposure
at default, risk grouping, and whether there had
been a significant increase in credit risk;

We assessed the forward-looking information
used by management to determine expected credit
losses, including the forecasts of macroeconomic
variables and the assumptions and weightings of
multiple macroeconomic scenarios;

We performed back-testing on a sampling basis
and assessed the reasonableness of management’s
determination of credit impairment. For credit-
impaired loans and advances, we analysed the
amount, timing and probability of management’s
estimated future cash flows on a sampling basis,
especialy recoverable cash flows from collaterals.

We inspected and assessed the appropriateness of
disclosures of expected credit losses in the financial
statements.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Consolidation of structured entities

Structured entities mainly include wealth
management products, investment funds, trust plans,
asset management plans and asset-backed securities
in which the Group has interests in them through
their initiation, management or investment. The
Group needs to comprehensively consider the power
it possesses, its exposure to variable returns, and its
ability to useits power to affect returnsto determine
whether it has control over such structured entities,
and therefore whether it should include them in the
scope of consolidation.

The assessment of the Group’s control over
structured entities involves significant judgements
on factors such as the purpose and design of
structured entities, the Group’s ability to direct
relevant activities, direct and indirect beneficial
interests and returns, performance fees, and benefits
received or losses incurred from providing credit
enhancement or liquidity support. Comprehensive
analysis of these factors and concluding on whether
the Group has control involve significant
management judgements. In view of the materiality
and the complexity of management judgements, we
consider consolidation assessment of structured
entities akey audit matter.

Refer to Note 4(2), Note 5 and Note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements for relevant
disclosures.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the Group
’s assessment of whether it consolidates a structured
entity.

We assessed the reasonabl eness of the Group’s
analysis and judgment of consolidation of structured
entities through the following procedures.

— We inspected the relevant contractual documents
and checked the Group’s analysis on its power
over these structured entities on the basis of
comprehensive consideration of all relevant facts
and circumstances;

We checked the Group’s analysis of the
magnitude and variability of the variable returns
received from the structured entity and the extent
to which variable returns are influenced through
the Group’s power and other available
information, which included examining whether
the Group haslegal or constructive obligationsto
ultimately absorb losses from structured entities,
whether the Group has provided liquidity support
or credit enhancement to structured entities
initiated by itself, such as wealth management
products, on a sampling basis.

We checked and assessed the appropriateness of the
financial statement disclosuresin relation to the
consolidation of structured entities.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Fair value of financial instruments

The valuation of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at fair value is based on readily available
market data or valuation models. For financial
instruments without readily available market data
such as debt securities, equities, over-the-counter
derivative contracts and structured deposits, fair
values are measured based on valuation techniques.
The selection of valuation techniques and significant
unobservable input data requires significant
accounting judgement and estimation by
management.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s financial
assets that were measured at fair value amounted to
RMB6,497,262 million, representing 13.31% of total
assets; financial liabilities that were measured at fair
value amounted to RMB475,549 million,
representing 1.06% of total liabilities. Level 3
financial assets and liabilities with significant
unobservabl e input data amounted to RMB199,797
million and RMB2,461 million respectively.

Given the materiality of the financial instruments
bal ance measured at fair value and the significant
judgements and assumptionsinvolved in fair value
measurement of Level 3 financia instruments, we
consider valuation of financial instruments akey
audit matter.

Refer to Note 4(7), Note 5, Note 21, Note 22, Note
23, Note 24, Note 32, Note 33 and Note 51 to the
consolidated financial statements for relevant
disclosures.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls related to the
valuation of financial instruments, including
independent price verification, and independent
model validation and approval.

We evaluated the val uation techniques, inputs and
assumptions through comparison with the valuation
techniques commonly used in the markets,

validation of observable inputs using external

market data, and comparison with valuation
outcomes obtained from various pricing sources on a
sampling basis.

For valuations which used significant unobservable
inputs, such as unlisted equity investments and
private equity fund investments, we involved our
internal valuation specialistsin ng the models
used, re-performing independent valuations on a
sampling basis, and analysing the sensitivities of
valuation results to key inputs and assumptions.

We checked and assessed the appropriateness of the
financial statement disclosuresin relation to the fair
value of instruments.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

IT systems and control related to financial reporting

Asalarge commercia banking group, the Group
operates highly complex IT systems.

The accuracy of the Group’s financial reporting
relieson IT systems, along with the effective design
and operation of IT genera control and IT
automated control over these systems. Specifically,
IT general control includes IT governance, control
over system development and program changes,
access control over programs and data, and I T
operations; while IT automated control includes edit
checks, matching verifications, system-driven
calculations, system interfaces, and access
authorizations related to significant accounts. Such
control primarily applies to the processes of key
businesses such as corporate banking, personal
banking, asset management services and financial
market.

With the rapid growth of the Group’s online
transaction volume, as well as the continuous
advancement and application of new technologies
that increases third-party network access, the Group
faces escalating challenges in cybersecurity and data
protection, which impactsthe IT systems that are
integral to financial reporting.

Given that the Group's financial accounting and
reporting remain heavily reliant on these IT systems
and control, we consider IT systems and control
related to financial reporting as akey audit matter.

With the support of our IT audit experts, we
performed audit procedures in respect of IT systems
and control related to financia reporting through the
following procedures:

— Evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key internal control over the IT
systems related to financial reporting;

— Evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of automated control related to
significant accounts and assertions or risk of
material misstatement;

Evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of control related to cybersecurity
management, operational security of critical
infrastructure, data and customer information
management, and system operation monitoring
and emergency management;

Evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of control related to intrusion
prevention management, antivirus and malware
management, patch management, data encryption
management, data backup management, as well as
the monitoring and handling of information
security incidents.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is amaterial misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statementsthat give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB and the disclosure
reguirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determineis
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Bank are responsible for ng the Group
’s ahility to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Bank either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Bank are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as abody, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAswill always detect amaterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosuresin the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for the purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Cheong Ming Yik, Hoffman.
Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants Hong Kong
28 March 2025

)
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